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Financial Summary

EEWE
SUMMARY OF RESULTS
BE12B31HLLEE
Year ended 31 December
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

ARBTR AREBTR ARBTRT ARBTRT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

C<E==2l)
(Restated)
(B3
(Note)
W Revenue 22,761,822 22,019,737 21,772,240 20,821,949 20,985,532
E Gross profit 8,065,931 7,918,290 7,288,599 6,576,938 7,227,800
BRFTSR AR Profit before income tax 2,326,459 1,971,360 1,639,774 1,276,824 1,067,972
FrigiiBE s Income tax expense (700,756) (605,148) (510,070) (398,608) (460,643)
FE&HN Profit for the year 1,625,703 1,366,212 1,029,704 878,216 607,329
/NI p Profit attributable to
A AEGEER the equity holders of
the Company 1,625,703 1,366,212 1,029,704 878,216 607,329
RE Dividends 1,625,703 1,366,212 1,029,704 614,751 121,466
ARES AREBS ARES NG 5) ARES
RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents RMB cents
REARRF] Basic earnings per share 37.64 31.63 23.84 20.33 14.06
Mgk : Note:

AEBFBER - — \ERNSETFRES#2#A5E  The Group adopted HKFRS 15 in 2018. Comparatives for year ended 31
158 HE_FE—+E+_A=+—HILEERM  December 2017 have been restated accordingly. The financial results prior
RSO AESE - S—+EMUATHEF  to 2017 have not been restated.

HENMEBT| o
"12A31H
As at 31 December

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
AREFTx AREBFT ARBFT AREBFT AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BEE Total assets 22,104,371 21,757,042 21,732,558 20,036,552 20,705,427
= Total liabilities 8,217,838 8,124,112 8,510,251 7,221,075 8,665,316
R AEEE Total equity 13,886,533 13,632,930 13,222,307 12,815,477 12,040,111
HEKIREZLB/Y  Cash and cash equivalents 486,300 1,056,780 1,563,945 2,356,350 2,076,839
e (BR) 28 Net current (Liabilities) (1,504,978) (623,190) (439,236) (475,101)  (1,868,005)
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Chairman’s Statement

In 2020, Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together as the “Group”, “our Group”, “we”, “our”
or “us”) adhered to the corporate vision of “Honesty and Diligence;
Innovation and Excellence GREEE ~ BIHFTK#)” and upheld
the principle of “Value Marketing (B{E&#H)”. With a focus on
operation, we were dedicated to creating brand value, pursuing
steady development and striving for progressive advancement
by “Healthy Practice (f2EE#®1E)”, with an aim to evolve into an
enterprise boasting “Integrity (§248) ", “Brand (f&h%)” and “Taste

(m@K) .

In response to the widespread novel coronavirus COVID-19
in 2020, the Group has thoroughly followed the government’s
epidemic prevention measures. To pay tribute to healthcare staff
and epidemic prevention personnel, the Group also coordinated
the inventory level and logistic services in different areas to provide
free instant noodles, self-heating rice meals, beverages and other
supplies to healthcare staff in critical regions. Additionally, the
Group maintained active communications with local governments
to strive for resumption of work and production and formulated
internal epidemic prevention standard operating procedures in
order to cater for the market and consumer needs amidst full-scale
epidemic prevention by commencing production and supply as
soon as possible.

As operation remained the focus in 2020, the Group continued to
invest in its brands, maintain stable prices across sale channels and
implement stringent management of product freshness in order to
provide customers with better product experience. Sales channels
were restructured and lower-tier markets were explored to cope
with the new trend of online and offline combined consumption.
We continued to establish comprehensive sales channels and
optimized our product mix. We always strived for better product
quality to attract new generation consumers by continuously
developing new types of products and enhancing our product
strengths. Staying true to our original aspiration, we were dedicated
to providing consumers with safe and delicious products as always.

e Annual Report 2020 £ #§
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Chairman’s Statement

KEE2020F Wm B ARKE22,761.88
BT BEAEEEREI4% REFBARE
1,625, 7R T  REFIERI19.0% - HF B
mMEXENABTBEMINE £ EFH5E
Mt RBEEE T HEESES
TE o B in R EERHE @ R TR/ RIS &
BEZ FEATMMIEEEESS  Wa 2
BEERE N EXEHT BB RKRBEEL R
B I —EBNS EEREHEESHR
BEMATSESMA KaRFEEER
EERTRET | IBEBEEEENEGTE
RORERADERNE ; AEERFEE
BEEHEZE ITEAHEEEENEBNR
hg o

REARE

ERAEBH20FERBENRR Z25F
ERR BBV BERI - UARBEEALZTHSE
EABlEE (TEF)) G (TEEE)) &N
RRFRIRBITZEFREAERRERIK
B FE2020F12831HIEEERBRER
ESRARIEI7.640 (HABREARELY
1,625.7887T) ©

iF—1 ¥ hE PG AR/ E Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

The Group recorded a revenue of RMB22,761.8 million in 2020,
representing an increase of 3.4% as compared with that of the
corresponding period last year, and profits after tax of RMB1,625.7
million, representing an increase of 19.0% as compared with that of
last year. We recorded a double-digit growth in the food business
as the increasing brand value of daily-consumed noodles “Soup
Daren (%% A)” was highly recognized by consumers and the
brand philosophy of the high-end Chinese cuisine “Kai Xiao Zao
(F9/\tt)” was continuously promoted to create and extend
the consumption scenarios, thereby contributing to such multi-
fold growth in revenue. The beverages business was gradually
recovering despite the impacts caused by the epidemic. “Uni
Assam Milk Tea (4 —PBr] FE4BWI%S) " was favoured by consumers as
usual with a unwavering leading position in the milk tea market and
positive growth in revenue. Sugar-free tea “Chai Li Won (2 F)”
aligned with consumers’ lifestyle concept of “sugar-free” to improve
its brand recognition. On its road to value marketing, the Group
remained steadfast in developing brands that are loved and trusted
by consumers.

FINAL DIVIDEND

Based on the Group’s overall performance in 2020, and having
accounted for, including but not limited to, the Group’s surplus,
overall financial condition and capital expenditures, the board (the
“Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company will propose
to declare a final cash dividend of RMB37.64 cents per share
(amounting to a total dividend of approximately RMB1,625.7 million)
for the year ended 31 December 2020 at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

e Annual Report 2020 &
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Chairman’s Statement

PROSPECT

The unexpected novel coronavirus COVID-19 disrupted the
production and daily life of people. Yet, with a variety of policies
and measures on epidemic prevention and control and economic
recovery rolled out by the government, the consumption market
has been recovering, giving rise to an economy worth looking
forward to in China in 2021, and consumption will play a more
important role in leading the domestic circular economy. In the
post-epidemic era, challenges and opportunities co-exist. The
Group will continue to dedicate its efforts to operation and brand
building. In response to the new consumption norms such as
e-commerce and otaku economy as well as a consumption trend
that focuses on health and household, the Group will innovate and
develop products appropriate for different consumption scenarios
to the satisfaction of consumers with enhanced convenience in
order to strive for better business performance and maximize
interests of the shareholders.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Our Group’s steady growth is credited to every party’s support
and dedication. On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our
sincere gratitude to our customers, suppliers, business partners,
financial institutions and shareholders for their unparallelled support,
especially for all our colleagues’ efforts and contributions in the past
year.

Lo Chih-Hsien
Chairman

19 March 2021
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Management Discussion & Analysis
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ANALYSIS ON ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

The gross domestic product (GDP) of the People’s Republic of
China (“China” or the “PRC”) recorded a year-on-year increase of
2.3% in 2020, down 3.8 percentage points from last year. In the
face of the severe impacts and complicated economic environment
caused by the novel coronavirus COVID-19, the PRC government
coordinated epidemic prevention and control and socio-economic
development works, facilitated gradual resumption of work and
production and reduced taxes and administrative fees to promote
market recovery and people’s daily consumption. As a result, the
national economy continued to experience steady recovery in 2020,
demonstrating the strong resilience and enormous potential of the
PRC economy.

Under the influence of the epidemic, online consumption
through e-commerce and live streaming contributed new growth
momentum to sales channels and “Generation Z” (born after 1995
and 2000) became the new growth driver of consumption, leading
to increasingly diverse and segmented consumption groups. The
prices of raw materials related to food and beverage fluctuated
in 2020. With a focus on operation and adhering to the value
marketing strategy, the Group emphasized brand building and
thought from the perspective of consumers with an aim to achieve
higher consumer satisfaction.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2020, the Group continued to focus on its operation by
improving brand building and insisting on the value marketing
strategy. Committed to “Healthy Practice (fEE#21E)”, we
strengthened freshness control over our products, maintained
stable market prices, emphasized development of brand assets
and optimized product mix to realise sound operation.

The Group recorded a revenue of RMB22,761.8 million in 2020,

representing an increase of 3.4% as compared with that of last
year. Information about the Group’s core businesses is as follows:

e Annual Report 2020 &
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Food Business

With an aim to satisfy the needs of consumers, the Group strived
to diversify consumption scenarios by providing products to be
enjoyed by consumers in different occasions and stayed laser-
focused on brand value to enhance the brand loyalty. We also
kept refining the process techniques and innovating new tastes
to enhance product strengths and cater for the diverse needs of
consumers. The Group recorded a revenue of RMB9,424.5 million
in 2020 from the food business, representing an increase of 10.9%
as compared with that of the corresponding period last year.

Instant Noodles Business

Demand in the instant noodles industry surged in the first half of
2020 with a noticeable growth rate which subsequently returned
to normal in the second half of the year. The Group recorded a
revenue of RMB9,055.0 million in 2020 from the instant noodles
business, representing an increase of 7.2% as compared with that
of the corresponding period last year.

For “Uni-President Lao Tan Pickled Cabbage
and Beef Noodles (#t —&EM 4 HLE) ",
the Group centred on improving the “stability,
continuity and consistency (B2 E 1 ~ B & %~ —
M) ” of the product to support its core value
of “Authentic Sourness and Crunchiness (IE5
£ 3%)” in 2020. Based on the invention patents
obtained, process techniques and production
procedures were further refined, the formula

was upgraded and a more eye-catching new
package was adopted, which all together further improved the
brand loyalty.

“Soup Daren (5% A)”, which has registered a double-digit
growth or above in revenue for 12 consecutive years, was highly
recognised by the market and consumers. We
continued to invite new generation actors who have
the traits of “focus, sunshine and vitality (83% - [
Y BITHR)” to be our spokespersons to expand
the consumer group of “Soup Daren GHZEA)”
and promote the brand concept of “Soup Makes
Good Noodles (475l > 7% RE)”. Through “Soup
Daren Genki Music Festival G5 A TR & 260) 7,
communications with new generation were enhanced

i m— 10 Maintain the youthfulness of the brand. A year after
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its launch, the newly upgraded series of “Gourmet’s Selection (1i
BXEE) " under “Soup Daren (5% A)” has become popular among
mid- to high-end consumers as evidenced by the gradual increase
in its sales volume, which further enhanced and improved the
brand image of “Soup Daren (5#£ A) " as noodles being served in
nourishing soup.

“Teng Jiao (B{&)" centred on the development and
innovation of the vine pepper taste and penetrated
into the market by turning the product into a brand,
guiding new generation consumers to indulge in the
alluring electrifying taste of vine pepper. The product
strength was being fortified in 2020. While continuously
enhancing the “The Feeling of Electric Shock (&7
RIRLE)”, we also exerted efforts in building close
connections with the purchase and consumption
scenarios through a mix of media including television,
internet and outdoor environment to maintain a stable
growth in the sales volume. The uniqueness of “Teng Jiao
(B1B) " was widely recognised by consumers, laying a
solid foundation for subsequent brand development.

%
- |
1
H
.
¥
*

For “Uni-President The King of Tomato (#—#2)”, as
stimulated by live streaming on e-commerce channels, “Uni-
President The King of Tomato — Tomato Egg Noodles (4t
—MEEMABELE) " continued to hit a record high in sale
volume. “Birth of The King of Tomato (i 2 AYFELE) ", the first
television advertisement of “Uni-President The King of Tomato
(#:—7#n2)”, was broadcast in the second half of 2020,
which further revitalized the brand image and increased the
brand awareness, making it more popular among the new
generation.

“Imperial Big Meal (2 AK%)”, a high-end brand of lifestyle
noodles of the Group, regards inheriting Chinese noodles as its
mission. Through constant improvement in cooking techniques and
serving with a “large piece of genuine beef
(EMAB KIRA)”, it provides each meat
lover with a more enjoyable noodle eating
experience. In the second half of 2020, in
order to enter the noodle cooking market,
“Imperial Big Meal (GfEA%&)” introduced
semi-dry noodles served with richer
ingredients and a stronger flavour of Chinese
noodles to satisfy the needs of consumers.

H— ¥R EERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 &%
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Other Food

The high-end Chinese cuisine brand
2 of “Kai Xiao Zao (Fd/)\#t)”, which
adopted the concept of “Premium Meal,
é Special Treat (WFIFIZER > BA/)\kE) " for
i its brand promotion, continued to be
M. well recognised by consumers and
achieved a multi-fold increase in revenue
in 2020. Mr. Xiao Zhan (H &), the brand
spokesperson, helped increase the
brand awareness of “Kai Xiao Zao (Bf/)\
%t)” rapidly and attracted the attention
of numerous consumers in 2020.
Through utilizing the flagship store as a platform for interaction with
consumers, a core consumer group was formed. In the second half
of 2020, hotpot series products “Spicy Beef Hotpot (R4~ N
#8)” and “Double-flavor Hotpot (B&E W $8)” were launched under
“Kai Xiao Zao (BE/)\#)” to meet the needs of different consumers
and extend the consumption scenarios. Cross-industry cooperation
was actively explored for “Kai Xiao Zao (B8/\J1)”. A series of
limited co-branded products, such as the “Angelica Pork Belly
Chicken (E 885581 %) " launched in 2020 and “Beer Duck (1%
B8)” launched in 2021, received extensive positive feedbacks from
consumers given the new sales tactics and new flavours.

“Q-Fresh (Q/)M#)” continued to target the market of frozen fresh
noodles transported through cold chain logistics and mainly
available in premium supermarkets and e-commerce platforms.
With “fresher (B##£)” noodles and “richer (B2/E)” broth, it
provided a new choice for new families pursuing fresh diets. As
influenced by the epidemic in 2020, the demand of consumers for
“freshness” and “health” further increased, which in turn boosted
the sales of “Q-Fresh (Q/)\&E) "

Looking forward to 2021, challenges and opportunities will co-exist
in the food industry. As consumers’ perception of convenience food
has evolved, which brings new opportunities to the industry, the
Group will capitalize on its innovation strengths, maintain quality and
satisfy the diverse needs of consumers in strict accordance with its
consumer-centric and market-oriented approach. There are markets
for both of the mid- to high-end products and economical products
meeting livelihood needs. Being guided by the value marketing
strategy, the Group will cater for the different needs of consumers.
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Beverages Business

Consumer need is the core of the beverages business of the
Group. By focusing on freshness management of products,
adhering to value marketing, stabilizing prices across sales
channels and working hard on brand building, we built up brand
assets. The annual revenue of our beverages business amounted to
RMB12,560.4 million in 2020, representing a year-on-year decline
of 1.3%. The business performance of our major beverages is as
follows:

Tea Drinks

Revenue from the tea drinks of the Group in 2020 amounted to
RMB5,444.0 million. The revenue was influenced by the epidemic in
the first quarter and steadily picked up after the second quarter and
gradually returned to normal.

“Uni lce Tea (#— kALY ” continued to convey
the brand spirit of “Stay Young for Ever or Fight for it
(BEEBIE > TR EE)”. We focused on the
new generation consumer group of Generation Z in
brand promotion. With an accurate understanding
of the favourite games/two-dimensional culture of
the new generation, we tapped into eSports by
conducting cross-industry cooperation with KPL
(King Pro League), an eSports game. Leveraging
the benefits brought by the popularity of games
under the “otaku economy (E4L%)” and the
multiple drinking scenarios of youngsters, we
were able to accurately target Generation Z in
the eSports circle through synergetic cooperation
among multiple online and offline platforms. In
2020, we cooperated with the top ten eSports
teams of KPL to organize the “Uni Ice Tea (4 —k
41%%)” “Battle Bottle DIY Competition (BattlefiDIYAZE)”, in which
fans of the eSports players turned internet traffic into sales volume.
Marketing on fans was carried out through interactions with popular
game characters by means of bottle packages, live streaming on
the internet, cross-platform cooperation and peripheral products,
in order to attract more new generation consumers and improve
brand favourability.
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In line with the health awareness of consumers, we adopted an
annual marketing theme of “Being close to the nature, providing
bonus to health (#3x B7A» 7R MER) " for “Uni Green Tea (4%
—#%2%)” in 2020 and highlighted the healthy features of “low
sugar” and “tea polyphenols” in promotion. Brand visibility was
strengthened through media platforms which youngsters actively
visited. We also carried out public welfare campaigns such as
“Send coolness to people working in high temperature (78 T1E
E1%ER)” and “Send coolness to delivery riders (9hE/NEE R
A0ER) ", which demonstrated the support of the brand to public
welfare activities. Together with the coverage by mainstream media,
—#%%%)” as a national drink was
reinforced as a result of better perception by the public. At the

the image of “Uni Green Tea (4

same time, the low-sugar and healthy attitude of the brand which
supported public welfare was accentuated to help build up brand
assets.

“Classmate Xiaoming VhNERZ)"
offered youngsters with “Mixed Tea
CREH)”

new packages and character images

which was given brand

in 2020. We promoted such products
based on the brand spirit of “optimistic,
humorous, lively and courageous (4

Wy Bk~ JEBEED " and by centring on
Mr. Wu Lei (2%), the well-matched
brand spokesperson, in order to achieve
maximized benefits of the fan economy
through focusing on marketing to fans.
The new goal of the brand “Classmate Xiaoming (/& E£2)” was
achieved through three ways, namely enhancing product strength,
realizing promotion strength and redeveloping business strength.

“Chai Li Won ZXZT)" continued to convey the product appeal
and brand proposition of “no additives and a sweet taste came after
(CRAMBESREHE) . In 2020, we leveraged celebrity influence to
build up brand recognition and create the “top” brand image. We
communicated with consumers through videos by centring on the
workplace hot topics that consumers were interested in. We also
continued to nurture sugar-free tea consumers in key cities. By
expanding sales channels to convenience stores and supermarkets
and cooperating with e-commerce platforms, we enlarged our
communication channels with consumers.

e Annual Report 2020 £ #§
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The refrigerated tea “Refreshing Tea (%% - B##¥) " adopts the freeze-
extraction technique to bring the freshest, original and real tasting
experience to consumers. The concept of 21 days of freshness
continued to be enhanced in 2020. Through “21-Day Brand Day
(21X @EEH)” and the “One Cup One Code (—#F—H%)” red
packet QR code activity, we established the brand recognition of
freshness and rapport with consumers, which further enhanced the

brand awareness.

In 2021,
positioning of “good tea has a sweet taste
came after (BIEH#%5)” for “Chai Li Won
(%% F)". Through developing drinking
scenarios for the product, the brand
awareness and consumption frequency
will be improved. Capitalising on the low-
sugar and healthy lifestyle,
(#r—4%35)" will expand its area of brand
strength, explore sales channels in lower-
tier markets and carry out promotion among

we will strive to develop a brand

“Uni Green Tea

new youngsters and new blue-collar population to reinforce its
image as a national drink by means favoured by consumers. “Uni
Ice Tea (Bi—
earn the recognition of Generation Z by taking advantage of the

KAL) " will leverage spokesperson cooperation to

eSports culture and will continue to convey the brand attitude of
“Stay Young for Ever (5E&#EMHIR)” favoured and recognised by
youngsters.

In 2021,
opportunities brought by the new consumption environment,
explore product sales opportunities in multiple scenarios, meet
different consumption needs through customized product

for our tea business, we will actively embrace the

specifications, and capitalize on the rapid development trend of
internet and household consumption in order to create new growth
engines in the post-epidemic era.

e Annual Report 2020 &
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Juice

In 2020, in response to the trend of consumption upgrade, the
Group stepped up investment in internet resources for its juice
business to convey the benefits of healthy juice to consumers. A
total revenue of RMB1,578.2 million was recorded during the year.

In 2020, we continued to convey the benefits of “Uni Orangeate (4t
—##E2)”, which are rich in vitamin C and contain dietary fiore
equivalent to 3.5 oranges. We published a public welfare video starring
Mr. Wang Yuan (£J8), the brand spokesperson, to call on people to
take precautionary measures and remind people to consume Vitamin
C, which demonstrated our concern on health issues. We promoted
the image of hotpot + “Uni Orangeate (#;— &% %) " as partners on
the dining table and introduced new packages for Wang Yuan (£
J8) week bottles in the second half of the year to highlight the idea of
satisfying daily health needs with a bottle of “Uni Orangeate (4t — 15
%)”. By doing so, we continued to enhance the brand value of “Uni
Orangeate (4% —£##5%)” to new generation consumers, which is
“More Vitamin C, More Fiber, More Beauty ($CZ# %2 5)".

In 2021, for the juice business, the Group will be well-positioned to
ride the trend. While continuously promoting the benefits of healthy
juice products, we will capitalize on the changes in consumption
demand and market trend to enhance the image of juice and
delicacy as partners on the dining table and tap into the market of
100% juice, as our proactive efforts in expanding the market. The
Group will stay attached to the business strategy of value marketing
and focus on developing and optimizing product strength, in order
to provide consumers with healthy and tasty juice of different
concentrations and temperatures to satisfy their diverse needs.
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Milk Tea

In 2020, the revenue of “Uni Assam Milk Tea (4% —Fd
FEIBYLZS) " increased by 7.3% as compared with that
of the corresponding period last year. We expressed
the warm care of the brand and accentuated the
. distinctive “therapeutic CARI &) " effect of milk tea
products through the theme of “I Heal You as Spring
Breeze Heals the Earth (FRJARAM > FIARIT) .
We created multiple drinking scenarios featuring “A
Special Blend of Milk Tea For Good Mood (5:84F
0MB)” and published educational videos in order
to increase the number of drinking occasions and
consumption volume of Assam Milk Tea. Adhering

AT
b
é%

to the communication theme of “Say goodbye to
the setbacks at present (5B FIE FHIRTE) ", we

i cooperated with popular TV dramas in the year to

enhance consumers’ recognition of the brand. The 1.5L large sized
bottle was continuously promoted by creating drinking scenarios
suitable for large bottles in a youthful style.

“Assam Small Milk Tea (FeJ i 4/ N3 %) " attracted the attention of
consumers through a differentiated marketing model to build up a
brand image associated with warm winter by continuously focusing
on key cities and the hot drinks market.

“Uni Milk Tea (8t —13%%)” placed emphasis on the household
drinking scenario by mainly offering bundled products to nurture
the habit of drinking milk tea at home and encourage milk
tea beginners to develop a drinking habit. For promotion, by
developing the theme of “Mouthful of Malt ($1Z£0k)”, we closely
communicated with consumers to maintain brand vitality.

In 2021, we will continue to promote the youthfulness of the “Uni
Assam Milk Tea (48—l FE4B 1 %5) " brand by centring on “Smooth
and Good Mood (JE/E 402 1%) ”. On our development path towards
stability, freshness and quickness, we will expand consumption in
the catering and household scenarios and in occasions suitable for
hot drinks. While expanding the scope of our sales channels, we
will stringently manage freshness.

e Annual Report 2020 &
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Coffee

In respect of “A-Ha (J15) " Coffee, the Group continued to focus
on “A-Ha Iced Coffee (HEMEAMILE) " in 2020 to express the
brand appeal of “Enjoy the Endless Vitality B8 = &ERSE /) ”. For
promotion, enhancing brand awareness was the main emphasis.
For sales channels, due to the normalization of epidemic prevention
and control, we proactively developed the delivery business from
e-commerce store to home in order to satisfy the household
drinking needs of consumers.

In light of the demand of the target consumer group who aspired
for new experiences, we first introduced “Gingerbread Flavor Latte
(EBtk=8#0NME) ", a winter-only limited edition product, under
“La Rive Gauche de la Seine (/£ FMNBEEE) " in November 2020,
which was available for sale on specific sales channels. As the
product received positive feedbacks from consumers, the brand
awareness was effectively enhanced.

In 2021, the Group will continue to regard “A-Ha Iced Coffee (3
BAKMNME)” as the focus of its coffee business, carry out major
tasks in its base area and develop sales channels in key cities to
seek breakthroughs. With a focus on East China, “La Rive Gauche
de la Seine (ZZ=MMEEE) " will proactively tap into the chilled
coffee market by introducing seasonal limited edition flavour where
appropriate to meet the needs of consumers for seasonal products.

Bottled Water

The Group continued to focus on the operation
of “ALKAQUA (E5%)”, a mid- to high-end natural
mineral water brand. In 2020, as influenced by the
epidemic, consumers became more health conscious
and “ALKAQUA (E%)" engaged in rational
communications with consumers by ensuring that its
“content of HzSiOs is twice over the national standard
level (R ZE2FNBEXKZE)”. Through
endorsement by medical experts, the 21-day

EX I URYEGS2ENEREE EH
EEETER BRBEEXGFEEE 21
REFERBEE UAEMBHAINES
BRNEEE S BIETALKAQUAZ | TR
BB T FEEE TMERI BRI PE]
HERE UERAERERE UEX'RAETY)
A BIE1TBLERERAS R IBER LR
FEHBEE -
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rejuvenation challenge, and promotion methods such as placing
outdoor advertisements in key cities, we strengthened promotion of
the efficacy of “HzSiOs” in “ALKAQUA (Z#£)” to nurture the “new
generation” and “new middle class” consumer groups. Also, by
leveraging internet-based media and utilizing delicacy as the entry
point, we enhanced the household consumption scenario for 1.5L
bottles to cope with the trend of online household consumption.
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In 2021, for “ALKAQUA (Z3%)”, the Group will continue to improve
the brand value by internally developing core differentiations and
externally consolidating brand assets with attractive appearance.
The “middle class and new middle class” that are particular about
quality of life and healthy drinking water will be the target groups of
our promotion. With regard to “mineral water” itself, we will promote
the understanding of “ALKAQUA = Good Mineral Water (B = 4
R .

Bottle Can Drinks

Following the rising trend of consumption upgrade,
the Group continued to develop high-end bottle can
drinks. We adopted a differentiated product strategy
for the first flavour “Mango & Pomelo Sweet Soup (15
MEE)" under “Keep Sweet (IEZEHE)” to develop
a premium ready-to-drink dessert brand and utilized
online promotion on the internet to effectively improve
interaction with consumers and product repurchase rate.
For “Chuan Qi (f&31]))” pure tea, based on the product
strategy of exploring historical Chinese tea for enjoyment
by consumers anywhere, we continued to improve our
technology and techniques and managed to establish
a production line for freshly brewed tea by leveraging
= the power of technology, for which we obtained a
TR hational patent. We adopted a communication axis of
“Stay Warm this Winter CRBEE 184 Z)” for our rose-scented
“allegre” milk tea, which was our key hot drink product in the
winter and available for sales in major premium supermarkets and
hypermarkets across the country. Together with the self-heating
mug developed by ourselves, we made hot drink readily available
and got off to a good start in the implementation of our hot drink
strategy.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

In the face of the unexpected epidemic in 2020, the Group’s
Research and Development (“R&D”) Centre capitalized on the
changes in consumption perception and lifestyle brought by the
epidemic, gained insights into the emerging new opportunities,
took advantage of the trend and made improvements in order to
produce products that consumers will “be comfortable and happy

=728 7 N

to eat (220 IZ15FI0) .
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As for food, as the convenient lifestyle where people
may enjoy delicacy at home has become very
common among consumers these days, there has
been a rapid growth of self-heating food. After the
launch of the self-heating rice dishes of “Kai Xiao
Zao (F/]\J1)”, the Group noticed the rise of self-
heating hotpot and therefore introduced “Spicy Beef
Hotpot (MfER4F AN E8) " and “Double-flavor Hotpot
(& N38)” to expand the consumption scenarios
of “Kai Xiao Zao (Bd/)\kt)”. “Spicy Beef Hotpot (ffit
$REFANEE) 7 is based on the authentic Chongging
cow oil hotpot and made of stir-fried ingredients
accompanied by a strong pepper aroma and a

features both of the authentic Chongaging cow oail
hotpot and mushroom chicken soup to provide the two savours of
spiciness and umami. These two hotpot flavours were immediately
recognised by and became popular among consumers upon their
launch.

“Uni-President That Street That Lane (#t—##TAE) " aims to
provide consumers with the street delicacy of local flavour. Upon
our tremendous efforts in optimizing the sterilization, preservation,
seasoning and packaging technologies, we introduced two local
delicacies under “That Street That Lane (BREFHRE)” in 2020,
namely “Guilin Rice Noodles (FE#KH3) " (fresh rice noodles) and
“Lanzhou Beef Noodles (B4 PA%H) " (semi-dry noodles). “Guilin
Rice Noodles (BE#KHD) " was researched and developed under
the guidance of Ms. Zhou Yigiong, the fourth-generation disciple
of Guilin carrying-pole rice noodles, and made by traditional
techniques, allowing people to enjoy the taste
of street-side rice noodle restaurants within
one minute; “Lanzhou Beef Noodles (B #M4 &
)" was researched and developed under the
guidance of Mr. Ma Ting, the third-generation
successor of the cooperative partner Mazilu (55
F#%), a China time-honoured brand, allowing
people to enjoy the flavour that can be found in
the Mazilu physical store in Lanzhou.
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As for drink, in May 2020, “Classmate Xiaoming (/NZ [E£2)”
introduced the classic barley black tea in vogue in Taiwan. The
combination of roasted barley, mellow black tea and special
sugar brings a sweet and rich taste and makes it a distinctive and
differentiated flavour since being launched. We optimized the recipe
of “Uni Kumquat Lemon Beverage (#— & 15#1%) " in June 2020.
By using Vietnamese Kaman orange juice and concentrated spice
processed at a low temperature in a vacuum environment, we are
able to offer a refreshing, sour, sweet and juicy product, turning the
classic street-side lemon-flavoured beverage into a crafted drink.

Under the impacts of the epidemic, consumers had a significantly
greater willingness to make health-related consumptions. Beverage
products that are healthy, natural and savoury are increasingly
favoured by consumers. Taking this as the entry point, the Group
selectively imported unprocessed orange juice for production of the
100% orange juice “Vitality Awakening Gt EEE) " in order to offer
“tasty” 100% juice.

Developing core technologies to ensure competitive advantages
is one of the key targets of the Group. In 2020, through
innovation supported by internal and external synergies as well as
independent self-driven innovation, we continued to take forward
over ten core technology projects. For instance, the self-heating
package technology was successfully applied to “Kai Xiao Zao (5
/I\It) " self-heating rice, and the enzymatic hydrolysis technology
for tea was successfully applied to “Chai Li Won GEEF)”
Japanese green tea. As of December 2020, our R&D Centre had
106 authorized patents and 51 patents were in application. We will
continue to create barriers for our superior technologies.

In 2021, in order to ensure that consumers will “be comfortable
and happy to eat (Z18Z 0> IZ12 50 7, the Group will dedicate
its R&D efforts to continuous innovation, product optimization and

upgrade and development of core technologies.
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FOOD SAFETY

We uphold the philosophy of “Three Goods and One Fairness:
Good Quality, Good Credit, Good Service and Fair Price (=7
—RE . mBTERT - RBEE B AE)” and offer safe,
healthy and delicious food to consumers. To enhance the level
of food safety management system, we have set up Food Safety
Committee and Food Safety Centre to cultivate food safety culture
and implement food safety assurance system, formulate food safety
policy, improve assessment, alert and monitoring of food safety
risks for guaranteeing food safety, undertake quality assurance
system management of the Group, formulate and implement policy
of product quality for guaranteeing product quality.

With the mission of “be comfortable and happy to eat (1182 i0h
17188800 ", a consensus is reached that food safety is the Group’s
commitment to customers and the brands as well as the foundation
of the Company’s sustainable development. We will continue to
promote the development of a food safety culture and a working
environment that encourages food safety practices and food safety
culture where all employees could participate in prevention and
improvement works in respect of food safety so that our products
could meet the requirements of laws and regulations and earn the
recognition of consumers.

We continue to improve regulatory mechanism of supply
chain of raw materials and focus on strengthening food safety
management of the source of supply chain and monitoring of
food products safety. We have implemented assessment of food
safety qualifications of suppliers and field inspection of food
safety of suppliers, established monitoring mechanism of food
safety projects of raw materials to ensure the implementation of
monitoring of food quality and safety starting from the source of
supply chain and established mechanism of qualification review
of production plants and field assessment. Apart from conducting
strict inspection on food products according to the relevant laws
and regulations prior to their delivery, all-rounded food safety
monitoring will also be carried out to ensure safety and taste of our
products.
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We actively promote source management of suppliers. In addition
to provision of training to our suppliers, we have introduced third
party professional agencies to evaluate our suppliers, and assist
them to establish their own scientific and effective food safety and
quality management system. We have fully introduced Food Safety
Protection Program covering the production and sale process
starting from product design to ensure consumers are rest assured.

We pay close attention to various food safety incidents of other
food manufacturers, timely carry out risks assessment, inspect
raw materials and food products similar to the ones used in
those incidents, improve food safety management system to
guarantee food safety, actively participate in the formulation and
revision of relevant national standards, compile and promulgate
food regulations and domestic and foreign food safety information
to enhance food safety awareness of the Group, promote full
implementation of food regulations and safety standards to
safeguard consumers’ interests.

Our Food Safety Centre passed the annual China National
Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS
accreditation) since 2005 and 172 projects of the Group had been
approved thus far. Meanwhile, with the co-operation of laboratories
of each of our subsidiaries and external detection and testing
institutions, the needs for detection and testing key food safety
items are met, providing us with professional and authoritative
detection and testing service and technical support to guarantee
food safety. With our innovation in laboratory detection and testing
system, seven technical achievements were awarded with national
patents.

As of 2020, 28 subsidiaries of the Group have passed the
ISO9001 International Standard Quality Management System
Certification, and 26 subsidiaries have been accredited with
the 1SO22000 International Standard Food Safety Management
System Certification. These certifications and awards recognised
our ongoing improvement of food safety and quality assurance
system and our capability of safeguarding food safety as well as our
dedication to providing consumers with delicious, healthy and safe
food.
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PRODUCTION STRATEGIES

The Group spared no effort in our operation, research and
development, innovation, brand building and sales expansion,
aiming to meet customer needs, develop and strengthen the
corporation constantly and maximise the revenue. In order to
focus the use of resources, maximize the benefits, the Group did
not solely rely on its own production resources. It also outsourced
its production to other professional beverages manufacturers
(including external independent third parties and related party
companies). A strategic alliance was formed under such long-term
co-operation with the external manufacturers, enabling the Group
to outsource production mode to adjust production capacity in
addition to the basic production capacity, providing the Group with
production flexibility. Thus, the Group was able to fully utilise its
resources on core operation and optimise its efficiency.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”), the Group
recorded a revenue of RMB22,761.8 million, representing an
increase of 3.4% from RMB22,019.7 million for 2019. Revenue
from the food business increased by 10.9%, and revenue from the
beverages business decreased by 1.3%, standing at RMB9,424.5
million and RMB12,560.4 million respectively, accounting for
41.4% and 55.2% respectively of the Group’s total revenue.
During the Year, gross profit of the Group increased by 1.9% from
RMB7,918.3 million for the corresponding period last year to
RMB8,065.9 million, while the gross profit margin decreased by
0.6 percentage points from 36.0% for the corresponding period
last year to 35.4%, which was mainly due to the structure changes
in the contribution of food and beverage of the Group and other
impacts.
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During the Year, the seling and marketing expenses decreased
by approximately RMB17.2 milion to RMB5,350.4 million (2019:
RMB5,367.6 million). During the Year, administrative expenses
amounted to RMB957.9 million (2019: RMB1,007.2 million). The
decrease in selling and marketing expenses was mainly due to the
reduction in taxes and administrative fees by the PRC government
as well as a decrease in travelling expenses, despite an increase in
expenses for sales channels as a result of products stretching to
lower-tier markets. The decrease in administrative expenses was
due to reduction in the rate of and exemption of social insurance
fees by the PRC government.

Operating profit was RMB2,108.3 million for the Year, increasing by
16.7% from the operating profit of RMB1,806.3 million for 2019.
The share of profits of investments accounted for using the equity
method amounted to RMB45.8 million (2019: RMB13.0 million)
during the Year, mainly due to the stable and excellent performance
of the joint ventures in investment and operation. Profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company for the Year was RMB1,625.7
million, representing an increase of 19.0% as compared with
RMB1,366.2 million of 2019. Earnings per share during the Year
were RMB37.64 cents (2019: RMB31.63 cents).

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Cash and Borrowings

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash at bank and on
hand of RMB6,068.4 million (31 December 2019: RMB6,483.5
million), among which 99.93% was denominated in Renminbi and
0.04% was denominated in United States dollar. The Group mainly
financed its operation and capital expenditures with internally
generated cash flow. As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s total
financial liabilities decreased by 55.9% to RMB532.4 million (31
December 2019: RMB1,207.1 million), which was attributable to
the repayment of certain bank borrowings as short-term working
capital was relatively sufficient. 100% of the Group’s total financial
liabilities was denominated in Renminbi. As at 31 December 2020,
all of the Group’s financial liabilities bore floating interest rates. As
at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any secured bank
borrowing (31 December 2019: Nil).
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Financing

The Group aims to maintain an appropriate capital structure. Taiwan
Ratings Corporation, a credit rating agency, issued a credit rating
report on 30 June 2020, and maintained the Group’s long term
credit rating at “twAA”, with its rating outlook standing at “Stable
(#Z278) ", Subsequently, Taiwan Ratings Corporation withdrew the
rating on 30 June 2020 at the request of the Group. The rating
outlook of the Group at the time of the withdrawal was “Stable (i&
TE)". The gearing ratios of the Group as at 31 December 2020 and
31 December 2019 were as follows:

2020 2019
AREFT AR®BFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
wEs (8iEmREa® Total borrowings (including lease liabilities) 532,388 1,207,108
BRI RFERE Less: cash at bank and on hand (6,068,431) (6,483,500)
H$BE Net cash (5,536,043) (5,276,392)
B Total equity 13,886,533 13,632,930
HEE A Total capital 8,350,490 8,356,538
BEREELE () Gearing ratio (Note) (66.30%) (63.14%)
MizE1:  2020F12831H TR FEIEELT Note1:  As at 31 December 2020, the decrease in cash at bank and
BEFrERRATEERBERERTE on hand was mainly due to the Group’s purchase of financial
TSR E R 712020F12831H > products issued by commercial banks. As at 31 December
AEBRFERATFEFABRZEM 2020, the Group had financial assets at fair value through profit
BEAANR®1,621.688T(2019F or loss of RMB1,621.6 million (31 December 2019: Nil)
128318 : &) °
M2 . EBEASRERLEXZBSFEBUMAELT  Note2:  The gearing ratio is computed as the net cash divided by the
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sum of total equity and net cash.

The Group reviewed its gearing ratio on a regular basis. According
to the capital plan for the future, the Group tried to maximize
revenue for its shareholders with capital risk awareness in mind.
Capital structure was constantly adjusted according to changes in
the operational environment.
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Cash Flow and Capital Expenditure

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a year-on-year
net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of RMB569.5 million,
comprising net cash inflow from operating activities of RMB3,215.2
million, net cash outflow from investing activities of RMB1,700.8
million and net cash outflow from financing activities of RMB2,084.0
million. The Group’s capital expenditure for the Year was RMB385.1
million (31 December 2019: RMB409.0 million).

Analysis of Operating Efficiency

The Group stringently controls and manages the levels of trade
receivables, trade payables and inventories. Sales to most
customers are made on a delivery on payment basis. Trade
receivables are generated from credit sales to credit customers
from modern channels and e-commerce business (including but not
limited to food and groceries stores, stalls and department stores)
with credit terms normally ranging from 60 to 90 days. During the
Year, attributable to the growth in percentage of sales through
e-commerce channels and modern channels, net trade receivables
increased by RMB11.4 million to RMB580.5 million (31 December
2019: RMB569.1 million).

The Group’s inventories mainly comprised raw materials, packaging
materials, finished goods and low-value consumables. The
inventories turnover days increased by four days as compared with
2019, which was attributable to the early preparation of products
for the Chinese New Year. As at 31 December 2020, the inventories
balance increased by RMB204.5 million to RMB1,943.5 million
(81 December 2019: RMB1,739.0 million) as compared to the
beginning of the Year. The Group’s trade payables mainly arise
from credit purchases of raw materials. During the Year, trade
payables increased by RMB156.3 million to RMB1,879.7 million
(81 December 2019: RMB1,723.4 million), which was attributable
to the increase in goods and raw materials required in the early
preparation for increased production and sales during the Chinese
New Year. The following table sets out the major turnover days
during the two years ended 31 December 2020.

e Annual Report 2020 &



EEEw RO

Management Discussion & Analysis

HE12H31HLEE
Year ended 31 December
2020 2019
FEWNE SR BAEXH Trade receivables turnover days 9 9
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Trade receivables turnover days were calculated based on the
average of trade receivables balances as at the beginning and the
end of the year divided by revenue multiplied by days in the year.

Inventory turnover days were calculated based on the average of
inventory balances as at the beginning and the end of the year
divided by cost of sales multiplied by days in the year.

Trade payables turnover days were calculated based on the
average of trade payable balances as at the beginning and the end
of the year divided by cost of sales multiplied by days in the year.

The Group reckoned that inventory turnover days, trade receivables
turnover days and trade payable turnover days in the distribution
channel helped the Group in understanding the efficiency of
inventory liquidity and the sales and cash conversion cycle.
Through reviewing and improving the turnover days, the Group
could improve its revenue, profit and the ability of on-going growth
for the sake of enhancing operational efficiency.
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Financial Management

The Group adheres to the principle of financial prudence. It seeks
to control risk variables and moves forward prudently by moderately
adjusting its selling and marketing expenses according to market
conditions, and making appropriate capital expenditures to
optimise and expanding the infrastructure and marketing assets for
sales channels. The Group’s finance department has formulated
financial risk management policies based on the policies and
procedures approved by the Board and guided by the executive
Directors. These policies are reviewed by the Group’s internal audit
department and internal control department regularly. The Group’s
financial policy aims at reducing impacts of interest rate and
exchange rate fluctuations on the Group’s overall financial position,
as well as minimising the Group’s financial risk exposure.

The Group’s finance department provides centralised financial risk
(including interest rate and foreign exchange risk) and cash flow
management, and cost-effective funding for the Group and its
members. During the Year, the Group has maintained an automated
reconciliation system, which significantly improved capital efficiency
and accounting treatment effectiveness.

Treasury Policy

It was the Group’s treasury management policy not to engage in
any highly risky investment or speculative derivative product and
not to invest the working capital in financial products with significant
underlying leverage or risks, including hedge funds or similar
financial products. The Group continued to adopt a conservative
approach to financial risk management with no significant bank
borrowing during the Year. Most of the Group’s receipts and
payments were denominated in Renminbi since a majority of its
revenue was derived from operations in the PRC. The Group may
use foreign exchange forward contracts, when appropriate, for
risk aversion when it is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from assets or liabilities, such as cash and cash equivalents and
borrowings, which may be denominated in other currencies.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not hold any significant
investments with a value of 5% or more of the Group’s total assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2020.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

The Group did not have any charge on group assets as at 31
December 2020.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Group had no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the Year.

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Directors confirmed that as at the date of this annual report,
there was no plan for any material investment or to acquire capital
assets other than those in the Group’s ordinary business of
manufacturing and sale of beverages and instant noodles.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, the total number of employees of
the Group was 30,430. The Group adhered to the policies of
focused and streamlined operation, and organisational structure
and staff structure were improved on a continuous basis to build
a stronger and efficient enterprise. In terms of recruitment, the
Group was streamlining its administration and progressing towards
meritocracy. The Group insisted on building a stable and robust
team through mechanisms including comprehensive training and
humane care. Internal training, regular position transfer, external
exchange and part-time study and other measures enhanced
our overall performance and provided talents for key positions
of the Group steadily. Meanwhile, priorities were given to internal
promotion over external recruitment, and performance appraisal
and other measures were implemented to keep the current
management team ambitious and strong. To achieve the Group’s
annual goals, the Group had performance bonuses and incentive
schemes in place to commend and encourage employees at all
levels to make outstanding contributions to the Group’s business.
Performance bonuses were distributed on the basis of the realised
earnings and profits objectives of individual business units and the
Group as a whole, as well as the performance appraisal.

The Group’s remuneration policy rewarded our employees and
directors with reference to their performance, qualifications,
demonstrated capabilities, market comparable information and the
performance of the Group. As part of the Group’s remuneration
policy, the Group entered into individual employment contracts
with each of its employees, which covered wages, social security
benefits, workplace safety and hygiene environment, confidentiality
obligations on trade secrets and termination conditions.

During the Year, total staff costs (including directors’ remuneration)
were RMB3,371.8 million (2019: RMB3,416.1 million).
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Report of the Directors

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Uni-
President China Holdings Ltd.
present its report together with the audited consolidated financial

(the “Company”) is pleased to

statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group comprise the manufacturing and sales of
beverages and instant noodles in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). The principal activities of its subsidiaries as of 31
December 2020 are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by business
segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 91 of the annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
RMB37.64 cents per share of the Company for the Year amounting
to a total dividend of approximately RMB1,625.7 million. The
payment of the final dividend is subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. Further details relating to dividends are set out in
Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements. There was no
arrangement with any shareholder of the Company under which he/
she/it has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the Year are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 95 of the annual report and Note 28
to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s distributable reserves
calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands
comprise the share premium, contributed surplus, fair value
reserves and retained earnings totalling RMB7,962,128,000.

FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of the
annual report.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to RMB27,246,538 (2019: RMB601,148).
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Year and as at the date of
the annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Xinhua (President)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui
Mr. Su Tsung-Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Sun-Te

Mr. Chen Johnny

Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
Mr. Lo Peter

In accordance with Article 130 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”), each of Mr. Chen Kuo-
Hui, Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Chen Johnny will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Each of Mr.
Chen Kuo-Hui, Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Chen Johnny being eligible,
will offer himself for re-election. There is no service contract entered
into between each of Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui, Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr.
Chen Johnny, and the Company which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 54 to 58 of
the annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the associated
corporation

RH#R
Number of shares
1420205
18EUTFL 12831HZ2
FELBREBERREZ R AR SEBzER NGIL: Mt FRESL
Percentage of
shareholding
Interest of as at
Name of corporation and Personal child under Corporate 31 December
name of its relevant shareholder Interest 18 or spouse Interest Total 2020
(18 49)
(Approximate)
H—1ERE{  Uni-President
BIRAT Enterprises
Corporation
TRED e Lo Chih-Hsien 4,059,095 93,402,447 - 97,461,542 1.72%

B EXFriEE &SN ) 1220205128310 » #f
BANFESREETHAEREZEZ
MEALTHEETAZERNARBEESK
HEROIEIS2RRERETFTZ2ELMA > I
RIFEEETFA BN ERRB MBI ZR
AABNEFAEE 28 (EERFESH K
BE1&GIEXVED) WM - BEARSHNESZ

RmI KR

iF—1 ¥ hE PG AR/ E Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of
the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company and their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

None of the Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors or their respective associates (as defined under the
Listing Rules) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract/letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years and may
be renewed upon expiry of their term.

Except for the service contracts/letters of appointment with the
Company, during the Year, no other contracts of significance,
transaction and arrangement to which the Company, any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at the date of the annual report, none of the Directors and
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective
associates had interests in businesses, other than being a Director
and/or a director of its subsidiaries and their respective associates,
which competes or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ OR OTHERS’
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, so far as are known to any directors or
chief executive of the Company, the following parties (other than
directors or chief executive of the Company) had interests in the
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

==} Long positions/short positions
420205
12A318Z
%18 513 FATEERYE FRESL
Percentage of
shareholding
Number of as at
ordinary shares of 31 December
Name Capacity the Company 2020
(BE49)
(Approximate)
H—ERNHBRAR (1) REGEE#ER 3,080,733,983(L) 71.32%
Uni-President Enterprises Corporation (Note 1) Interest of controlled
corporations
Cayman President Holdings Ltd. (FffzE1) EEBEBA 3,044,508,000(L) 70.49%

Cayman President Holdings Ltd. (Note 1)

L) RTREQABERMDFGEE-

30 i o # R ERIREIRAF Uni-Pres

Beneficial owner

(L)  denotes a long position in the Company’s shares.
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Notes:

1. Out of 3,080,733,983 shares of the Company (the “Shares”),
3,044,508,000 Shares were held by Cayman President Holdings Ltd.
(“Cayman President”), which is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
Uni-President Enterprises Corporation (“UPE”), 10,047,983 Shares
were held by President (BVI) International Investment Holdings Ltd.
(“President (BVI)”), which is indirectly owned by UPE as to 69.37%,
26,178,000 Shares were held by Kai Yu (BVI) Investment Co., Ltd.
(“Kai Yu (BVI)"), which is indirect wholly-owned by UPE. Accordingly,
UPE was deemed to be interested in all the Shares respectively held
by Cayman President, President (BVI) and Kai Yu (BVI) by virtue of the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no other
substantial shareholder or person (other than directors or chief
executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares in the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Year.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of this Report of the Directors, (i) no contract of
significance was entered into by, and/or subsisted between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries with the controlling shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries during the Year; and (i) there is no contract
of significance in relation to provision of services by the controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Group.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors and senior management arising out of corporate
activities. During the Year and as at the date of this annual report,
permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the
Laws of Hong Kong)) was or is being in force for the benefit of the
Directors.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

UPE is the holding company of Cayman President which in turn is
a substantial shareholder of the Company. As Cayman President
is a connected person of the Company and UPE is an associate
of Cayman President, UPE is also a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions entered into by,
and/or subsisted between, the Group and UPE, its subsidiaries and
associates (excluding the Group) (for the purpose of this Report of
the Directors, hereinafter referred to as “UPE Group”) during the
Year and which are not being exempted under Rule 14A.73 of the
Listing Rules are set out below:
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Framework Sales Agreements dated 24 March 2017
and 25 March 2020

On 24 March 2017, the Company entered into a framework
sales agreement (the “2017 Framework Sales Agreement”)
with UPE, pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell or
procure the sale of, on a non-exclusive basis, to UPE Group,
certain beverages, instant noodles and bakery products and
such other products, as may be agreed by the Group and
UPE Group for a term from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2020 (both days inclusive). The pricing basis and the other
terms of the sales transactions contemplated under the
2017 Framework Sales Agreement shall be subject to the
terms and conditions contained therein and determined in
accordance with the internal control procedures of the Group,
which, in principle, shall be no less favourable to the Group
than those offered to independent third parties by the Group
in comparable transactions of the same period. Further details
of the 2017 Framework Sales Agreement were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 24 March 2017.

The 2017 Framework Sales Agreement expired on 31
December 2020. To cater for the continual demand for the
Group’s food and beverages products from UPE Group,
on 25 March 2020, the Company entered into a framework
sales agreement (the “2020 Framework Sales Agreement”)
with UPE, pursuant to which the Company agreed to sell and
procure members of the Group to sell, on a non-exclusive
basis, to UPE Group, certain beverages, instant noodles,
bakery products and such other products, as may be agreed
by the Group and UPE Group for a term from 1 January
2021 to 31 December 2023 (both days inclusive). The terms
and conditions of the 2020 Framework Sales Agreement
(including the pricing policies) are substantially similar to those
of the 2017 Framework Sales Agreement. Further details of
the 2020 Framework Sales Agreement were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 25 March 2020.
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(ii)

Framework Purchase Agreements dated 24 March
2017 and 25 March 2020

On 24 March 2017, the Company entered into a framework
purchase agreement (the “2017 Framework Purchase
Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to purchase or procure the purchase of, on a non-
exclusive basis, from UPE Group certain raw materials,
packaging materials, finished goods, low-cost consumables
and such other goods as may be agreed by the Group and
UPE Group for a term from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2020 (both days inclusive). The pricing basis and the other
terms of the purchase transactions contemplated under the
2017 Framework Purchase Agreement shall be subject to the
terms and conditions contained therein and determined in
accordance with the internal control procedures of the Group,
which, in principle, shall be no less favourable to the Group
than those offered to the Group by independent third parties
in comparable transactions of the same period. Further details
of the 2017 Framework Purchase Agreement were disclosed
in the announcements of the Company dated 24 March 2017
and 19 May 2017 and the circular of the Company dated 26
April 2017.

The 2017 Framework Purchase Agreement expired on 31
December 2020. Foreseeing the continual demand for the
raw materials and other goods by the Group, on 25 March
2020, the Company entered into a framework purchase
agreement (the “2020 Framework Purchase Agreement”) with
UPE, pursuant to which the Company agreed to purchase
and procure members of the Group the purchase of, on a
non-exclusive basis, from UPE Group, certain raw materials,
packaging materials, finished goods and such other goods as
may be agreed by the Group and UPE Group for a term from
1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023 (both days inclusive).
The terms and conditions of the 2020 Framework Purchase
Agreement (including the pricing policies) are substantially
similar to those of the 2017 Framework Purchase Agreement.
Further details of the 2020 Framework Purchase Agreement
were disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated
25 March 2020 and 22 May 2020 and the circular of the
Company dated 7 May 2020.
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(iii) Framework Logistics Service Agreements dated 24

March 2017 and 25 March 2020

On 24 March 2017, the Company entered into a framework
logistics service agreement (the “2017 Framework Logistics
Service Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to which UPE
agreed to provide or procure the provision of, on a non-
exclusive basis, to the Group transportation and logistics
service (including, but not limited to, storage and design of,
and the provision of support service to, logistics application
systems and such other logistics related ancillary and support
services as may be agreed by the Group and UPE Group)
for a term from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020 (both
days inclusive). The pricing basis and the other terms of the
transportation and logistics service transactions contemplated
under the 2017 Framework Logistics Service Agreement shall
be subject to the terms and conditions contained therein
and determined in accordance with the internal control
procedures of the Group, which, in principle, shall be no less
favourable to the Group than those offered by independent
third parties suppliers to the Group in comparable
transactions of the same period. Further details of the 2017
Framework Logistics Service Agreement were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 24 March 2017.

The 2017 Framework Logistics Service Agreement expired
on 31 December 2020. Considering the continual needs of
the Group for the transportation and logistics services, on 25
March 2020, the Company entered into a framework logistics
service agreement (the“2020 Framework Logistics Service
Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant to which UPE agreed to
provide or procure members of UPE Group to provide, on a
non-exclusive basis, to the Group transportation and logistics
services (including, but not limited to, storage services and
design of, and the provision of technical support service to,
logistics systems) and such other logistics-related ancillary
and support services as may be agreed by the Group and
UPE Group) for a term from 1 January 2021 to 31 December
2023 (both days inclusive). The terms and conditions of the
2020 Framework Logistics Service Agreement (including the
pricing policies) are substantially similar to those of the 2017
Framework Logistics Service Agreement. Further details
of the 2020 Framework Logistics Service Agreement were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 25
March 2020.
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(iv) Framework Technical Support Service Agreements

dated 24 March 2017 and 25 March 2020

On 24 March 2017, the Company entered into a framework
technical support service agreement (the “2017 Framework
Technical Support Service Agreement”) with UPE, pursuant
to which the Company agreed to provide or procure the
provision of, on a non-exclusive basis, to UPE Group
technical support and management services (including but
not limited to the human resources management services
and such other technical support services as may be agreed
by the Group and UPE Group) for a term from 1 January
2018 to 31 December 2020 (both days inclusive). The pricing
basis and the other terms of the technical support service
transactions contemplated under the 2017 Framework
Technical Support Service Agreement shall be subject to the
terms and conditions contained therein and determined in
accordance with the internal control procedures of the Group,
which, in principle, shall be no less favourable to the Group
than those offered to independent third parties by the Group
in comparable transactions of the same period. Further details
of the 2017 Framework Technical Support Service Agreement
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
24 March 2017.

The 2017 Framework Technical Support Service Agreement
expired on 31 December 2020. In view of the continual
demand from UPE Group of the Group’s technical support
services, on 25 March 2020, the Company entered into a
framework technical support service agreement (the “2020
Framework Technical Support Service Agreement”) with
UPE, pursuant to which the Company agreed to provide
and procure members of the Group to agree to provide,
on a non-exclusive basis, to UPE Group technical support
and management services (including, but not limited to,
the human resources management services) and such
other technical support services as may be agreed by the
Group and UPE Group) for a term from 1 January 2021 to
31 December 2023 (both days inclusive). The terms and
conditions of the 2020 Framework Technical Support Service
Agreement (including the pricing policies) are substantially
similar to those of the 2017 Framework Technical Support
Service Agreement. Further details of the 2020 Framework
Technical Support Service Agreement were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 25 March 2020.
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The maximum aggregate annual value (the “Annual Cap”)
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company
or set by the Company (as the case may be) and the
aggregate annual transaction value actually recorded
pursuant to the 2017 Framework Sales Agreement, the
2017 Framework Purchase Agreement, the 2017 Framework
Logistics Service Agreement and the 2017 Framework
Technical Support Service Agreement (collectively, the “2017
CCT Agreements”) for the Year are set out below:

5% 2017 FEMER B & BRERXSEHE FELR
Actual
Transaction
Transaction 2017 CCT Agreements Amount Annual Cap
AREE=ET UAREEET
(RMB million) (RMB million)
2017EEMELREEE B 2017 Framework Sales Agreement
WIHEEE Total sales value 104.8 431.0
2017EMELRIKEE R 2017 Framework Purchase Agreement
MBIREE(EE Total purchase value 3,641.5 5,950.0
2017EMELRYAMARTS 2017 Framework Logistics Service Agreement
HEBTZEE Total transaction value - 54.5
2017 EMELR K MiTX$E 2017 Framework Technical Support Service
R#F1HZETZBE  Agreement Total transaction value 56.9 60.0
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When determining whether the above transactions have
been conducted in accordance with the pricing policies
under the above framework agreements, the management of
the Company would obtain sufficient market intelligence to
ascertain the relevant prevailing market rate, payment terms
and practices, as well as the latest market and independent
third party information. For example, the management would
review quotations from at least two independent suppliers
or service providers and evaluate them from a commercial
perspective, so as to ensure that the products or services
to be procured from the UPE Group are of comparable
prices for such products or services being offered by the
independent third parties of the same period. Where there
are no sufficient comparable transactions available, the prices
of such products or services would be determined on arm’s
length basis with reference to historical prices and cost
analysis. Likewise, the management would also determine the
prices of the products or services to be provided to the UPE
Group by reviewing market information to ensure that they
are of comparable prices for such products being offered to
independent third parties by the Group.

The internal audit team of the Company has reviewed the
continuing connected transactions based on the relevant
documentations and internal control procedures and have
provided findings to the independent non-executive Directors.

The independent non-executive Directors consider that the
methods and procedures established by the Company were
sufficient and effective to ensure that the transactions were
conducted on normal commercial terms and not prejudicial to
the interests of the Company and its minority shareholders,
and that appropriate internal control procedures were in
place. In the opinion of the independent non-executive
Directors, the above transactions pursuant to the 2017 CCT
Agreements were carried out in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms and
were in accordance with the relevant 2017 CCT Agreements
and the pricing policies of the Company, and on terms that
were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Group and
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditors have issued their unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

The auditors of the Company have confirmed that regarding
the continuing connected transactions of the Group, nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe that:

- the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not been approved by the Board;

- for transactions involving the provision of goods or
services by the Group, such transactions were not, in
all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

- the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; or

- the transaction amount of the disclosed continuing
connected transactions as mentioned above have
exceeded the annual cap set by the Company.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Board confirms that the related party transactions with
the subsidiaries and/or associates of UPE during the Year as
disclosed in Note 34(a) to the consolidated financial statements
fall under the definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing
connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has,
where applicable, complied with the disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as
aforesaid, the Board confirms that the related party transactions
conducted during the Year as disclosed in Note 34(b) and Note
34(c) to the consolidated financial statements do not fall under
the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

NON-COMPETITION CONFIRMATION

The Company has received a written confirmation from UPE
confirming that UPE Group has not breached any of the terms of
the non-competition deed entered into between the Company and
UPE on 23 November 2007.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the Year, the aggregated sales attributable to the five
largest customers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
revenue and the aggregated purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the Year, the Company has not entered into any equity-
linked agreement (as defined in section 6 of the Companies
(Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong
Kong)).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
shares of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any of the listed securities of the Company during the Year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
during the Year and as at the date of the annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board reviewed with management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters
including the review of the audited financial statements for the Year
and has recommended their adoption by the Board.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who shall retire and, being eligible, shall
offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

There has been no change of auditors of the Company in any of the
preceding three financial years.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Below is a business review as required by Schedule 5 to the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
The discussion on a fair review of the Group’s business, financial
key performance indicators and performance and indication of
future development of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.
Those discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.

Principal risks and uncertainties

There are a number of factors which may affect the results and
business operations of the Group, some of which are inherent
to beverages and instant noodles business and some are from
external sources. Major risks are summarized below.

(i)  Consumer preferences risk

The Group’s success depends on its ability to anticipate the
tastes and dietary habits of consumers and to offer products
that appeal to their preferences. The Company’s failure to
anticipate, identify or react to the changes in consumer
preferences could result in reduced demand for the Group’s
products, which would, in turn, lead to excessive inventory
levels and lower sales volume. The Group will continuously
introduce new products throughout the seasons and will
further shorten the product development cycle in order to
improve our portfolio of products to satisfy consumers’
changing preferences.
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Competition risk

The industries in which the Group operates in the PRC are
highly competitive. The Group’s ability to compete is, to
a significant extent, dependent on its ability to distinguish
its products from those of the Group’s competitors by
providing high quality products at reasonable prices that
appeal to consumers’ tastes and preferences. The Group’s
competitors have varying abilities to withstand changes
in market conditions. Some of the Group’s competitors
have larger market shares in the PRC with respect to
beverages or instant noodles products, have operated their
respective businesses longer than the Group has, have
wider geographical coverage for its products and/or stronger
distribution networks in the PRC, may have substantially
greater financial and other resources than the Group has and
may be better established in the market. Should the Group’s
competitors manage to seize a larger market share, the
Group’s sales volume may be adversely affected. To manage
competition risks, the Group will continue to research and
develop new technology, introduce new products as well as
maintain a high level of quality of its existing products for a
better competitive edge.

Economy and financial markets risk

The food and beverage industry in the PRC is impacted by
fluctuations in the global economy and financial market. The
slowdown of the worldwide economy, including that of the
PRC, caused a drop in consumer confidence and the level
of disposable income, which translated into lower demand
for the Group’s products, affecting the Group’s results of
operations. As a result, the global and local economies,
including the PRC economy, could continue to experience
significant volatility. Significant volatility or another downturn
in the PRC and global economy in the future could have an
adverse effect on the food and beverage industry in the PRC
and the demand for the Group’s products, which may affect
the Group’s business, results of operations and financial
condition. With a relatively stable cash flow in the food and
beverage industry, the Group will continue to launch new
products to boost revenue, strictly control costs, and maintain
a stable and appropriate capital structure to reduce the
impact from global economic and financial market volatility.
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(iv)  Supply chain risk

All of the packaging materials used in the manufacture of the
Group’s instant noodle products and a large percentage of
packaging materials used in the production of its beverage
products are supplied by independent third parties or related
party suppliers. In the event these independent third parties
or related party suppliers fail to continue to supply or cannot
meet the Group’s demand for such packaging materials, or
the Group is unable to reach agreement upon reasonable
terms with them in relation to such continued supply, the
Group may be unable to find a comparable substitute
supplier of packaging materials, which may lead to delays
in the delivery of its products to customers. Such delays
may affect the Group’s results of operations. The Group
strives to maintain stable and cooperative relationships in the
procurement of important raw materials, develop long-term
strategic partnerships and productivity strategies with three or
more suppliers to reduce the risk on being over dependent on
a single supplier.

Key Relationships

The Group’s success also depends on the support from key
relationships which comprise employees, suppliers, distributors and
customers.

(i) Employees

Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group.
In view of the huge market opportunities for beverages
and food products in the PRC, the Group is continuously
recruiting talented professionals. In respect of the new lower-
level staff, the Group devotes considerable resources in staff
training and monitor their development and progress in a
timely manner in order to familiarise them with the working
environment and build up team spirit. Meanwhile, the Group
recognises the value of its key personnel in maintaining
team morale and competitiveness. Both internal promotion
and external recruitment are applied to select and promote
outstanding personnel for vacant positions and attract
qualified candidates to join the Group. On the other hand, the
Group ensures the continuity of the senior management by
grooming management talents with various measures, such
as continuous internal training and appropriate job rotation as
well as external on-the-job training.
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Suppliers

The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a
number of suppliers and take great care to ensure that they
understand the Group’s commitment to quality and ethics. To
achieve the objective of fair trade and win-win situation with
suppliers, the Group carefully selects suppliers in conformity
with the food safety requirements of “three lines of defense”
(i.e qualification audits, on-site evaluation, food safety testing),
through inviting quotations from suppliers to be procured to
the extent that those products are of comparable nature,
quality, quantity and condition via open tender.

Distributors

The Group sells products to end customers through third-
party distributors. The Group works with distributors like
business partners with the same interest, specifically focusing
on attracting and retaining customers in order to drive sales
growth. The Group requires distributors and sub-distributors
to comply with its policies, including but not limited to
retail selling price, promotional activities and standardised
application of the Group’s system.

Customers

The Group is committed to offer tasty, differentiated and
trendy products to customers. The Group provides safe,
healthy and delicious beverages and instant noodles to
consumers. The Group also stays connected with customers
to keep abreast of the changing consumer preference
through various channels like the Company’s website,
customer hotlines, marketing materials and social media.
In the instant noodles and beverages industry, the Group’s
vast number of customers are from modern channels
(including but not limited to food and groceries stores, stalls
and department stores) which are scattered and separated.
Therefore, the Group does not have major customers which
account for a significant part of the Company’s revenue.
The credit terms and subsequent settlement for customers
have been disclosed in the paragraph headed “Analysis of
operating efficiency” in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Group has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”) on 31
December 2018 to enhance the transparency of the Company and
to facilitate its shareholders (“Shareholders”) and investors to make
informed investment decisions relating to the Company.

According to the Dividend Policy, in addition to final dividends, the
Company may declare interim dividends or special dividends to the
Shareholders from time to time.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject
to the absolute discretion of the Board. In proposing any dividend
payout, the Board will take into account, inter alia, the Group’s
general financial position, current and future operations, working
capital requirements, liquidity position and any other factors it may
deem relevant from time to time. Any payment of the dividend by
the Company is also subject to the applicable laws of the Cayman
Islands and the Articles of Association.

Subject to the factors set out above, the final dividends to be
declared and paid by the Company shall be not less than 20%
of the Group’s audited consolidated profit attributable to the
Shareholders in any financial year.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to time
and there is no assurance that any dividend will be paid in any
particular amount for any given period or that the Company is
obliged to declare any dividend at any time or from time to time.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC while the shares of the Company are listed
on the Stock Exchange. Our operations are regulated by Hong
Kong and PRC laws and regulations. During the year ended 31
December 2020 and as at the date of this annual report, we have
complied with the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC and
Hong Kong that have significant impact to the Group. In particular,
as a food and beverage manufacturer, the Group’s operations
are regulated by the applicable food safety and environmental
protection laws and regulations in the PRC. During the year under
review, the Group did not have any material non-compliance with
such laws and regulations.
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EFEHRS
Report of the Directors

Environmental Policies

Environmental protection is not only the responsibility of the
Group’s business, it is also the responsibility of each of us. The
Group initiates and strives to minimize environmental impact by
using water-saving facilities, saving electricity and encouraging
recycle of office supplies and other materials. The Group also
requires factories of an original equipment manufacturer (OEM)
to operate in strict compliance with the relevant environmental
regulations and rules and possess all necessary permission and
approval from the PRC regulators.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF COMPANY’S
BUSINESS

The discussion of future development of the Company business
can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report. Those
discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events after the reporting period of the
Group.

On behalf of the Board
Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
Lo Chih-Hsien
Chairman

Taipei, Taiwan

19 March 2021
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Executive Directors

Mr. LO Chih-Hsien (%), aged 64, is the chairman and
executive director of the Company. Mr. Lo is also a director and/
or the chairman of the board of directors of most of the wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lo joined the Group
in September 1998 and is responsible for the overall strategic
planning and management of the Group. He has over 35 years
of experience in the food and beverage industry and is currently
the chairman of President Chain Store Corporation (4% —i87a
A BFR/AT), Ton Yi Industrial Corp. #Mi—E XK MNEREA
B]), TTET Union Corporation (K& @ &5 BRAR), Prince
Housing & Development Corp. (K FER KD AR AF)and
ScinoPharm Taiwan, Ltd. (BE#ZRMNAERAE), all of which
are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. He is also
the director of Tait Marketing & Distribution Co., Ltd. (f=5C23%4T
BRPBFE/AT), a company listed on the Taipei Exchange. He is
also the chairman and group chief strategy officer of Uni-President
Enterprises Corporation (#i— 2K HBERAE) (“UPE"),
the substantial shareholder of the Company (as defined in the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), and the director of 101 companies associated with UPE
and its subsidiaries. Mr. Lo holds a master’s degree in business
administration from the University of California, Los Angeles, the
U.S.A. His spouse is Mrs. Shiow-Ling Kao, the director of UPE.

Mr. LIU Xinhua (2J37%), aged 50, is the president of the Group
and the general manager of Uni-President Enterprises (China)
Investments Ltd. (#t—12% (FE) LEBRAQED) (“Uni-President
China Investments”).
director of the Company with effect from 25 March 2017. He has
over 27 years of experience in strategic marketing in the food and

He has been appointed as an executive

beverage industry. Mr. Liu joined the Group in July 1994 and since
then has been involved in sales and marketing for the Group. He
acted as the sales general manager for the Sichuan province of
Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.* (& #F— 1% &
&a A BR/A 8)) from November 2006 until August 2008. From August
2008 to September 2014, he acted as the general manager of the
food business department of Uni-President China Investments.
From October 2014 until June 2016, he acted as a general
manager of the marketing planning office and convener of strategic
marketing committee of Uni-President China Investments. Mr. Liu
holds a doctoral degree in business management from Southwest
Jiaotong University (FEF3 328 A 2) in the PRC.
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Directors’ Profile

EERE

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. SU Tsung-Ming (B5=28%), aged 63, is a non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Su joined the Group in August
2007. He joined UPE Group in August 2000. He is currently the
vice-president of UPE and a director of President Chain Store
Corporation (#—8BmE M BRAE)and ScinoPharm Taiwan,
Ltd. (BEEERMHBRAT), all of which are members of UPE
Group and are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.
Mr. Su is also a director of 23 members of UPE Group. He has
over 35 years of experience in banking and financial management.
Before joining UPE Group, he was the vice-president of the Taipei
branch of Citibank. Mr. Su was the financial specialist of Seibu
Department Store in Tokyo, Japan in 1988 and the senior specialist
of Nortel Networks Asia/Pacific in Tokyo in 1990. Mr. Su holds a
master of business administration degree from the University of
lowa, the U.S.A..

Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui (BREIJE) , aged 52, is a non-executive director
of the Company. Mr. Chen joined the Group in May 2011 as the
chief financial officer of the Group and is also a director and/or
supervisor of certain of the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiaries in
the PRC. From February 2011 to July 2019, he was a director of
Heilongjiang Wondersun Dairy Joint Stock Co., Ltd. (8851 & 52
WELERRMD B RAT) (the Group has disposed all equity interest
in December 2019). Mr. Chen has worked in UPE from November
1997 to April 2011. He was appointed as an executive director of
the Company between August 2013 and June 2017. Since July
2017, Mr. Chen was re-designated as a non-executive director of
the Company and was re-designated as the chief financial officer of
UPE. He is currently a director or a supervisor of 5 wholly-owned
subsidiaries/joint ventures of the Group. Mr. Chen is also a director
of 4 members of UPE Group and a director of President Securities
Corp. which is listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.
He has over 24 years of experience in financial management. Mr.
Chen holds a master’s degree in business administration from
University of Strathclyde in the United Kingdom.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Sun-Te (BREZ7®E), aged 66, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in August
2007. Mr. Chen has over 37 years of experience in the banking
and financial industry and is currently the Chairman of Taipei Fubon
Commercial Bank. He is also an independent director of Lion Travel
Services Co., Ltd. and a director of Fubon Financial Holdings.
Prior to that, Mr. Chen was an independent director of China
Telecom Corporation from March 2012 to July 2019, the president
of Fullerton Financial Holdings Pte. Ltd. (North Asia and Greater
China regions) between 2005 and 2012, the president of Chinatrust
Financial Holdings Co., Ltd. (now known as CTBC Financial Holding
Co., Ltd) in 2005, the chairman of Chinatrust Securities Co., Ltd.
between 2003 and 2005, the country officer and country head
of the corporate bank in Taiwan of Citigroup between 2001 and
2003 and the regional head of financial markets in Asia Pacific of
Citigroup between 1998 and 2001. He gained extensive financial
management experience from various positions held with Citibank
and Citigroup and has acquired general knowledge about the food
and beverage industry through dealing with clients in such industry.
Mr. Chen holds a master’s degree in business administration
from University of Missouri, the U.S.A. and a bachelor’s degree in
political science from National Chengchi University, Taiwan.

e Annual Report 2020 &



BRERLE 6155 N2015F12B R T A
RARBUFEPTEZ - RREABTEREK
SUBRRAREERRARBRIBIE B E
FR2005FMA GBI RIER (T&ZetH) &
B > {F 200533 £2015F2 8 BRI R &
RUSTAEBETLESRAEEERE MK
R REBUATEE ASFRK—RKRRF
% T FE o MM ABRZRIE 2 B » BRICE BB K
BEEEMEHET TEBEEKE]) KPEEIE
EEGREEZERITEE UKREBER
KEBEIERDPAEEREGUA o RS TR 7 L
ZERBRAE (BRHMRSE:1836) ; MEDR
BEEEERARAE BRMHMAIE 1 1060) K&
BHIREREERRAT (BRMMASE 0 308)
ZEIUFERTES ZEQARHRBRME
R ETI o R2017HF 128 £2021F38 > RE R
REABRIRIRERABRAE (BRMSE
1019) (TERZ&)) BWERE > 8 ®rpt2017
F12HE2020F12B HERENHITES
WHR2021F1BREARENIERITES -
R2015E12B E2018FE 118 IEEFEHESE
ETRERERAE CREBAPHESMIZER
BRAE) BRMATR  245) KFr2017E7 8
F2019F38  IEEFTEEM (5E) BRAH
(B3 15k - 3818) MBI IFHNITESE > %
LNBHER IR R £ o 1R2010FE68 &
2019F28 » WIEMAEIENFEZERBRLATH
B IERITES (RMHASE - 8032) » ZAH]
REZFIGEM E o RAE R EREEKRE
EENEREEBE TR LRRERB LA
BEENETEE LB TAZREMRE
5TBM o

i—1 ¥ hEEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Directors’ Profile
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Mr. CHEN Johnny (BfE %), aged 61, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in December
2015. Mr. Chen Johnny is currently an Adjunct Associate Professor
of Department of Finance and Department of Management, Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. Mr. Chen Johnny
joined the management of Zurich Insurance Group (“Zurich”) in
2005. He worked in Zurich from March 2005 to February 2015 in
multiple senior managerial roles in the Asia-Pacific region. His last
position in Zurich was the chairman of the life and general insurance
business in China. Prior to joining Zurich, Mr. Chen Johnny was an
executive member of the Greater-China Management Board and
the Operating Committee of PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”),
as well as a managing partner of PwC’s Beijing office. Mr. Chen
Johnny is also an independent non-executive director of Stella
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1836), Alibaba Pictures
Group Limited (stock code: 1060) and China Travel International
Investment Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 308), all of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chen
Johnny was the chairman of Convoy Global Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1019) (“Convoy”) from December 2017 to March 2021,
during which, he was also the executive director of Convoy from
December 2017 to December 2020 and had been re-designated
as an non-executive director of Convoy in January 2021. From
December 2015 to November 2018, he was an independent non-
executive director of China Minsheng Financial Holding Corporation
Limited (now known as China Vered Financial Holding Corporation
Limited) (stock code: 245) and China Dongxiang (Group) Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 3818) from July 2017 to March 2019, all of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. From June 2010
to February 2019, he was an independent non-executive director of
Viva China Holdings Limited (stock code: 8032) which is listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chen Johnny holds a Master
of Science Degree in Accounting from the University of Rhode
Island and a Bachelor Degree of Accounting from the Johnson &
Wales University and is a U.S. certified public accountant.
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Mr. FAN Ren-Da, Anthony GE{Z#), aged 60, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company in August
2007. Mr. Fan is the chairman and managing director of Asialink
Capital Limited and also an independent non-executive director of
Technovator International Limited (stock code: 1206), Raymond
Industrial Limited (stock code: 229), Shanghai Industrial Urban
Development Group Limited (stock code: 563), China Dili Group
(formerly known as Renhe Commercial Holdings Company Limited)
(stock code: 1387), Tenfu (Cayman) Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 6868), Citic Resources Holdings Limited (stock code:
1205), China Development Bank International Investment Limited
(stock code: 1062), Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 2882), Neo-Neon Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1868) and Semiconductor Manufacturing International
Corporation (stock code: 981). Mr. Fan was an independent non-
executive director of each of Lerthai Group Limited (formerly known
as LT Commercial Real Estate Limited) (stock code: 112) from
March 2013 to June 2017, Guodian Technology & Environment
Group Corporation Limited* (stock code: 1296) from September
2011 to August 2017 and CGN New Energy Holdings Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 1811) from September 2014 to June 2018.
All of the said companies are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Fan holds a master’'s degree in business
administration from the U.S.A..

Mr. LO Peter (B5%2£), aged 65, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in November
2007. Mr. Lo is also an independent non-executive director of
Ajisen (China) Holdings Limited (stock code: 538), and from March
2011 to June 2018, he was the chairman and an executive director
of China Outfitters Holdings Limited (stock code: 1146), both of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo
has over 27 years of experience in the business field and holds a
bachelor’'s degree in mathematical economics and econometrics
from the London School of Economics and Political Science, the
United Kingdom.
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Senior Management

Mr. LIU Xinhua (2/37%), aged 50, was appointed as the
president of the Group since 1 July 2016 and an executive
director of the Company with effect from 25 March 2017. Mr. Liu’s
biographical details are set out in the section headed “Directors’
Profile” of this annual report.

Mr. LIU, Tzu-Chiang (8)7F34%), aged 51, is the chief financial
officer of the Group. Mr. Liu also acts as a supervisor of certain
of the Group’s wholly owned subsidiaries in the PRC. Mr. Liu
joined the Group in June 1998. He has served as the manager
and supervisor of the finance department at Uni-President
Enterprises (Xinjiang) Food Co., Ltd. Gh@#F— X BRBREARQ
@), Nanchang President Enterprises Co., Ltd. (BE#—1 ¥R
FfE/A8]), Shenyang President Enterprises Co., Ltd. CEBa#T—1>
¥ APR/AT]), Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (5%
Mr—rEBHBERAE)and Zhengzhou President Enterprises
Co., Ltd. (BMN#HE— =B R QB between June 1998 and
September 2014, all being the subsidiaries of the Group. From
August 2007 to May 2012, he was also the administrative director
of the Group in the Northeast region and Southwest region of the
PRC. From October 2014 to March 2019, he has been the chief
accountant of the Group. From July 1994 to April 1998, Mr. Liu
had served in UPE Group and has over 27 years of experience in
financial management. Mr. Liu holds a bachelor degree in business
administration from National Cheng Kung University, Taiwan.

Mr. ZHANG Ling (3R1%), aged 52, joined the Group in October
1994. During the period from 1994 to 2009, Mr. Zhang was
responsible for management of marketing in different subsidiaries
of the Company, such as Nanchang President Enterprises Co., Ltd.
(EE#M—12EAIE/AT), Shenyang President Enterprises Co.,
Ltd. CE[S&— X BR/AE) and Wuhan President Enterprises
Food Co., Ltd. (HE#Z—©DxBHRBMRAE). In January
2010, Mr. Zhang served as the Brand Manager of Instant Food
Department of the Group and was promoted to the position
of General Manager in October 2014. Mr. Zhang has over 26
years working experience in the food industry. Mr. Zhang holds
a bachelor’'s degree of engineering from the Hankou College of
Huazhong Institute of Technology of the PRC (now renamed as
Huazhong University of Science and Technology) and a master’s
degree in EMBA from Wuhan University, the PRC.
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Mr. HUANG, Wei (&#), aged 39, joined the Group in June
2004. From June 2006 to October 2009, he was responsible for
the planning and brand marketing of the food product business.
From 2010 to 2013, he served as the manager of the marketing
department at Beijing President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (3t
RFE—BMmEM/ASE) and Kunshan President Enterprises Food
Co., Lid. (EWL#H—BMBMRAE). From 2013 to 2014, he was
responsible for brand management of the Instant Food Department
of the Group. From 2014 to 2016, he was employed as the
general manager of the E-commerce Department of the Group
and concurrently served as the strategic development director
of the marketing strategy office. Since September 2017, he has
been the general manager of the business unit of the Life and
Food Business Department and the E-commerce Department of
the Group. He is currently the general manager of the Life and
Food Business Department. Mr. Huang holds a master degree in
business administration (MBA) from the School of Management,
Fudan University, the PRC.

Mr. ZHAO Nianen (#73 &), aged 44, joined the Group in
April 1999. He had acted as the head of marketing, the head of
operation and the head of dairy drink department of Kunshan
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (ELL#A—1 X B RERAE)
from March 2000 to October 2006, and has been appointed as the
general manager of the bottled water business of the Group since
October 2006. He has been a general manager of the combined
drinks business of the Group since October 2014. He has more
than 22 years of experience in the food and beverages industry and
holds a bachelor’'s degree in economics from Shanghai Maritime
University, the PRC.
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Senior Management’s Profile

Ms. CHEN Jui-Fen (I%%3), aged 48, joined Guangzhou
President Enterprises Corp. (EM#—112EBRA5), a subsidiary
of the Group, in February 2009 and was responsible for the
management of marketing functions of Guangzhou President
Enterprises Corp. (BEM##—1EE B RAF]) and Wuhan President
Ltd. (REHZ—EXBRARRED,

subsidiaries of the Group, prior to October 2011. She was re-

Enterprises Food Co.,

designated as the deputy general manager of the head office of
the Group’s tea business in October 2011 and was promoted to
the position of general manager in July 2013. Before joining the
Group, she has engaged in marketing in various companies such
as Wyeth Nutrition, Taiwan Branch, Ting Hsin International Group
(TBFBEREE) and YFY Gk & E&F) and has 24 years of experience
in the food and fast moving consumer goods industries. In 2006,
she started to work in Mainland China when she joined Wei Chuan
Foods Corporation (k2B m LERMBRAE) of Ting Hsin
International Group (TEFTEIFR £ E)and has since gained 15
years of work experience in Mainland China. Ms. Chen holds both
master’s degree in nutrition and health sciences from Taipei Medical
University in Taiwan and EMBA (Shanghai) of Taiwan’s National
Chung Hsing University.
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Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, “Group”) is committed to ensure a high
standard of corporate governance practices and procedures and
appreciates that good corporate governance is crucial to enhance
investors’ confidence in the Company. In the opinion of the board
(the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company, the
Company has complied with all code provisions of the corporate
governance code (the “Corporate Governance Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules (the “Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) during the year ended 31 December 2020 (the
“Year”).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the Year, the composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Xinhua (President)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui
Mr. Su Tsung-Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chen Sun-Te

Mr. Chen Johnny

Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
Mr. Lo Peter
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The term of office of the Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) is three years. In accordance with the
Corporate Governance Code, any new Director appointed to
fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by shareholders of the Company at
the first general meeting of the Company after the appointment. In
accordance with the articles of association of the Company, at each
annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”), one-third of
the Directors for the time being or, if their number is not three or
a multiple of three, the number nearest to, but not less than, one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The Directors’
remunerations are determined with reference to the Director
Nomination Policy (as defined below) and the Board Diversity Policy
(as defined below) of the Company, the Directors’ qualifications,
duties, responsibilities and experiences, and the prevailing market
conditions.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, investment and
strategic decisions, maintaining the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, and monitoring the
performance of the Group. There are currently four committees
established under the Board, being the audit committee (the
“Audit Committeg”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the investment, strategy and development
committee (the “Investment, Strategy and Development
Committee”). Each committee has its terms of reference and
reports to the Board regularly.

The Company does not have a chief executive officer, whose role
is instead performed by the president of the Group (“President”).
The roles of the Chairman and the President are performed by
separate persons. The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that
the Directors perform their duties properly and ensuring discussions
on material matters take place on a timely basis. The power and
authority to carry out day-to-day operations and implementation of
the strategies and directions set by the Board are delegated to the
management team of the Company (the “Management”) which is
led by the President. The Management assumes full accountability
to the Board for the operation of the Group.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has at all times during the Year met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of the minimum
required number of independent non-executive Directors
which shall be at least one-third of the Board with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.4.3 of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules: (a) having served
the Company for more than nine years could be relevant to the
determination of a non-executive Director’s independence, and (b)
if an independent non-executive Director has served for more than
nine years, his further appointment should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders of the Company. Each of
Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter has
served as the independent non-executive Directors for more than
nine years since 2016, and the shareholders of the Company have
approved their appointment under a separate resolution at the AGM
held on 20 May 2016.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors his respective confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board considers
each of them to be independent under the aforesaid Rule 3.13.
Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony, Mr. Chen Johnny
and Mr. Lo Peter have in-depth understanding of the Company’s
operations and business, and since they are not involved in the
daily management of the Company nor are they in any relationships
or circumstance which would interfere with the exercise of their
independent judgments, the Board is of the opinion that each of
them has the required integrity and independence to continue to
fulfil the role of an independent non-executive director.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has not established a corporate governance committee.

Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance function including developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements. During the Year, the Board
reviewed the Company’s status of compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code.

Every Board member has full access to the advice and services of
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable
rules and regulations are followed and they are also entitled to have
full access to Board papers and related materials so that they are
able to make informed decisions and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities.

SUPPORT AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

The Company is responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training for the Directors. All Directors have been given relevant
guideline materials regarding the roles, duties and responsibilities
of being a Director, the relevant laws and regulations applicable to
them, duty of disclosure of interests and business of the Group.
They have also been updated on the latest development regarding
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. A procedure has been approved by the
Board to ensure the Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstance, at
the Company’s expenses. The Directors confirmed that they have
complied with Code Provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code on directors’ training. During the Year, all of the Directors
have participated in continuous professional development in
connection with their roles, duties and responsibilities in the
Company by attending seminars/in-house briefings/conferences/
forums/trainings over internet and/or reading materials on the
following topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
Each of them has provided relevant records of training to the
Company.
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Name of Directors

FRBEEIER (W)

Topics on training covered (Note)

BEREE (FE) Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien (Chairman) a
RIS E S (A8ATIE) Mr. Liu Xinhua (President) a,c
IR B0 )& St &= Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui a,c
BREEE Y Mr. Su Tsung-Ming a
fRED(EL S Mr. Chen Sun-Te a,c
BRE 7= o & Mr. Chen Johnny a
ST ERE Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony a, b
BREE5E Mr. Lo Peter a,c
M - Note:
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(@ corporate governance/regulatory
(b)  finance
(c) industry-specific

BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Board meetings were held at regular intervals. During the Year,
the Board has held four board meetings for, among other matters,
reviewing and approving the financial and operating performance of
the Company; reviewing and approving of non-exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the Year; reviewing and
approving the disclosures in the interim and annual reports and
the environmental, social and governance report with regards to
the Company’s compliance with the Listing Rules and Corporate
Governance Code; reviewing the Company’s progress in
implementing the corporate governance requirements as set out
in the Corporate Governance Code; making recommendation of
the final dividends for shareholders’ approval at the next annual
general meeting of the Company; and considering and approving
the overall strategies and policies of the Company.
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The attendance of individual Board members at the Board and
Board committees meetings during the year ended 31 December
2020 are set out in the table below:

HE/ BOERRY (1)
Number of meetings attended/held (Note 1)

RE HER
EN%ZEE R4%8% HNZEE YRZEY
EEegeF g3 g3 g3 83 RRBEAET RREHAE
Investment,
Strategy and
Audit  Nomination Remuneration Development Annual  Extraordinary
Board  Committee =~ Committee = Committee ~ Committee General General
meetings meetings meetings meetings meetings Meeting Meeting
HITEE Executive Directors
BRALE Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien 4/4 - 2/2 212 2/2 17 1N
EERE Mr. Liu Xinhua 4/4 - - - 212 1 17
FHTEE Non-executive Directors
REERE Mr. Chen Kuo Hui 4/4 - - - 212 1 17
BEHAE Mr. Su Tsung-Ming 414 3/3 - - 2/2 1 1N
BIHHTEE Independient Non-executive Directors
REERE Mr. Chen Sun-Te 44 3/3 - 212 212 il N
RERRE Mr. Chen Johnny 4/4 3/3 2/2 - 2/2 17 15
BIREE M. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony 4/4 3/3 - 2/2 212 1 17
REERE Mr. Lo Peter 414 33 22 - 22 17 11
5T - Note:
1. RAFEEMNHBERHZ2BESESEMEEA 1. Attendances during the Year were made by reference to the number

RITRHEORH -
BIZEEY

REFE BEREZETHBUIFRITESE
CERE RERRE REBRE KR
Bt Uh—UFRATESFHRRMAER
o B CBEERBEREEGEF -

of meetings held during the Directors’ respective tenures.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Audit Committee comprised Mr. Fan Ren-
Da, Anthony, Mr. Chen Johnny, Mr. Chen Sun-Te and Mr. Lo Peter,
being independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Su Tsung-Ming,
being a non-executive Director. The Audit Committee is chaired by
Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on appointment and removal of
the external auditors, approving the remuneration and terms of
engagement of external auditors, reviewing financial information
and overseeing the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures. The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available for inspection upon request at the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong and on the

websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Year to review
the interim and annual financial statements and the effectiveness of
the internal control practices of the Group. All members of the Audit
Committee attended the meetings during the Year. A summary of
the work performed by the Audit Committee during the Year is set
out as follows:

(i) reviewed with the senior management and finance-in-charge
and/or the external auditors the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of
the interim and annual financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2020 and for the Year respectively;

(i) met with the external auditors and reviewed their work and
findings relating to the annual audit for the Year and the
effectiveness of the audit process;

(i) reviewed with management and finance-in-charge the
effectiveness of the risk management, internal control

systems and the internal audit function of the Group;

(iv) approved the audit plan for the year ending 31 December
2021;

(v)  reviewed the external auditors’ independence, approved the
engagement of the external auditors and recommended the

Board on the re-appointment of the external auditors; and

(v reviewed the Company’s terms of reference of Audit
Committee.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Nomination Committee comprised two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Johnny and
Mr. Lo Peter; and one executive Director, namely Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien.
The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Lo Peter.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, identify individuals
suitably qualified to become members of the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and make
recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to
the Board, or select individuals nominated for directorships and/
or appoint or re-appoint Directors. The specific written terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee are available for inspection
upon request at the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong and the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held two meetings.
All members of the Nomination Committee attended the meetings
during the Year. A summary of the work performed by the
Nomination Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

(i) reviewed the composition and structure of the Board;

(i)  assessed and reviewed of independence of each of the
independent non-executive Directors, consideration was
given to Directors who have served on the Board for more
than nine years;

@iy reviewed the Company’s terms of reference of Nomination
Committee;

(iv) reviewed the Company’s Board Diversity Policy (“Board

Diversity Policy”) and director nomination policy (“Director
Nomination Policy”);
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Board from time to time considers replenishing the composition
of the Board whenever the Company needs to meet the business
demand, opportunities and challenges and to comply with the
applicable laws and regulations. The Nomination Committee has
adopted a director nomination policy on 13 December 2018, which
serves to improve the transparency of the process and criteria
in selecting and recommending candidates as Directors for the
Board’s approval from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board. The Directors and the Nomination Committee
will consider and nominate candidates, according to the Director
Nomination Policy based on objective criteria with due regard to
the benefits of diversity as set out in the Board Diversity Policy of
the Company, to the Board for approval. In identifying individuals
and making recommendations for nominations, the Nomination
Committee considers whether such individuals have the appropriate
qualifications, abilities and perspectives that would enable them
to effectively fulfil their roles and responsibilities as Directors. The
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee (as further set out
in its terms of reference) form the key part under the Company’s
Director Nomination Policy.

Where a candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, his/her independence will be assessed
in accordance with, among others, the factors as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as
may be made by the Stock Exchange from time to time. Where
applicable, the totality of the candidate’s education, qualifications
and experience will also be evaluated to consider whether he/she
has the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise for filing the office of an
independent non-executive Director as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a Board Diversity Policy (as amended on 14
December 2018 to align with the amendments of the Corporate
Governance Code and to comply with Rule 13.92 of the Listing
Rules which came into effect on 1 January 2019) which aims to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain the highest
standards of corporate governance and recognises and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board.

Under the Board Diversity Policy, in order to achieve a diversity of
perspectives, skills and experience within the Board, a number of
factors will be considered when deciding on appointments to the
Board and the continuation of those appointments, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
length of service, skills, regional and industry experience. In forming
its perspectives on Board diversity, the Company will also take into
account its own business model and specific needs from time to
time. Please refer to the Company’s website for details of the Board
Diversity Policy.

In addition, the composition, experience and balance of skills
on the Board are regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board
retains core members with long-standing knowledge of the Group
alongside new Director(s) appointed from time to time who bring
fresh perspectives and diverse experiences to the Board. The
Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy from
time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness, and will propose
and recommend any amendments to the Board Diversity Policy as
it thinks fit to the Board for consideration and approval.

The names of the current Directors and their biographies (including

their roles as well as their skills and experiences) are set out in the
section headed “Directors’ Profile” of this annual report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee comprised two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Sun-Te
and Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony; and one executive Director, namely
Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien. The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr.
Chen Sun-Te throughout the Year.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendation to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are set out in
Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. The specific
written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available for inspection upon request at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong and on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the
Year. Al members of the Remuneration Committee attended the
meetings during the Year. A summary of work performed by the
Remuneration Committee is set out as follows:

(i) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management and the payment of their discretionary bonus;

(i)  assessed the performance of executive Directors, reviewed
the current remuneration structure/package of the executive

Directors; and

(i)  assessed the performance of senior management.
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REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

During the Year, the range of remuneration payable to the members
of the senior management (other than the Directors) of the Group is
set out below:

A

Number of

EENEEE Remuneration range persons
AR #1,000,0007c E A R #§1,499,9997T RMB1,000,000 to RMB1,499,999 2
AR #81,500,00075 F A K #2,000,0007T RMB1,500,000 to RMB2,000,000 3

RE -BRREREZEST

REFERE - BERAERZEENEHH
TEEBEREERIMERLE FRTE
EREERERREBAEURBILIER
TEEREREE RESRLEBLCEL
ERBEEREEM -BERTERKRE
BRREREEGER-

RE - BRRERZEENETFERITMR
ERRE - BRRERZEEMAMEDN
BEHEAFENEGZ -RE BBKERE
BEEZIBHERERIER ZRERSE
REFEINRKE BERRERZIMNEFTTR
HEZ -RE BRAERZEGHNHETER
BEEZ ARAERAFDEETEEEMEIE

i—1 ¥ hEEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

INVESTMENT, STRATEGY AND
DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

During the Year, the Investment, Strategy and Development
Committee comprised Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien and Mr. Liu Xinhua,
being executive Directors, Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui and Mr. Su Tsung-
Ming, being non-executive Directors, and Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr.
Chen Johnny, Mr. Fan Ren-Da, Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter, being
independent non-executive Directors. The Investment, Strategy and
Development Committee is chaired by Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien.

The Investment, Strategy and Development Committee held
two meetings during the Year. All members of the Strategy and
Development Committee attended the meetings during the Year.
The primary functions of the Investment, Strategy and Development
Committee are to review the investment and development plan
and policies of the Group and to review investment proposals and
make recommendations to the Board. The specific written terms of
reference of the Investment, Strategy and Development Committee
are available for inspection upon request at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong.
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AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the external auditors of the Company to
ensure objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process
in accordance with the applicable standards. Members of the
Audit Committee were of the view that the Company’s external
auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), is independent and
have recommended the Board to re-appoint PwC as the external
auditors of the Company subject to the shareholders’ approval at
the forthcoming AGM. During the Year, the fees paid or payable by
the Group to PwC in respect of the audit and non-audit services
rendered to the Group amounted to RMB5.5 million and RMBO0.77
million respectively. No significant remuneration was paid to PwC
for the provision of non-audit related service to the Company during
the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
OF LISTED ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE”)

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules to regulate the Directors’ securities
transactions. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry
by the Company, that they have fully complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code during the Year and up to
the date of this annual report.

Senior management who, because of their office in the Company,
are likely to be in possession of inside information, have also been
requested to comply with the provisions of the securities dealing
code adopted by the Company, which is no less exacting than the
Model Code, when dealing in the Company’s shares.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and
effective risk management and internal control system of the Group.
The system includes a defined management structure with limits of
authority, and is designed to help the Group to identify and manage
significant risks to achieve the Group’s overall business objectives,
determine the Group’s risk profile, oversee risk management
framework structure, review key risks and mitigation strategies
and to ensure risk management effectiveness and compliance with

relevant laws and regulations.

A bottom-up and top-down approach is utilised to ensure a holistic
risk management process. The bottom-up approach is supported
by key business units to identify and prioritise risks while the top-
down approach reviews and assesses if risks are comprehensively
identified, prioritised and properly addressed by key business units
to accomplish the Group’s objectives. The management team is
regularly monitoring emerging risks for continuous risk assessment
purpose and for building the risk-management based internal audit
plan and periodically assess the adequacy and effectiveness of
risk management and internal controls for ongoing risk assurance
purposes. This enhances the effectiveness of the Group’s risk and
control framework.

The Group’s risk management and internal control system is
designed to reduce risks, safeguard the Group’s assets, prevent
and detect fraud and protect shareholders’ investment as well
as to ensure that proper accounting records are maintained and
applicable legislation and regulations are complied with. During the
Year, through discussions with the management, the internal audit
team and external auditors and with reference to a report submitted
by the internal audit team, the Board has conducted assessments
and reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control system in various perspectives, including,
among others, financial control, operational and compliance
controls and risk management. The risk management and internal
control systems are reviewed by the Board annually and each

review covers a whole financial year.
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The internal audit unit of the Company, which is subordinated to
the Board, formulates the internal audit plan of the Group based
on the strategic objectives analysis, business flow analysis, risk
assessment and performance evaluation and the self-inspection
mechanism with comprehensive risk management functions under
the authority of the Board, the guidance of the Audit Committee
and co-ordination with the external auditors. It regularly reports
to the Audit Committee and the Board for its audit findings and
recommendations on internal control. The system is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than to eliminate risks
of failure in the Group’s operational systems and to achieve the
Group’s business objectives.

During the Year, the internal audit unit of the Company continuously
optimised job responsibilities and functions of different departments
according to the annual audit plan approved by the Board. Such
audit work covered food safety, financial, operation, statutory
compliance and risk management of the Group at all levels and
functions, taking into account of the manpower cost-effectiveness.
During the Year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems and is
of the opinion that the resources for and staff qualifications of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function are
adequate and sufficient. Based on information furnished to it and
on its own observations, the Board is satisfied with the present
risk management and internal control systems of the Group and
considers them effective and adequate. During the Year and as
at the date of this annual report, nothing has been found which
requires substantial improvement.
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The Company adopted a policy for the Directors, senior
management and other employees of the Group on disclosure of
inside information to ensure that inside information is handled and
disseminated properly. During the Year, the Company regarded
information of an event as inside information if such event might
impact the price or trading volume of the shares of the Company.
Should public disclosure of inside information be required,
announcements in relation to inside information, being approved
by the executive Directors under powers delegated by the Board
from time to time, would be published by the Company as soon
as reasonably practicable pursuant to Rules 13.09 and 13.10
of the Listing Rules and the Inside Information Provisions (as
defined under the Listing Rules) under Part XIVA of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(“SFO”).

The Group has also adopted an internal policy for certain
employees who, because of their office in the Company, may from
time to time encounter inside information (as defined in the SFO).

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to ensure that the Group complies
with disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations. The Company communicates with
the shareholders of the Company mainly in the following ways:
(i) the holding of the AGM and extraordinary general meeting(s)
(the “EGM”), if any, which may be convened for specific purpose
and provide opportunities for the shareholders of the Company
to communicate directly with the Board; (i) the publication of
announcements, annual reports, interim reports and/or circulars as
required under the Listing Rules and providing updated information
of the Group on the website of the Stock Exchange at “http://www.
hkexnews.hk”; and (i) the availability of latest information of the
Group and, if appropriate, press releases of the Company at the
Company’s website at “www.uni-president.com.cn”.

e Annual Report 2020 £ #§

rr



/8

TEELSHRS

Corporate Governance Report

KRB ZRBERGERARBARERTHK G E
EEETAERRMEZEBERE NEAEE R
HEFEAGER2020FE5822H BT &EF
GREBELKLE (EF) BIFELE (42
ARIR) PRENE LA BRI E R
BREELRE - BCEREABREENRE
EHERFEBEARE N E LOEAQF
FREBIRM c KA B ZINEIZ BT R AR ML
MEHE2020FEREBEARE

RAFEE  BRERNAKEBER2020F5822
Eﬁ%ﬁ:wm& (HEHafF) &35 FF
ERRFEMETZ RBE2021F1A18E
FE2023F12B31HEFENGHFTFERS
RE BRAEBERESIRE T8
RERS — RN A AR S
202038250 &2020FE5H822B 2 A&
HHEfZA2020F587H 2 @R A EE o b9k >
EExgrBmE BESLLEE (FF 2
WESE (BRI FEBLE CBRERL
FoREBEE - RERLE BLCERE
EBEEfAE HELEERRFIAEES
RABE YRR HOME 7 E 58 RE
EXZEENBILINHEBEBRRBWEIR
BHFERERNAE -

iF—1 ¥ hE PG AR/ E Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for constructive communication between the shareholders of the
Company and the Board. During the Year, the AGM was held on
22 May 2020. Members of the Board, namely Mr. Lo Chih-Hsien
(Chairman), Mr. Liu Xinhua (President), Mr. Chen Kuo-Hui, Mr. Su
Tsung-Ming, Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Chen Johnny, Mr. Fan Ren-
Da Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter, were present at the AGM to answer
questions raised by the shareholders of the Company at the AGM.
The Company’s external auditors and the Company Secretary also
attended the 2020 AGM.

During the Year, an EGM was held on 22 May 2020 for approving,
among others, certain non-exempt continuing connected
transactions of the Company and the estimated maximum
aggregate annual transaction values for the years commencing 1
January 2021 and ending on 31 December 2023, details of which
have been summarised in the section headed “CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” in the Report of the Directors and
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 25 March
2020 and 22 May 2020 and the circular of the Company dated 7
May 2020. In addition, all members of the Board, namely Mr. Lo
Chih-Hsien (Chairman), Mr. Liu Xinhua (President), Mr. Chen Kuo-
Hui, Mr. Su Tsung-Ming, Mr. Chen Sun-Te, Mr. Chen Johnny, Mr.
Fan Ren-Da Anthony and Mr. Lo Peter, were present at the EGM
to answer questions raised by the independent shareholders of the
Company. The independent financial advisor appointed for the said
continuing connected transactions and the Company Secretary
also attended the EGM.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(1)

@)

Procedures for shareholders to convene an EGM

According to the Articles of Association, any two or more
members of the Company or any one member of the
Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee(s)) may request for an EGM to be convened upon
depositing at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong a written requisition specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionist(s), provided that as
at the date of deposit of the requisition, such requisitionist(s)
hold not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at a general
meeting of the Company.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene the EGM, the requisitionist(s) or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene an EGM, but any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the date of the deposit of the requisition
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the Board’s failure to convene an EGM shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders’ enquiries about their shareholdings can
be directed to the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited. Other shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the
Company Secretarial Office by post to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong or by fax to +852
2893 1150.
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3)

Procedures for putting forward proposal at general
meetings

There are no provisions allowing shareholders of the
Company to put forward proposals at general meetings under
the Memorandum of Association (the “Memorandum”) and
Articles of Association or the Companies Act of the Cayman
Islands. If shareholders of the Company wish to do so, they
may request to convene an EGM as stipulated above and
specify the proposals in such written requisition. Pursuant
to Article 116 of the Articles of Association, no person shall,
unless recommended by the Board, be eligible for election
to the office of director at any general meeting unless during
the period, which shall be at least seven days, commencing
no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of
the meeting appointed for such election and ending no later
than seven days prior to the date of such meeting, there
has been given to the Company Secretary notice in writing
by a member of the Company (not being the person to be
proposed), entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given, of his intention to propose such
person for election and also a notice in writing signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the Company had not amended its constitutional

documents.
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ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flow for that period. A statement from the
Company’s external auditors about their reporting responsibilities
is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report”
of the annual report. In preparing the financial statements for the
Year, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently and have made prudent and reasonable
judgements and estimates and have prepared the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, the role of the Company Secretary was performed
by Mr. Fung Kwan Ho (“Mr. Fung”). Mr. Fung is a member of Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He serves as a full-time
employee and assists the Board in functioning effectively and
efficiently. According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Fung has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during
the Year.
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To the shareholders of Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Uni-President China
Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 91 to 224, which comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020;
° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
FER K GGt IH BT » B PR FAE T

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

HE : +852 2289 8888 » HH : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Revenue recognition: Sales of goods

o Deferred income tax assets
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Key Audit Matter
FAREHEIR

B R Rk 1

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
HKANBE A RIERRESSEE

Revenue recognition: Sales of goods

Wat BEE | Ban i &

Refer to Note 2.23 (Summary of significant
accounting policies) and Note 5 (Revenue
and segment information) to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

B2 BEEGAMBRRMEE2.23 (£
BETHERME) R (Wm kD EE
K o

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group recognised revenue from sales of
goods amounted to RMB22,762 million.

B E2020F12A31BLEFEE > SEEERD
EmiHE W@ At AR 22,7628 8 T o

Revenue is recognised when the Group
satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring the control of promised good
or service to a customer in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for that
good or service.

2 BEENRTRAEFREEERIRBE
FIENENEE BEFfisiERR S£H
RPAMXBZFEmNBRBERESHAR
B> 7 P ESDAERA RV 84 & Ui as o

We focused on this area due to the huge
volume of revenue transactions generated
from sales of numerous kinds of products to
a large number of customers, including direct
customers and distributors in many different
locations.
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We understood, evaluated and validated management’s controls in
respect of the Group’s sales transactions. In addition, we tested the
general control environment of the Group’s information technology
systems and the automated controls that were related to revenue

recording.
BT -THIRIEEEY SEEBREERZ 2 -
o VAR SEEGEERMARZ —REHIRE > 1A

BWmsL A Mz B8hiEs -

We conducted testing of revenue transactions on a sample basis by
examining the relevant supporting documents including customer
contracts and orders, goods delivery notes and good receipt
records. In addition, we circularised confirmations on a sample
basis on trade receivables balances as at the balance sheet date.
BMBeE R Ra KB - REBRRFEWNCREN
BIAERAEE BA S M ¥ U i P SR E 1T ASORIE o AN AN AE B B
IR EEFEWE ZIRM G E HE R o

Furthermore, we tested sales transactions that took place shortly
before and after the balance sheet date, by reconciling recognised
revenue with the goods delivery notes and good receipt records,
to assess whether revenue was recognised in the correct reporting
periods.

IS M HEEEERAABRERRHABARNE G 7 ETH
o B E S B SUGEER TS LU ST EAER S B S
TEEE HAIRESD o

Based on the work performed, we found the Group’s revenue from
sales of goods being tested were supported by the evidences that
we obtained.
RBEHMIPFAITHE S TR BRMTH
mEREREX

EEEAHEEmEEW
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KB A R IERRE T FE

Deferred income tax assets

BEFFHREE

Refer to Note 2.20 (Summary of significant
(Critical
accounting estimates and assumptions) and

accounting policies), Note 4.1

Note 20 (Deferred income tax) to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

FE2R BERGEMBE|RRWT2.20 (FE
S ERSE) MisH41 GIEEHEERA
) K MI5E20 GRIEFTISHA) ©

As at 31 December 2020, deferred income tax
assets of approximately RMB150 million were
recognised for tax losses that can be carried
forward in respect of certain subsidiaries in
Mainland China, to extent that, realisation of
the related tax benefits through the availability
of future taxable profits is probable. The Group
did not recognise deferred income tax assets
of approximately RMB167 million in respect
of tax losses that can be carried forward but
the availability of future taxable profit is not
probable.

22020128310 BEEERERKHAR
BREREBRNEMIRFTSEE LR KE
ETHWE RS HEARRME A BRENZR
BEEETNRELEMSENEESBORARE
15088t EEBERAMIABELER
3R HA 61 & 40 AR P 15 88 2 70 T 5 48 i 50 3R IE P
BFREENAREI67TEE T

i—1 ¥ hEEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

We obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
control and assessment process of the recognition of deferred
income tax assets and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors.

A7 REEETRNEIEFSNE E R BN ES AT EB
2o WidmERMA T REENZEE REMATREE RN KTE
R H IR E K BRI A T R B o

As part of our risk assessment in this area, we compared the
current year actual results with the prior year forecast to consider,
with hindsight, whether key assumptions included in that forecast
had been subject to management bias and assessed the
effectiveness of management’s estimation process.
ERRBTEN—E D RPUERAFEEREGEUFFEZ
BRHFEA MR ERFEGRANFBAPZARRRESEETEEE
BRI HEEEETHBENE N

We then evaluated and challenged management’s profit forecasts
for the next five years of individual entities that have accumulated
tax losses. Our assessment focused on certain key assumptions,
such as revenue growth rates and gross profit margin, by
comparing them to these entities’ historical operating results
and future operating plans, together with economic and industry
forecasts, where appropriate. We also considered the potential
impact of reasonably possible downside changes in these key
assumptions.
EMTEREREEEHE R MBEENERFATMEN
REAFRAMBRZ SEM ARV EREUIRELEETE
BEER IR AEEEZNENZ TERBLEREMATAR
NEELHIBEBRRREESTE TASHKCERITEZRA (HE
) o B Pt HE A EEE R EELEN TEBRE QT
EEMTG RN BT EETT G
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
HKANBE A RIERRESSEE

Significant judgement is required in
determining the recognition of deferred
income tax assets, considering whether
future taxable profit will be available against
which the accumulative tax losses can be
utilised. Management prepared a 5-year profit
forecast to assess the probability of generating
sufficient taxable profits in the foreseeable
future. The major assumptions involved were
revenue growth rate and gross profit margin.
LPMIREPTIS I B ENRIY kB E HIE
EERIRKEERELE CHNENIRTG
BEUARIMI R NG EE - BEEREL
FimATER UFER A FERABRELEH
FERMRM A REY - T B|RR P KU m1g
RERENK-

We focused on this area due to the high
inherent complexity of the model, and high
degree of uncertainty and subjectivity of the
estimations on the forecast of the availability
and timing of future taxable profits, including
the key assumption of revenue growth rates
and gross margin.
ZRIZRURG +0EM  BHFERAIRRK
EMRASENERM REFENMGE (8
BHRALBEZNEN R FHOBARRR
FESENEEMEMTEE 8- T 1F AR
HESTEIR
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We have also verified the existence and amounts of tax losses,
together with their expiry dates, and the income tax rates applicable
to the entities by examining the tax returns submitted by the
relevant entities and reviewing the correspondences with the tax
authorities.

BT EBBRZEFRAEEEEHREUKREATERBKB ZE
B UBRERBHEENTE SENEREM BN FRAKRER
EFEI LIRSy

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures related to the
recognition of deferred tax assets in the context of HKFRSs.
BPRBEEAMBREEL T GEMBRREREBEEENKER
BRE

Based on our work performed, we found that management’s
judgement and estimation for the recognition of deferred tax assets
were supported by the evidences that we obtained.
RIBRMFAMITHE LF HMIR R EEEH B IELERER
EEBSIZHETREstEERER B X F -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Esmond S.C. Kwan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 19 March 2021
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Consolidated Income Statement
B E2020F 128318 LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
B 5% AREFT AR®ETFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
W= Revenue 5 22,761,822 22,019,737
& A A Cost of goods sold 6 (14,695,891)  (14,101,447)
EF Gross profit 8,065,931 7,918,290
HMFE— 258 Other gains - net 7 106,695 14,142
Hnlk A Other income 8 366,515 360,095
Hpa Other expenses 6 (122,599) (111,402)
HE RTHERERS Selling and marketing expenses 6 (5,350,387) (5,367,608)
TR Administrative expenses 6 (957,882) (1,007,196)
T Operating profit 2,108,273 1,806,321
FAE WA Finance income 229,626 209,472
=% Finance costs (57,212) (57,466)
MEUWA—F5R Finance income — net 10 172,414 152,006
MR EARZ Share of profits of investments
(L E R A accounted for using the
equity method 18 45,772 13,033
FRERS IR ANET Profit before income tax 2,326,459 1,971,360
PSR Income tax expenses 11 (700,756) (605,148)
TATREHEFEA Profit for the year attributable
FE(L T to equity holders
of the Company 1,625,703 1,366,212
FEEXRATESZFTEA Earnings per share for profit
e EF 2 SREF attributable to equity
MUERAREEYE) holders of the Company
during the year
(expressed in RMB per share)
—BARKRE#E - Basic and diluted 12 37.64 cents”?  31.63 centsy

FO8FE224B I MERMAGEMBRERZ
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consolidated financial statements.

e Annual Report 2020 £ #§

The notes on pages 98 to 224 are an integral part of these

91



FEEEW@mR

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
H E2020F12831H LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
B 5% AREBTT AEB®TT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FEEF Profit for the year 1,625,703 1,366,212
Hih2m (F518) Ik - Other comprehensive (losses)/
income:
FEE#H FIEEHEm ZIEH  Items that may not be reclassified to
profit or loss
HERAFEAAHMEE  Gain on disposal of financial assets
W ErEEFIE at fair value through other
— BRI FEE comprehensive income, net of tax 19 = 92,058
BATESA Fair value losses on financial
Httemk=mn assets at fair value through other
TRIBEZ AT EEE comprehensive income, net of tax
—BRIRFER 19 (3,099) (929)
FEHMRE (§518) Wz Other comprehensive (losses)/
—bRRIFEE income for the year, net of tax (3,099) 91,129
EATESEFEAELZ Total comprehensive income
FEZEmKELE%E for the year attributable
to equity holders
of the Company 1,622,604 1,457,341

FI8E224B 2 NsE B AR S
—&k e

F#I_FEZ  The notes on pages 98 to 224 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
1202012 831H As at 31 December 2020

2020 2019
iz ARBFTT ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
ME--BERRE Property, plant and equipment 14 7,977,445 8,902,118
EREEE Right-of-use assets 15 1,759,218 1,832,541
=L/ Investment properties 16 294,411 313,609
BEEE Intangible assets 17 8,756 14,713
DR EARNKEE Investments accounted for using
the equity method 18 793,602 780,118
BAFEFAEMEME Financial assets at fair value through
WamEmEE other comprehensive income 19 2,546 6,027
IRIEFTISIRE E Deferred income tax assets 20 371,517 344,188
HMpEEIE—JEBNAAEE > Other receivables
— non-current portion 24 15,833 15,816
REEHER Long-term time deposits 26 4,720,000 2,530,000
15,943,328 14,739,130
MBIEE Current assets
=8 Inventories 22 1,943,492 1,738,962
FEWE 3R R 24k Trade and bills receivables 23 580,509 569,064
BENREBE ek Prepayments, deposits and
HEWRIa other receivables 24 623,109 710,983
EHART W EIFR 5 FR aX Current income tax recoverable 39,288 45,403
BAFEFAERN Financial assets at fair value
THMEE through profit or loss 25 1,621,634 -
BE KMIRTTHE Cash and bank balances 26 1,348,431 3,953,500
6,156,463 7,017,912
NEAFEFLENEE Assets classified as held for sale 4,580 -
6,161,043 7,017,912
mEE Total assets 22,104,371 21,757,042
rEE EQUITY
TATREEFEA Equity attributable to equity
P& 1 = holders of the Company
f& s Share capital 27 39,764 39,764
R RERR Share premium account 27 4,829,899 4,829,899
H i Other reserves 28 3,153,570 2,767,524
REBEF Retained earnings 5,863,300 5,995,743
Y Total equity 13,886,533 13,632,930

i—1 ¥ hEEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
720205 12831H As at 31 December 2020

2020 2019
s ARBFT ARETT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
afE LIABILITIES
EREEE Non-current liabilities
EIEFTEIR B A Deferred income tax liability 20 297,996 228,788
HESE—JEENEEE D Lease liabilities — non-current portion 15 16,343 21,865
HEI R IE—IJERNEAER > Other payables — non-current portion 30 237,478 232,357
551,817 483,010
mENaRE Current liabilities
BT B Z IR Trade payables 29 1,879,727 1,723,416
HthE( S IB K EST & Other payables and accruals 30 2,721,287 2,546,002
==L Contract liabilities 5(b) 2,426,669 2,104,004
== Borrowings 31 487,072 1,162,867
HEaE Lease liabilities 15 28,973 22,376
EHIFTEMAas Current income tax liabilities 122,293 82,437
7,666,021 7,641,102
wmas Total liabilities 8,217,838 8,124,112
EmkaFEgEE Total equity and liabilities 22,104,371 21,757,042

94
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The notes on pages 98 to 224 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

FOIE224BR G BEIRFTEN2021438
1ORKE=gE THTIIWATIREKE

FREE-

The consolidated financial statements on pages 91 to 224 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 19 March 2021 and were
signed on its behalf.

BEx BHREE
LO Chih-Hsien LIU Xinhua
HITEF HITEF

Executive Director Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

B E2020F 128318 LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

FAREGEE ARL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
s R in e Hithfh s REEF ait
Share Share Other Retained
B capital premium reserves earnings Total
Mz ARBFr ARETR ARETr ARBTn ARET:
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2019FE1B1H 2 &5k Balance at 1 January 2019 39,764 4,829,899 2,506,851 5,845,793 13,222,307
2mKE Comprehensive income
FEHT Profit for the year - - - 1,366,212 1,366,212
HEth2ElE Other comprehensive income
—HEBRAFEF ARM - Gain on disposal of financial
2ENENEHREEY assets at fair value through other
MG -3 e comprehensive income, net of tax 19 - - 92,058 - 92,058
—BATESAEMEE - Fair value losses on financial
WalEHEEL assets at fair value through other
NFERE-FRRZEE comprehensive income, net of tax 19 - - (929) - (929)
Hitn2Ek 8% Total other comprehensive income - - 91,129 - 91,129
FEZ2ENGEEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 91,129 1,366,212 1,457,341
HESRMBEERFBA A Transfer of net fair value losses
fEEZATHERBBEUR  previously taken to reserves, and
HERATE AL gains on disposal of financil
FENENEREEY assets at fair value through other
HEBEERERT comprehensive income, to retained
earnings upon disposal of the
financial assets 19 - - (70,700) 70,700 -
ABEFNETZRS Transaction with owners
BRELTHE Appropriation to statutory reserves 28(b) - - 240,244 (240,244) -
E018ERRZRE Dividends relating to 2018 - - - (1,046718)  (1,046,718)
120195128318 2458  Balance at 31 December 2019 39,764 4,829,899 2,767,524 5005743 13,632,930
1220201818 2 456k Balance at 1 January 2020 39,764 4,829,899 2,767,524 5,995,743 13,632,930
2HEKE Comprehensive income
FERA Profit for the year - - - 1,625,703 1,625,703
Athz2ERE Other comprehensive income
—BATESAHMEE - Fair value losses on financial assets
WENEHEEL at fair value through
NTEBE-RRFE other comprehensive income,
) net of tax 19 - - (3,099) - (3,099)
— R ERATEsH AHM - Transfer of loss on disposal of eqity
2ANGHNRAREN investments at fair value through
BEREEERIRT other comprehensive income to
retained earnings 19 - - 3,035 (3,035) -
Hitn 2 EESREE Total other comprehensive loss - - (64) (3,035) (3,099)
FEZZENGEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - (64) 1,622,668 1,622,604
BEFANETZRS Transaction with owners
BRELERE Appropriation to statutory reserves 28(b) 386,110 (386,110) -
20195 BRIZEE Dividends relating to 2019 - (1,369,001)  (1,369,001)
#2020512831H 248  Balance at 31 December 2020 39,764 4,829,899 3,153,570 5,863,300 13,886,533

FO8FE 2248 7 MY sE A 2
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i—1 ¥ hEEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

YAAN
[0 =]

MBEmRERZ

The notes on pages 98 to 224 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
H E2020F12831H LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

96

2020 2019
M5 AREBTT AEB®TT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
EEEHMZAETRE Cash flows from operating
activities
EEEL VRS Cash generated from operations 32 3,885,530 3,574,416
BENMEME Interest expenses paid (57,397) (73,382)
BEPrER Income tax paid (612,906) (631,693)
EEEHMESL . FIRE Net cash generated from
operating activities 3,215,227 2,869,341
REEHZRERE Cash flows from investing
activities
HEFREEE ME- Proceeds from disposal of
B K 5845 2 PriS =/ 18 right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment 32 308,296 291,903
BEYE -BMEKRRKRBELURE  Purchases of property,
KREYE plant and equipment and
investment properties (317,730) (504,025)
EERLEE Purchases of intangible assets (4,605) (7,433)
HEZRAFEASAHMEE  Proceeds from disposal of financial
W EREEY assets at fair value through other
FTigs1a comprehensive income 382 333,960
Ur B — R EEHIEREZEYN  Payment for acquisition of additional
S NE interest in a jointly controlled entity 18 - (39,299)
xﬁE%JfEﬁﬁ Y Decrease/(Increase) in
R, (g restricted bank deposits 500 (467)
§|J,HH HiB®E =18 Increase in time deposits with maturity
TEHFERZ L more than 3 months (155,911) (1,563,720)
BEEATESABTN Purchase of financial assets at fair
THEE value through profit or loss (2,626,483) -
HERAFEEFAERN Proceeds from disposal of
TMEBEZMEMIE financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 1,062,469 -
BEeEhEK Dividends received from
—XEE N WA Z R E joint ventures and an associate 18 25,110 20,051
RadtERBEAT E’\J Decrease in investments in joint
KERD ventures and an associate 7,178 -
SERBFAZ RRE Net cash used in investing activities (1,700,794) (1,469,822)

iF—1 ¥ hE PG AR/ E Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

B E2020F 128318 LEFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
B 5 AREFTT AR®BTFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MEEHZRERE Cash flows from financing
activities
IRTTEEENIA Proceeds from bank borrowings 32 12,313,727 17,999,981
BIERTEE Repayments of bank borrowings 32 (12,989,345)  (18,823,680)
HENTEAEHD Principal elements of lease payment 32 (39,315) (34,974)
AARNEERFTEA Dividends paid to equity holders
TR of the Company (1,369,030) (1,046,718)
MEEEMB . FIRE Net cash used in financing activities (2,083,963) (1,905,391)
HERIREEEYR L FEE  Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents (569,530) (505,872)
FZzRERIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year 1,056,780 1,563,945
ReKBSEEYZ Exchange losses on cash and
PE 2 518 cash equivalents (950) (1,293)
FRZBSRIRESZEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year 26 486,300 1,056,780
FO8E224B 2B A4G S FEIREX 2 The notes on pages 98 to 224 are an integral part of these

—5%

i—1 ¥ hEEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

consolidated financial statements.
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#%1) e

AABDEETREEZHRE R BEE
AT DF2007FE12B17TBHES B
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M (L)) -

AR ABMRAIN RESHBHREUA
RETT TARBT T 25°

GENERAL INFORMATION

Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 July 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s
registered office is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together as the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the manufacturing and sale of beverages and food in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) (the “PRC Beverages
and Food Businesses”).

The Company completed its global initial public offering
and its shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
17 December 2007 (the “Listing”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (“RMB’000”), unless otherwise stated.

H— ¥R EERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 &%
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21 REEE

FEBZEASVHBRENDRES
BEEMAERMNEBHMBER
SRR (TEBMBREEN) &
FE(REHEAG) IR ERE R
R-ZFHEEMBREECRES
RARERK LA FEFEDN
ETEMEEKRBRRIN (B
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BREABEERAE TRRIMG
H-BNREEEBERALE
B g5t BURBAZ R IF L FI B o 12
MY sE4FR I EE 70 S B 5L
SEEMMENER SRR
BYBRRBEAZBRMNGE
AR o

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (the “HKFRS”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial
assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments)
measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note
4,

Hi— ¥ hEERA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 F 3§ 99
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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21

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(@  New and amended standards adopted by the Group

A number of new or amended standards became

applicable for the current reporting period. The Group

did not change its accounting policies or make
retrospective adjustments as a result of adopting these

standards.

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8  Definition of Material
(Amendments)

HKFRS 3

Definition of a Business

(Amendments)

Revised Conceptual

Framework Framework for
Financial Reporting
HKFRS 9, HKAS Interest Rate Benchmark
39 and HKFRS 7 Reform
(Amendments)
HKFRS 16 Covid-19-related Rent
(Amendments) Concessions

iF—1 ¥ hE PG AR/ E Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Revised Conceptual
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EEEHHERESE (@) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
21 REEZE (B 2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
21.1 Bt ERIBEZEE (B) 2.1.1 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(Continued)
(b) T3 B EEMEIL0204F 1 (b)  The following new standards, new interpretations
A 1H FF35 895 B 4F B 1 ok and amendments to standards and interpretations
E3 BIN KB BT FRANEY have been issued but are not effective for the
FETHER~ R 2 Fr a2 FE financial year beginning on 1 January 2020 and have
RAEETRAEFE - not been early adopted:
Effective for
ANk annual periods
WA (] beginning on
EEBELN or after
BREHENE  BRAEAREY  AEIAIA HKAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of Liabilties 1 January 2022
§ (B:78) E3E) as Current or
Non-current
BREHENR0E NP ERRRE  ANEIAMH HKAS 16 Property, Plant and 1 January 2022
(:7%) BRI (Amendments) Equipment:
BB Proceeds before
intended use
BREHENEYS  BRMSA-EL  awEAE HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts 1 January 2022
(37 HIpAE (Amendments) - Cost of Fulfiling a
Contract
EAMPREENES WHOREZRL  awEAE HKFRS 3 Reference to the 1 January 2022
(:7%) (Amendments) Conceptual
Framework
ARURREEN  RReR 2031 BIA HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts 1 January 2023
Bi78t
BRMERLEN  REZAEEED fE HKFRS 10 and HKAS  Sale or contribution To be determined
F0RRERGHE  FURELEL 28 (Amendments) of assets between
g0t (Bi1h)  HzEENEY an investor and its
BA associate or joint
venture
HOBEENNEES 00FIATE Annual Improvements 1 January 2022
LEARHREED to HKFRS Standards
WEEHE 2018-2020
REBEFEMER 2B R The Group is assessing the full impact of the new
HEARZEZEBINZEF standards, new interpretations and amendments to
Zo standards and interpretations.

Hi— ¥ hEERA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 F 3§ /I O,I
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FFFEEEREERERNAT
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity where the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting
policies.

(@)  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the
Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

H— ¥R EERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 &%
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
@  Business combinations (Continueq)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date
through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance with HKFRS
9 either in the income statement or as a change to
other comprehensive income. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured
is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the income
statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(b)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in the income statement. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to income statement.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwiill.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Principle of equity accounting

2.3.1 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This
is generally the case where the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting (Note 2.3.3), after initially being recognised
at cost.

2.3.2 Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint
arrangement.

Joint ventures

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method (Note 2.3.3), after initially being
recognised at cost in the consolidated balance sheet.

2.3.3 Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the
Group’s share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associates and
joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2 BEGHERME (@)

2.3 #ZGERA (B) 2.3 Principle of equity accounting (Continued)
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2.4

2.3.3 Equity method (Continued)

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity. Unrealised gains
on transactions between the Group and its associates
and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Accounting policies of equity accounted investees have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.9.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors
that makes strategic decisions.

H— ¥R EERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 &%
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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(a)  Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The functional
currency of majority of the Group’s entities is Renminbi
(“BMB”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions of each of the Group’s
entities are translated into the functional currency using
the applicable exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within ‘finance
income or cost’. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the income statement within
‘other gains - net’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities held at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) are included in the fair
value reserves in other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

2.6

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities

(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary

economy) that have a functional currency different

from the presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(i)

(i)

Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

Income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical

cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition

of the items.

e Annual Report 2020 &
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2 EECHHBEHE (8) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6 ME-BERRE 1B) 2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
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Construction-in-progress (“CIP”) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition and capitalised borrowing
costs. No provision for depreciation is made on CIP until
such time as the relevant assets are completed and
ready for intended use. When the assets concerned are
available for use, the costs are transferred to property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance
with the policy as stated below.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate the cost less impairment loss of each asset
to its residual value over its estimated useful life, as

follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machinery and factory equipment 10 years
Vehicle, other equipment and fixtures 3-5 years

Leasehold improvements 5 years or shorter

of lease terms

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘other gains — net’, in the income
statement.

Investment properties

Investment properties are defined as properties (land
or a building — or part of a building — or both) held (by
the owner or by the lessee under a finance lease) to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather
than for: (a) use in the production of supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or (b) sale in the
ordinary course of business.

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost
and subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated using a straight-line method
to allocate the depreciable amounts over the estimated
useful lives of 40 years. The residual values and
useful lives of investment properties are reviewed, and
adjusted as appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets

Acquired computer software is capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over the
estimated useful life of 2 — 5 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use - are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Financial assets

2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through OCI or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in the income statement or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, the Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

2.10.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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2.10.3 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in the
income statement.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are two measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in the income statement and
presented in other gains/(losses) together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented in ‘administrative expenses’
in the income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2.10.3 Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

° FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
the income statement and presented net within
other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is
no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to the income statement following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in the income
statement as other income when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the income
statement as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

211

2.10.4 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see Note 3.1(b) for
further details.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The method of recognising the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative
is designed as a hedging instrument, and if so, the
nature of item being hedged. Derivative instruments
held by the Group do not qualify for hedge accounting
and are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.
Changes in fair value of these derivative instruments
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and
other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.
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Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when
they are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the
trade receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. See Note 2.10.2 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and
Note 2.10.4 and 3.1 (b) for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.

2.15 Cash and bank balances

For the purpose of presentation in the cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.17 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade and other payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

H— ¥R EERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 &%



—

iR e MR R M 5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 EECHHBEHE (8) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the income
statement in the period in which they are incurred.

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of
the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

QOutside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally
the Group is unable to control the reversal of the
temporary difference for associates. Only where there is
an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability
to control the reversal of the temporary difference not
recognised.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

2.21

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)
Outside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current income tax assets against current income tax
liabilities and where the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxed levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

Employee benefits
Pension obligations (defined contribution plan)

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays contributions into a separate
fund. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)

Pension obligations (defined contribution plan)
(Continued)

The Group has participated in defined contribution plans
administered by the relevant authorities in the Mainland
China, Taiwan and Hong Kong for its employees. The
Group is required to pay monthly contributions to these
plans at certain percentages of the relevant portion of
the payroll of the employees to fund the benefits. The
relevant authorities undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable to the existing and future
retired employees of the Group under these plans and
the Group has no further obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made.

2.22 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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Sales of goods

The Group manufactures and sells beverages and food.
Sales are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to
the customer, the customer has full discretion over the
channel and price to sell the products, and there is no
unfulfiled obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the
products have been shipped to the specific location, the
risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred
to the customer, and either the customer has accepted
the products in accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have
been satisfied.

The products are often sold with retrospective volume
discounts based on aggregate sales over a period of
time. Revenue from these sales is recognised based on
the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated
volume discounts. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate and provide for the discounts, and revenue is
only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal will not occur. A refund liability
(included in other payables and accruals) is recognised
for expected volume discounts payable to customers
in relation to sales. No significant element of financing
is deemed present as the sales are made with a credit
term of 60-90 days, which is consistent with market
practice.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.23 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Sales of goods (Continued)

The Group’s obligations to provide a refund for faulty
products are under the standard warranty terms.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate such
returns at the time of sale. Because of the large size
and low value of each individual product, the amount of
products returned were immaterial. It is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur. Therefore, no refund liability
for goods return was recognized. The validity of this
assumption and the estimated amount of returns are
reassessed at each reporting date.

For certain payments to customers for promotion
activities, the Group did not provide a distinct good
or service to customers and therefore recorded as a
deduction of sales price.

The Group does not expect to have any contract
containing financing components. As a consequence,
the Group does not adjust any of the transition prices
for the time value of money.
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Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to land use rights and
property, plant and equipment are included in non-
current liabilities as deferred government grants and
are credited to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.25 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised
cost calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the income statement as part of other
income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see note 10 below. Any other
interest income is included in other income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.26 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments).

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.26 Leases (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was received

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases
held by the Group, which does not have recent
third party financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to income
statement over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Hi— ¥ hEERA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 F 3§ /I 27



4= A
17177 g |

R 75 3R R MY X

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 BEGHERME (@)

2.26 tHE (4&)

128

EREEERMASE BN
TRIE:

e {BSEHERENEE,
Py

o TERMWHEBEZ A F LAY
FEREENRBEAERE K’
HEEE-

ERAREE-—RNEELBHR
REEH UBREER®E) UER
ATE - HAEE] SEEET
EEER AERREEN AR
EENERHBEAFE-

REAREREREEURAA
REEEEHEEBRNNRRE
BMOANBEmRER X 2
HEHEHERA12E/UTH
HE-REBEEETZEEER
BT E R ARERMLZ/NEY
o

REKEHEE (AERFEHHLAE
N ZHHERARBERNESR
EEWARES (FisE16) - LS
KEHEMEEZ B ERME
MAHBMEENREERE WK
HARUEEERARRNESE
EREAAX SHEBEEREN
EMEFABERRR-

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.26 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising

the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease

liability, and

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives

received

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is

depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in the income statement. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-
value assets comprise IT equipment and small items of

office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term (Note 16). Initial direct costs
incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expense over the lease term on the same
basis as lease income. The respective leased assets are

included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

H— ¥R EERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 &%



iR e MR R M 5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2 BEGHHRHE (@)

2.27 FEHERIFRBEE

2.27 Non-current assets held for sale

HIERBEENREEREZEE
& R 5 IF A A M
B BHERAEERIBBS
B ZEERDBERFIFHE -
HEREERAFERLERE
ZREESE BRIEMSRE
E-BETIRANEENEE U
AFESAENEHEERKREN
MESTRAAIBRRETZRTE
BEERIERIN o

HMEBEINEEN B ERM
o E AT R E AR A B
BBEEAFEREENAH
BAEEMIEME BNERHE
WS BE A RN ER
Rt HEBR - RIERABTEEN
& B HART I R SRR RS S
B L HEEE B AR -

FRBEEEDESFIFHER
AetRITEREIE - DERFIF
HERNHEAR 2 & EEERES
FRIEFIS R E MR -

DEASFHFHENIFFRFEEK
PEMAFEENEERERNA
HMEBEEDRZEY - DERFIF
HENHERN ZBR/NEESR
BERNEEMBRIFBZS]-

Hi— ¥ hEERA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 F 3§ /I 29

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use and
a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax
assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial
assets and investment property that are carried at fair
value and contractual rights under insurance contracts,
which are specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or
subsequent write-down of the asset to fair value less
costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent
increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset,
but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss
previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously
recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current
asset is recognised at the date of derecognition.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised
while they are classified as held for sale. Interest
and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a
disposal Group classified as held for sale continue to be
recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the
assets of a disposal Group classified as held for sale
are presented separately from the other assets in
the balance sheet. The liabilities of a disposal Group
classified as held for sale are presented separately from
other liabilities in the balance sheet.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.28 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.

2.29 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price
risk, and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@) Market risk
0 Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to the USD for
certain PRC subsidiaries whose functional currency are
Renminbi (“RMB”). Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.

Management has set up a policy to require Group
companies to manage their foreign exchange risk
against their functional currency. To manage their
foreign exchange risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities,
entities in the Group use forward contracts outside the
PRC, transacted by Group treasury. Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions or
recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional currency.



4= A
17177 g |

R 75 3R R MY X

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 HMBEKRER (@)

3.1

132

MHERBER (&)
(&) WHEEE ()
() SMNEEE (&)

AR AEBEXREOERZIETE
Wz B PEAREZEF K
ZEERUARBAIEGER -
SNEREKEERBZEENER
B PlInE D UET (TEm) &
B (B stEZRRE SR
MR EE ([5E23) ~RERRT
iEak (M5E26) B E (M45E31) ©

2020 128B31H WA BEHE
HEBEHRFIAE MARER
ExkBTHE ZE5%H
E2020F12831HIEFEENR
& M AR D BN AR
376,0007T (20194 : @b /18 m
AR #167,0007T) » EFEEHRHR
BMEUETKRBTHENBEU
RIBERIRITHEBGMERNER
B8 RE e

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)
] Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Most of the Group entities’ functional currency is RMB
since majority of the revenues of these entities are
derived from operations in Mainland China. Foreign
exchange risk arises from recognised assets or
liabilities, such as trade and bills receivables (Note 23),
cash and bank balances (Note 26) and borrowings
(Note 31), part of which are denominated in United
States dollar (“USD”) and Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”).

As at 31 December 2020, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against USD and HKD with all
other variables held constant, the post-tax profit for
the year ended 31 December 2020 would have been
approximately RMB376,000 lower/higher (2019:
RMB167,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of USD and HKD
denominated borrowings and cash and bank balances.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)
(1) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Exposure

The Group’s major exposure to foreign currency risk at
the end of the reporting period, expressed in RMB’000,

FME) : was as follows:
LE A
METHE MBTEHE BHiHE
Other
usb HKD currencies
denominated denominated denominated
12020F12831H As at 31 December 2020
bk Cash 2,224 1,962 27
FEWE 5 R Trade receivables 1,303 3,031 -
120195128311 As at 31 December 2019
bk Cash 10,166 3,655 1,713
[ E ZBREh Trade receivables 1,213 3,395 -
HRITEE Bank borrowings (9,767) - -
RIEmKRER &5 Amounts recognised in the income statement

FRENEBmRERD T ZINE

During the year, the following foreign-exchange related

TERAEEE amounts were recognised in the income statement:
2020 2019
ARETFT ARHFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MEUWA— 58 Finance income — net
—RHEEEIER — Foreign exchange losses
518 on financing activities (771) (132)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Price risk

The Group is exposed to major equity securities price
risk because of its holding of listed equity investments
which are classified on the consolidated balance sheet
as FVOCI (Note 19). The Group has not hedged its price
risk arising from investments in equity securities financial
assets.

For the Group’s equity investments that are publicly
traded, the fair value is determined with reference to
quoted market prices.

As at 31 December 2020, if the quoted market price of
the listed equity investments had increased/decreased
by 10% with all other variables held constant, the
carrying amounts of the Group’s publicly traded FVOCI
and total equity would be approximately RMBO0.3 million
(2019: RMBO0.6 million) higher/lower than the current
value.
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3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
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(@) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for cash and bank balances (Note 26) and
borrowings (Note 31) with interest charges, the Group
have no other significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities.

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from bank deposits
and borrowings. Bank deposits and borrowings at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk, and if at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest-rate risk. The Group has not hedged its
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk. The interest
rates and terms of bank deposits and borrowings are
disclosed in Note 26 and Note 31 respectively.

As at 31 December 2020, if interest rates on bank
deposits and borrowings had been 100 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB41,893,000 (2019: RMB39,888,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
income on bank balances which would offset partially
by interest expenses on borrowings.
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WEE URMERTERZRY
EERRK > 815K W E Z & U
I o

0 EEREIE

FEERBUAGEXEE - R
2020%F12831H > BHARITER
RETREDEREERTFAER
RAEERBREN SRS
TRETERZSHEDHNIRITE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents,
contractual cash flows of debt instruments carried at
amortised cost, at FVOCI and at FVPL, and deposits
with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposures to wholesale and retail customers, including
outstanding receivables.

() Risk management

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. As at 31
December 2020, the bank deposits and cash at bank
were deposited in reputable financial institutions which
are considered with low credit risk. The table below
shows bank deposits and cash at bank balances by

MR IRITIRE4EER counterparties:
2020 2019
AREEFT AR®BFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

7Vl Counterparties

—gAH WiR1T* - Big 4 PRC domestic banks* 758,317 868,285
—4NEIRTT — Foreign owned banks 3,738,884 3,118,076
—HME A EEIRT — Other domestic commercial banks 1,569,318 2,496,468
6,066,519 6,482,829

* MAFEEANETEERET
BIRTKROABERAT FEE
FRTROBRRE P EHIR
TRMABRRAB RPEERIR
TRHBIRAT -

Big 4 PRC domestic banks comprise Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited, Agricultural Bank
of China Limited, Bank of China Limited and China
Construction Bank Corporation.

H— ¥R EERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 &%
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3 MBRAKER (B8

3.1 HBREBEZE (@) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) EEEE &)
() EEREE )

HEHEZRBHILTR A
RA&FEFHK SR HEREE
AR RRERIEFEERR
EREE RKEREAMBMNR
MOBEERMEMER R
EFERTHRG BARERR
BERABRSIEFRRE B
MEEECTREERERRHE
FREEERVESTIB R °

HRTEEMI A EEEEHR
EREE UEREFERE @
BAHFHEENRBRENEG
HNRFEFRI0%-

FEEREBELANRERRES
BRERE - RBEHEESL:
AEEEEERENEHNR

(i) EEHEERE

FEEERIBENERE S RW
BrAREEBREREN-

BERERREEEBYTARAET
EBMHBREER BT E
REBEHABVBEREILF
E
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(b) Credit risk (Continued)
0 Risk management (Continued)

If wholesale customers are independently rated, these
ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent
rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the
customer, taking into account its financial position, past
experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are
set based on internal or external ratings in accordance
with limits set by the board. The compliance with credit
limits by wholesale customers is regularly monitored by
line management.

For derivative financial instruments, management has
established limits so that, at any time, less than 10%
of the fair value of favourable contracts outstanding are
with any individual counterparty.

The Group’s investment in debt instruments are
considered to be low risk investments. The credit
ratings of the investments are monitored for credit
deterioration.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has trade receivables for sales of goods that
are subject to the expected credit loss model.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to
the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.
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3 MBRAKRER (B

3.1

138

MHEREEE (&)

(b) EEmRE (&)

i) ZHEERE )
FEULEE Z BRR

rEBEERERAUBRS ER]
FOMBIE A EZHERPEES
BRI HERBE BB EWK
BoRMEHEREAFTEPAANNTE
HEB A ERHPEEHE
FEWEZRANEREZEGEER
SR RIBHRHMD B -TILHE
# £ 7220205 12831H 52019
F12A31HBENEWE Z IR
HEEEEI AT

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables from
initial recognition. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December
2020 and 31 December 2019 was determined as
follows for trade receivables.

ROKA  91E180K 181E365%k  —EUE At
Within 91to 181 to Over
2020F12H31H 31 December 2020 90 days 180 days 365 days one year Total
BB ELE Expected loss rate 0.89% 16.63% 77.34%  100.00%
BREE Gross carrying amount
—ERE SR ~ trade receivables 541,809 42,021 2,290 1,239 587,359
EREE Loss allowance 4,807 6,987 1,771 1,239 14,804
POOKA  91E180K 181E365Kk  —ELE A5t
Within 91to 181 10 Over
2019F12H31H 31 December 2019 90 days 180 days 365 days one year Total
BB ELE Expected loss rate 0.85% 16.39% 76.56% 100.00%
BREE Gross carrying amount
—ERE SR — trade receivables 541,169 36,124 2,189 1,098 580,580
ERRE Loss allowance 4,608 5,922 1,676 1,098 13,304

H— ¥R EERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 &%
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3 HERKEEIE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.1 HBREBEZE (@) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) EEEE #)

(i) ZHEERE B
FEWE Z IR (8
122020128 31H > B E 7 ik

MEEIR B R R AN ERAE
BEEITOT

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continueqd)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The closing loss allowances for trade receivables as at
31 December 2020 are reconciled to the opening losses
allowances as follows:

2020 2019
ARETFT ARHFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R1B1E® Opening loss allowance as at 1 January
HAY RS R R 13,304 13,649
FARB@ KRB Increase in loss allowance recognised in
gt di=p il the income statement during the year
(MyzE6) (Note 6) 1,500 2,020
RERER PTG Receivables written off during
FUEMIEAEULERRY  the year as uncollectible - (2,365)
MR12831HH Closing loss allowance as at
BARES 18 815 31 December 14,804 13,304

ERFERWEINSERRR
FEBRSTHHBERKREZ RN T
FEIKREIMNSERANERE
B EPEE GBABLELE
|72 A 2B TR 5T 8 R A BL AL BB
#E0H E90H KIBRMIFH B 4T
= (ERE) -
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Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include,
amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to make
contractual payments for a period greater than 60-90
days past due (credit terms).
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3 MBRAKRER (B

3.1 BHREEAER (&)
(b) EEmRE (&)
i) ZHEERE )
FEUS B 7 IRk (A&

FEE 5 IR RBY R ERIBIN L E
AR R/ITHAS - HEK
[B] S/l B MEH B S ERA AR —
BB

REIH AR HithERMEE

BREIEN AR EthERMEE
B 18 H M 8 AR IE o H 1 B8 WK
BRETR12EREBMEERRE
NEHBEAEERESE RBY
EERBEVNERIBRESTERX
TBIEANTME R IBEZEE
[\ Bz B 4] 45 b 5 K 0E 1 0 - R
B REAEREEEEGE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented
as administrative expenses within operating profit.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
other receivables. Impairment on other receivables is
measured as either 12-month expected credit losses
or lifetime expected credit loss, depending on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk
of a receivable has occurred since initial recognition,
then impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit
losses.

/I 40 H— ¥R EERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 &%
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3 HERKEEIE (&) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.1 HBREBEZE (@) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) EEEE &)
(i) TAEERE &)

PR AR SRS ERERS
BPE

FROBBRETMEERRNT
5B, (FB KBz RRNT

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continueqd)

Net impairment losses on financial assets recognised in
the income statement

During the year, the following losses/(gains) were
recognised in ‘administrative expenses’ in the income

BRAEZ IR URESS statement in relation to impaired financial assets:
2020 2019
AR®BFT ARM¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEUR B 5 BIRF Y Movement in loss allowance for
BEEEEES trade receivables 1,500 2,020

(i) BAFEFABDIIZHE
E

FEBRATES AR TR
EERERAABARKREN
EHRTER (RE) - EBMER
MERREREZ - AEBRTEER
ENERTHR UMERERS
(o

) FEEZEE

BEZADESRABREERTE
MBRAZRERFATEFEY
BERBERTHRZERGEERE
BEUERIRES k&

THEBTZEN - FAEBZER
DB RRZE AL EERER
EURFRAEEEETANE
mZEAEZRHEA-
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(i) Financial assets at FVPL

The Group’s financial assets at FVPL are comprised
of term bank products (principal protected), structured
deposit and investment fund considered to be low risk
investments. The credit ratings of the investment are
monitored for credit deterioration.

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and cash equivalents, the availability of
fund through adequate amounts of committed credit
facilities and the ability to close out market positions.
The Group’s objective is to maintain adequate
committed credit facilities to ensure sufficient and
flexible funding is available to the Group.
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3 HMBEKRER (@) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
3.1 MBRBEZER (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) TEEZEE (B) (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
TRAXEBZESREBED T The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities
ZEBEBNEERES4M8 A that will be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity
>t T EART I R RE N S B B HA 4R groupings based on the remaining period at the
BN E RN ESEAD balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
ES VL P The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows.

MR- —ERE RELF BBRLE st
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2and Over
by Group 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
AR®ETFT AREFTRT AREBTT ARETR AR%TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

#2020F128318  As at 31 December 2020

b Borrowings 487,072 - - - 487,072
EEREAT Interest payments on borrowings 10,479 - - - 10,479
HEEE Lease liabilities 30,078 13,696 2,937 - 46,711
ENEZEN Trade payables 1,879,727 - - - 1,879,727
EMREAIIEN Other payables and accruals,
B ER (excluding non-financial liabilities)
N A =l 2,226,326 - - - 2,226,326
HEMEHEMTIE  Other long term payables - 237,478 - - 237,478
4,633,682 251,174 2,937 - 4,887,793
2019128318 As at 31 December 2019
b Borrowings 1,162,867 - - - 1,162,867
BEHEAR Interest payments on borrowings 2,302 - - - 2,302
HE&E Lease liabilities 23,604 18,283 4,048 13 45,948
ENEZER Trade payables 1,723 416 - - - 1,723416
EMECTER Other payables and accruals,
EstER (excluding non-financial liabilties)
(FaEEzHas) 2,074,813 - - - 2074813
EMREHEMTIE  Other long term payables - 232,357 - - 232,357
4,987,002 250,640 4,048 13 5,241,703
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MR ER (&)

3.1

3.2

MERREE (&)
(c) FEIEZEE (B)

,Tjétg%ljlu {j‘T)\E&/\D% E E’J’fﬁg
AR CUEERARREE - FH
MRZEBHEBNFRMER-

BXEBREE

FEREEEAZBHNARESR
EREBENFEEENAR/RE
RERHFURSEMBERAEA
WHRMNm TEERREERE
BLUR VB & RS

AT FEEEAER AEH
AREAREZMNREZ S8
BITHROIEEEELUR VA
Ig o

HITEHMAT 4 AEER
FEAEELREEHEA B
2 £ 8 HL SR T R 0B B MR L
HAHE o

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Interests payments on borrowings are calculated based
on borrowings held as at the balance sheet dates
without taking into account of future issues. Floating-
rate interest is estimated using the current interest rate
as at the balance sheet dates.

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net cash divided by total capital.

Hi— ¥ hEERA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 F 3§ /I 48
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3 HMBRKEIR (8) 3

3.2 BXRAKREE (@)

AEEBNKEERELASRELL
RUEFTEEI50% © 122020F K&
2019F 1283 1HMELRE[FELL

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a gearing ratio
below 50%. The gearing ratios at 31 December 2020
and 2019 are as follows:

=S NS
2020 2019
AR®TT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
WEE (BIEHEES®E) Total borrowings
(M3 5E158 M 5E31) (including lease liabilities)

(Note 15 and Note 31) 532,388 1,207,108

A IRITRFEIRE Less: cash at bank and on hand
(H3526) (Note 26) (6,068,431) (6,4883,500)
&35 Net cash (5,536,043) (5,276,392)
AR Total equity 13,886,533 13,632,930
mEXR Total capital 8,350,490 8,356,538
BARAELE Gearing ratio -66.30% —63.14%

HRAERERFRER T &
EEN2020F12H31BWE R
BRILERSE#H-

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2020 was
negative since the Group is in net cash position.

’] 44 H— ¥R EERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 &%
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3 MBRAKER (B8

3.3 AT EMKE

TRUGEEEZDMEAFET
BzeMT R - KEXREREW
T

e HMHREENEREEED
HZRRE CRERE) (51
=

e BRTIF1IEFMBENRE
S ZBEEREBRZARE
ZHME A B REE (B
PIINEH) s (BR B
B8) (5288 -

s EBENERILIIFKREAE
=ZhHEBEZBA B
BmaA) (B3 -

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at
fair value by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).
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3 BMERKEEIE (B) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 AFEEMMKE @) 3.3

TRETAEEEREER
2020F K2019F 12831 HE &

Fair value estimation (Continued)

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets
that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2020

ZAF{Eo and 2019.
20204 20194
12831H 12831H
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
ARETT AR¥F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE Assets
BAFEFAEMEEUE FVYOCI (Note 19)
(FF5E19)
—$1/8 — Level 1 2,546 6,027
BAFESt ARG FVPL (Note 25)
(Ht5E25)
— 3@ - Level 3 1,621,634 -

REE2020F12831HIEEE >
AEsmMIAEAFEMERAF
BEAETEELEE BHERE
REFZEEEENREAMN
BEMEENDE

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there are no
transfers among levels of the fair value hierarchy used
in measuring the fair value of financial instruments, and
also no changes in the classification of financial assets
as a result of a change in the purpose or use of those
assets.
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3 MBRAKER (B8

3.3

ATIERE @)

3.3.1 EFHEHELFE
(£1/8)

FERZEIBRETZORESE
BB ERETROZKRE
ZREZATEDRERGEEH
2 HIBREMEE

3.3.2 BAEAT AT HEHA B
BARFE (F3E)

AEBERETEREHEBT L=
EHEENERERGN  &E
BHANRNEEBBERARRER
NFEEFABEHNEHMEE -
2020128318 » KB DB E
@B AEN T ESRILE
BE EEEBENMELRERS
HEETE IEEEREAR
BYMEMR-
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3.3.1 Fair value measurements using quoted prices
(Level 1)

The Group’s investments in level 1 mainly comprise
investments in shares which are listed on the Main
Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The fair
values of the investments are determined based on the
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

3.3.2 Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3)

The Group enters into the wealth management products
contracts with relatively higher interest rates with
certain financial institutions. These are reflected as
financial assets at FVPL on the balance sheet. As at
31 December 2020, most of the wealth management
products are bought from the major financial institutions
in Mainland China and management has exercised due
care when make investment decision with focus only on
low risk wealth management products.
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3 MBRKEIRE (@) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
3.3 RATEME (@) 3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
3.32 FHEAT AT BRZEA BT 3.3.2 Fair value measurements using significant
BELTFE (E3E) (B) unobservable inputs (Level 3) (Continued)
THREHEE2020F12831H The following table presents the changes in level 3
IFEEMNEIEB T AEH- instruments for the year ended 31 December 2020.
¥BATE
FTAEER
EMEE
Financial
assets
at FVPL
AR®FT
RMB’000
HA¥ 45 BR Opening balance -
1Em Additions 2,626,483
BAFEFAEBRZNEERE  Gains on disposal of FVPL 38,789
BATESAERZWEREZE  Change in value of financial assets at FVPL
ZEBEZH 18,831
WERI PRI RRIE Proceeds received (1,062,469)
HAR 45 8R Closing balance 1,621,634
ERFEZEENREGRERT Total gains for the year realised in the income
BIRW 25 7ETEAMF) 1S statement for assets held at the end of the year,
— PR IE THFERFE under ‘Other gains — net’ 18,831
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HEEEEIE (18) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)
3.3 ATEME (@) 3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3.3.2 RHEAT T HEEHA EEf
BAF(E (F3E) (#)

BREHEAT TBRBA E
BATFENEEEN (F3/E)

720204
Hit 12A31BMATE [ERKI
Fair value at Valuation
Description 31/12/2020 technique(s)
ARETT
RMB’000
BRATET ARG 1,621,634 BARRERE
FVPL 1,621,634 Discounted
cash flow
3.3.3 {4 1EB7

AERNMBIFIVE -
BREENHBATES AR
WEMEEETHE (BESEIE
AFENER - BEERGERE
B GEERERERELE N
BRET—Rw > BEAEERF
FHREHB -

FEREHANIEZEFEIBHAE
REATEFABENEREE
zEHX > HLVRERXZHTF
BY & X9 PR B B9 [B] 3k K a DU 2 &
EFESH -
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3.3.2 Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) (Continued)

Quantitative information about fair value measurements
using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

FRIBREARE
FRBRBAE gE - AATEMNMRG
Relationship of
Unobservable unobservable inputs
input Range to fair value
kG| EESES 1.3%-5.7%  TERAEERE A (+501E
EE (bps)) B EATE
EBMARB2,746F 7T ;
FEEREIERE T /& (-50
bps) B ERTER DA
R#&2,746F 7T
Expected return 1.3%-5.7% Higher expected return
rate rate (+50 basis points

(bps)) would increase FV
by RMB2,746 thousand;
lower expected return
rate (-50bps) would
decrease FV by
RMB2,746 thousand

3.3.3 Valuation processes

The finance department of the Group includes a team
that performs the valuations of financial assets at FVPL
required for financial reporting purposes, including level
3 fair values. Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the management and the
valuation team at least once every six months, in line
with the Group’s half-yearly reporting periods.

The main level 3 inputs used by the Group are return
rates of the financial assets at FVPL which are derived
and evaluated based on the yield rate written in
contracts by the counterparties.
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FEBHGEERBRREFENGE L
BEBTERMEMRRETHE
BREEEBRATHARAREANGE
FaA e

4.1 FAREHEERRR

AEBHRRFHEERRBRR
BEZE BHILMERZGFHER
BELVEBEAZBRERER &
BRAEENTEMBEERNZE
ERGRRAEHRERNBEZ
HERBRRBESH U T

@) HFEREEEFEFREE

FEBETEZ2RNRPEBMTE
Mo EREMSRZEBRAF
HEXHE - RE2RZRtEM
BRI RN ETCEH T HEE
e AEBAMGTRKEDTAM
MERSNRIE UTLTRHRIR BB X
EERIEBR - HZETFEEZLR
RMBERBEILHRARZE
BAFR ZFZZBEREXTEETE
MIBEMBEZ @M RIELEFRERE
EREE-

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(@ Income taxes and deferred income tax assets

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in the
PRC. Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities
in the period in which such determination is made.
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4 FARGEHHERPE 4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
(48) JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

41 BREFHEERRR (@)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(@ FEREEEZFEREE
(%)

ERETEREEERRARE
ZIEEFISMIBBEED TR
[RER % EEE 0% B UG R K FE
KB LB IS RIS
Rt E=ZNREBRE-

METRENENERRELE
R (EyeEn BR BREER
BEst10% 0 B A 5 @ & 3 1
m/ BLIRERBEE AR
15,025,0007¢ (20194 | AR
12,729,0007%) ©

(b) LHEAERYE BER
REZ 1G5 HE

TMERBURYE BB &
BREHREENEEEFHRTR
WAEW AR E B R ETRES
FerWElEEHIREERERE
SAEEE RESEAARTEE
FAFI B Ko i 5t o
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(Continued)

(@) Income taxes and deferred income tax assets
(Continued)

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilized.

Were the actual final outcome (on the judgment areas)
of expected cash flows is favourable/unfavourable by
10% from management’s estimates, the Group would
need to increase/decrease the deferred tax assets by
RMB15,025,000 (2019: RMB12,729,000).

(b) Estimated impairment of land use rights and
property, plant and equipment

Land use right and property, plant and equipment are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of judgments and
estimates.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(b) Estimated impairment of land use rights and
property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred that may indicate that the related
assets values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less
costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset in the business; and (i) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections and whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing
the assumptions selected by management in assessing
impairment, including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group’s financial position
and results of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the projected performance and resulting
future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to take
an impairment charge to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

H— ¥R EERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 &%
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the executive directors. The executive directors review the
Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on these reports.

The executive directors consider the business from a
product perspective as over 90% of the Group’s sales and
business activities are conducted in the PRC. From a product
perspective, management assesses the performance of
beverages, food and others. The executive directors assess
the performance of operating segments based on segment
profit or loss. Other information provided, except as noted
below, to the executive directors is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the financial statements.

The majority of the Group’s sales are through distributors and
no revenues from transactions with a single external customer
account for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.
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DEEH

(CONTINUED)

(a)

H E2020%F &2019F12831H

Segment information

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The segment information for the year ended 31

FFEEZDBERWT December 2020 and 2019 is as follows:
2020
B B Hith KR &
Beverages Food Others Unallocated Group
ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETR AR®TR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
DEEE Segment results
Wz Revenue 12,560,400 9,424,487 776,935 - 22,761,822
NEET/ (B18) Segment profit/(loss) 1,814,524 517,079 72,620  (295,950) 2,108,273
REWA— 35 Finance income - net - - - 172,414 172,414
DUERE AR ZEML Share of profit/(loss) of
K&E&EF/ (B8 investments accounted for
using the equity method 58,495 - - (12,723) 45,772
FRETIEHADNER Profit before income tax 2,326,459
PrEMEs Income tax expense (700,756)
EEEF Profit for the year 1,625,703
EREH Depreciation and amortisation 852,301 275,655 53,675 109,939 1,291,570
BE Assets 8,225,632 3,588,544 873,447 8,623,146 21,310,769
BRERENRNRE Investments accounted for
using the equity method 608,918 - - 184,684 793,602
BEE Total assets 8,834,550 3,588,544 873,447 8,807,830 22,104,371
=L Liabilities 3,823,565 2,811,846 267,865 1,314,562 8,217,838
fef Total liabiliies 8,217,838
REERBHEE Addition to non-current assets 10,835 173,932 43,214 157,156 385,137

iF—1 ¥ hE PG AR/ E Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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5 WmEKkDEHER (B) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
(@ EEN (B (a) Segment information (Continued)
2019
G BH Hith ROEC rEE
Beverages Food Others  Unallocated Group
AEBEFT ARETn AREBTT ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
DEEE Segment results
Wi Revenue 12,730,490 8,500,711 788,536 - 22,019,737
AT/ (E58) Segment profit/(loss) 1,614,295 490,015 48,964 (346,953) 1,806,321
MEWA—F5 Finance income - net - - - 152,006 152,006
LU= A IR 2 FEMh Share of profit/(loss) of
B&ERF/ (558 investments accounted for
using the equity method 44,441 - - (31,408) 13,033
RIS AR T Profit before income tax 1,971,360
FrfgiRfs Income tax expense (605,148)
FEEF Profit for the year 1,366,212
E R Depreciation and amortisation 940,322 274,030 61,753 108,852 1,384,957
BE Assets 8,354,300 3,421,359 934,238 8,267,027 20,976,924
B ENRNKRE Investments accounted for
using the equity method 575,533 - - 204,585 780,118
BEE Total assets 8,929,833 3,421,359 934,238 8,471,612 21,757,042
=L Liabilities 3,612,398 2,857,772 259,295 1,394,647 8,124,112
=l Total liabilities 8,124,112
REFRBEE Addition to non-current assets 43,999 245,461 5,845 113,677 408,982

i—1 ¥ hEEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Segment information (Continued)

Assets grouped under unallocated category consisted
primarily of deferred income tax assets, FVOCI, FVPL,
cash and banks, investment properties and related
right-of-use assets.

Liabilities grouped under unallocated category
comprised primarily of deferred income tax liabilities,
current income tax liabilities and borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprised additions to land use
rights, property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, investment properties and intangible assets.

The total of non-current assets located in different
countries is as follows:

2020 2019
ARBTT AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE (FEIE The total of non-current assets other
TR T ERIEE than financial instruments and
FRSMEE) #2%8 deferred income tax assets
—FRE A B — Mainland China 10,822,018 11,822,042
— BN R & — Overseas countries and territories 11,414 21,057
ETHMITA Financial instruments 4,738,379 2,551,843
EILFTSMEE Deferred income tax assets 371,517 344,188
15,943,328 14,739,130

iF—1 ¥ hE PG AR/ E Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

HERGHNERZER (b)

AEECHEITIARAETRENE

Liabilities related to contracts with customers

The Group has recognised the following liabilities related

A=Y= to contracts with customers:
2020 2019
AREFT AR¥TF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
aHaE—-gr Contract liabilities — Beverages 1,387,816 1,162,607
ENEE-—Bm Contract liabilities — Food 1,021,763 880,946
aHEE-HM Contract liabilities — Others 17,090 60,451
wWENERB Total contract liabilities 2,426,669 2,104,004

() BHAGZEAZE

2020 FE AN BEEMIEAR
2021 VR EIBIEE) BRI

BEFAE MR-

(i)  Significant changes in contract liabilities

The increase in contract liabilities in 2020 was due to
several campaigns occuring at the beginning of 2021,
which caused the increase of the down payments from
the customers.

Hi— ¥ hEERA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 F 3§ /I 57
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5 WmkaEER () 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)
b)) BEEREENBHEZzZEE (B) (b) Liabilities related to contracts with customers
(Continued)
(i) BAS#HEEER (i)  Revenue recognised in relation to contract
liabilities
TRIRNERT R EHBERES The following table shows how much of the revenue
Nl @ EEENaNBaERRE recognised in the current reporting period relates to
HEE UREARBEFERTT carried-forward contract liabilities and how much relates
NEAETERMIEEE- to performance obligations that were satisfied in the
prior year.
2020 2019
AREFT AREBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

SIAEYEHEELZER  Revenue recognised that was included

By E BN in the contract liability balance at

the beginning of the year
R Beverages 1,162,607 1,020,291
Bm Food 880,946 605,065
HAth Others 60,451 73,630

2,104,004 1,698,986

(i) KIEBITHIEAIEIE (iii)  Unsatisfied performance obligations
AEEBEERNATHERS The Group selected to choose a practical expedient and
FOARBRBEHBRBAEMT R omitted disclosure of remaining performance obligations
A EHEBEANMHESA —F5 as all related contracts have a duration of one year or
PR less.

1 68 H— ¥R EERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 &%
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BrEE D ZHX

STAHENRAE HE R IGHERER
THRXARAEMBEX ZRAX 2N
T

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of goods sold, selling and
marketing expenses, administrative expenses and other
expenses are analysed as follows:

2020 2019
ARBTT ARBEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Pt AR R A7 ~ BLEEAL R Raw materials, packaging materials,
SEMKBENE D consumables and
purchased commodity used 12,740,627 12,312,220
B mEE =) Changes in inventories of finished goods (128,339) (339,321)
SINEEERRS Manufacturing outsourcing expenses 67,681 54,617
REMNESER Promotion and advertising expenses 1,743,963 1,680,128
BTHENES Employee benefit expenses, including
BIEEE B (MI5E9) directors’ emoluments (Note 9) 3,371,825 3,416,132
EWER Transportation expenses 855,578 851,598
MZE BB RREITE Depreciation of property, plant and
(Mf5E14) equipment (Note 14) 1,168,684 1,271,799
RS ERH (I5E15) Amortisation of right-of-use assets
(Note 15) 93,051 85,300
SEVZEITE (Y5E16) Depreciation of investment properties
(Note 16) 19,273 19,747
L EERE (MHsE17) Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 17) 10,562 8,111
BFESHERS Operating lease expenses in respect
of buildings 49,373 81,667
MMERR - MER& City construction tax, property tax and
Hin 7 & B other tax surcharges 229,502 247,104
FRAEEE BERE Provision for impairment of
(f35E15) right-of-use assets (Note 15) 13,000 -
FEAEEFEEBE Provision of inventories to
(M¥zE22) net realisable value (Note 22) 1,217 3,939
BN B F R R E R H Provision for impairment of
(H15E£3.1(b)) trade receivables (Note 3.1(b)) 1,500 2,020
ZEETIN & — 2 BUARTS Auditors’ remunerations
— Audit services 7,901 8,809
Hih Others 881,361 883,783
i Total 21,126,759 20,587,653

i—1 ¥ hEEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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7 HthFFIFEE

160

7 OTHER GAINS - NET

2020 2019
ARBTT AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AT EFABmNAE Gains on disposal of financial assets
at FVPL 38,789 -
BT EFAERD Change in fair value of financial assets at
TREBEZ AT EES FVPL 18,831 -
HEFREEEZ Gains on disposal of right-of-use
K15 HRE assets, net 48,681 5,505
HEME - BEREEBZ Gains on disposal of property, plant and
F15 - H%E equipment, net 8,612 4,137
H1th Others (8,218) 4,500
106,695 14,142
Hihig A 8 OTHER INCOME
2020 2019
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BT 8 B Government grants 142,694 131,859
HEME -BRERZHE Rental income from lease of property,
URE&EMEZ B WA plant and equipment and
investment properties 135,228 128,728
BRI (M15E34(a)) Consultation service income (Note 34(a)) 60,023 60,513
H1th Others 28,570 38,995
366,515 360,095

BT AR B W A 5 B P B 3th 75 U
WERB M B R mE ER A EEW
B~ B H H PRt & 48K K 3 R PR AF
BRBIEI3HR - 2 F WA M B ER M
TREM B RN BREMBAE B R
THORGEGEaRZ THitR AL R
FEST o

The income from government grants represented financial
support subsidy received from various local governments
in the PRC as rewards to the Group’s subsidiaries for their
contributions to the economy and development of the regions
in which the subsidiaries are located. Such government
grants were unconditional and with no future commitment to
be fulfilled. They were recognised within ‘other income’ in the
consolidated income statement.

H— ¥R EERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 &%
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES,

i INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

2020 2019

ARETT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

TERMHE Wages and salaries 2,715,702 2,705,110
BARSREMTTERN Pension and other social welfare

(EZEHRETE) (defined contribution plan) 303,148 391,505

BIBEsREREH Staff quarters and housing benefit 131,756 129,230

HhiEF) Other benefits 221,219 190,287

3,371,825 3,416,132

HE2020F12B31HILEE 2 RAER
hEEHMALTBERS (20194 :
M%) B HEFWERKFE36()T2
2D R -RERNESZNFFH
BR=% (20195 . =) REfmMA T

ZHBNEZII T

during the year are as follows:

The five individuals whose emoluments are the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 included two
(2019: two) directors, whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented in Note 36(a). The emoluments payable
to the remaining three (2019: three) highest paid individuals

2020 2019
EARFE EEEM Basic salaries, housing allowances,
HMZB R EYH = other allowances and benefits
ANE®F7T) in kind (RMB’000) 2,886 3,183
B4 (NB#ET 7o) Bonuses (RMB’000) 2,701 2,699
5,587 5,882
E : In the band of;
2,000,001 BTE HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000
2,500,000 7 (HHE (equivalent to RMB1,791,001 to
PARE1,791,00178 RMB2,239,000)
Z= AR #2,239,0007T) 3 3

i—1 ¥ hEEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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10 REIWA—F%E

10 FINANCE INCOME - NET

2020 2019
ARBTT AR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ALE A Finance income
—IRERIRITHEFRZ — Interest income on cash and banks
A B WA 229,626 209,472
AL AL A Finance cost
—BEEZHERE - Interest expenses on borrowings (54,779) (64,033)
—HEaRZNERE — Interest expenses on lease liabilities (1,861) (2,115)
—EREEFE — Net foreign exchange losses (771) (132)
—B EBREEZERIL - Less: amounts capitalized on
£%E qualifying assets 199 8,814
(567,212) (57,466)
B UWA —FER Finance income — net 172,414 152,006
11 FiEHRAX 11 INCOME TAX EXPENSES
2020 2019
AR®BTT ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BPEAFR1SHR Current income tax
—BRAEE&RNZ — Current income tax on profit
BIHRPR1SHR for the year 586,877 523,130
IRIEFTISHR (M15E20) Deferred income tax (Note 20) 113,879 82,018
700,756 605,148

162
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11 FEREAX (&)

(@

(b)

R ARED 2RISR (TR ¥R
(=3 a))

i ==Y = e e e N = Ay A = o
B AT EIE25% (20194 : 25%)
TGN ERER -

BRI EE - EREE R ERE
EBMIWEIRR[2011]588% TR
EPNEY R N A =l
MWBEKEBEENER > RAES
&I BR R BB ARZ
ETEREEXERREKE
HEB15%EERE KEFED
PHENBARANRANMAEE
i R AFEE#EZR Lt
15%BEMRZEo

HFr1SR

ARBREBEAEFREREEER
SHEEMRIAERRERA
8] UL > 75 A ) % A 2 B AR B
EREMSER-

TEEEMAIIANE AT A
BEMIBITIRE20% (20194 :
20%) BHNFTIST o

RIENTE B 6 EB M ARSI FIEHR
EoREBIMMULNKE QR
REE2020F12H31BEEE
NEZE8BTEIRFBHR
K A8.25% (20194 : 8.25%) o
FHENBB _E8EBTNENR
AEE M ER16.5% (20194 ¢
16.5%) BITR R o

i—1 ¥ hEEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(a

(b)

Mainland China corporate income tax (“CIT”)

Subsidiaries established in Mainland China are subject
to CIT at rate of 25% (2019: 25%) during the year.

According to the Caishui (2011) No. 58 “The notice
on the tax policies of further implementation of the
western region development strategy issued by the
Ministry of Finance, the State Administration of Taxation
and the General Administration of Customs” (Bf78
[2011]585E B 1L 28 A B I 75 2B K B 35 8L BE 75 RBE AR IR
BRI ERIZEA"), companies set up in the western
region and falling into certain encouraged industry
catalogue promulgated by the PRC government will be
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15%. Some of the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC set up in the western
development region are entitled to the above mentioned
preferential tax rate of 15% during the year.

Other income tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is
exempted from payment of Cayman Islands income tax.

Subsidiaries incorporated in Taiwan are subject to
income tax at the prevailing rates of 20% (2019: 20%).

Pursuant to the enactment of two-tiered profit tax rates
by the Inland Revenue Department, the first HK$2
million of assessable profits of subsidiaries incorporated
in Hong Kong is subject to a tax rate of 8.25% during
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 8.25%). The
remaining assessable profits above HK$2 million will
continue to be subject to a tax rate of 16.5% (2019:
16.5%).
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11 FERAX (&)

(b)

164

HAFr§iR (&)

A& B PR PSR A A B 4% H B
BRAREGHBEEREMNZEAEME
25% (20194 1 25%) st & > Ewm
MEEZENT !

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(b)

Other income tax (Continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the statutory tax rate in the PRC of 25% (2019:
25%) applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as
follows:

2020 2019
ARBTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
PRPAISIRATIEF] Profit before income tax 2,326,459 1,971,360
R EEERE Tax calculated at the statutory tax rate
SAEZRE in the PRC 581,615 492,840
THRIBEZNBFFE . Tax effects of:
BREAETHEBE A Preferential tax rates on the profits of
mAMZBERE certain subsidiaries (19,244) (14,887)
RIEIRIEPTIER Tax losses and temporary differences
BEZMERER for which no deferred income tax
EREER asset was recognized 8,284 10,149
BERIR A Income not subject to tax (11,443) (3,258)
IR Expenses not deductible for tax
purpose 26,541 28,985
b S22 M0 TH0 R Additional deduction of research and
development expenses (7,997) (7,181)
FEMBATIREZ  Withholding tax on dividends from
AN PRC subsidiaries 123,000 98,500
iR Income tax expense 700,756 605,148

H— ¥R EERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 &%
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11 FEMREXZ (@) 11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)
(b) EHAFTER (@& (b) Other income tax (Continued)
BREMEERAIB D ZFER The income tax charge relating to components of other
RIS - comprehensive income is as follows:
2020 2019
WA RERY it FRiRAl RIEZ PRt
Before tax  Tax charge After tax Before tax ~ Tax charge After tax

ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETR ARBTR ARBTX
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

HE2EE Other comprehensive income:
~REHATEHA - Netfair value losses from
HEt2 ARG fair value through other
(MR RAFEFTA comprehensive income
HinzEKE) 2 (‘FVOCr)
ATEFER (3,009) - (3,009) (929) . (929)
—BAFESFAEM - Gains on disposal of FVOCI
2EMEN (Note 19)
HEFR (H3H19) - - - 122,295 (30,237) 92,058
FERES Income tax expense - (30,237)
12 SRER 12 EARNINGS PER SHARE
=i Basic
REABAMBIEFERACERTF Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
BAERGRABRUBETEERME attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
THHEAE - average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
2020 2019
ANTEHIFE AEGEF]  Profit attributable to equity holders of
(ANR¥F0) the Company (RMB’000) 1,625,703 1,366,212
BETEERNETIEH Weighted average number of ordinary
(FK) shares in issue (thousands) 4,319,334 4,319,334
SRELREF Basic earnings per share
(BRARESH (RMB per share) 37.64 cents®) 31.63 cents®
HRARFEE BT EEBR W Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per
SRBERMNEASKREREBN—o share as there are no potential dilutive ordinary shares of the
Company.
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13 iRE 13 DIVIDENDS
2020 2019
ARBTT AR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEIKNRIAKRE Proposed final dividend of
SREBERARTE37.647 RMB37.64 cents
(2019%F : AR™31.637) (2019: RMB31.63 cents)
per ordinary share 1,625,703 1,366,212

166

R2020F K2019F » KRB HEE
2019F K2018F12H31HIEEED
IRIEE A& AR 11,369,001,0007T
K AR #1,046,718,0007T ©

EEZEN202143B819HZEEgE
% ESIREH E20205F12831H 1k
FEZRESRARMI7.640 (5
RE A ANRM1,625,703,0007T) » i
BH2021E5821 HRTZREBE
AGLEREUFHE LEFHEHRE
FERMILERGRKRES -

The dividends paid by the Company in 2020 and 2019 for
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 amounted to
RMB1,369,001,000 and RMB1,046,718,000 respectively.

A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020
of RMB37.64 cents per share, amounting to a total dividend
of RMB1,625,703,000, was proposed by the directors on
the board of directors meeting on 19 March 2021 and is to
be proposed for approval at the annual general meeting to
be held on 21 May 2021. These financial statements do not
reflect this dividend payable.
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HEk BHIAHEf

¥ IBRME RERKE RERE TRIR CH
Vehicles,
Machinery other
and factory equipment Leasehold  Construction
Buildings equipment and fixtures  improvements in progress Total
AREFT AREFR ARETT AREFT ARETR ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
1#20195181A At 1 January 2019
72 Cost 7,083,627 7,767,063 3,583,034 9,152 546,935 18,939,811
SHTE Accumulated depreciation (2,017,088) (4,437,299) (2,569.913) 9,159) - (9,033445)
BEAEREE Accumulated impairment provision - (269) - - - (269)
RETHE Net book amount 5,016,539 3,329,508 1,013,121 - 546,935 9,906,103
HE2019512831HLLERE Year ended 31 December 2019
ERETE Opening net book amount 5,016,539 3,329,508 1,013,121 - 546,935 9,906,103
AE Additions 3,804 58,082 51,039 - 261,665 374,680
EAREA Transfer upon completion 407,458 63,092 50,749 - (521,299) -
he Disposdls (80,910) (22729) (3.228) - - (106,866)
& (K36) Depreciation (Note 6) (309,225) (597,963) (364,611) - - (1,271,799)
ERREFE Closing net book amount 5,037,756 2,829,991 747,070 - 287,301 8,902,118
420195126318 At 31 December 2019
[ Cost 7,342,462 7,802,921 3,568,852 - 287,301 19,001,636
itE Accumulated depreciation 2,304,706) (4,972,667) (2,821782) - - (10,009,155)
RitHERE Accumulated impairment provision - (263) - - - (263)
KO8 Net book amount 5,037,756 2,829,991 747,070 - 287,301 8,902,118
H22020F12831ALEE Year ended 31 December 2020
FREFE Opening net book amount 5,037,756 2,829,991 747,070 - 287,301 8,902,118
HE Additions 28,697 18,547 54,533 - 214,066 315,843
THEEA Transfer upon completion 143,422 88,954 57,218 - (289,504) -
e Disposals (27,047) (38,132) (4,454) = = (69,633)
NBABEHENEE Assets classified as held for sale (1,833) (297) (69) - - (2,199)
FE (i) Depreciation (Note 6) (325,419) (565,013) (278,252) - - (1,168,684)
EXREFE Closing net book amount 4,855,576 2,334,050 576,046 - 211,773 7,977,445
1420206125318 At 31 December 2020
723 Cost 7,454,267 7,660,853 3,538,716 - 211,713 18,865,609
ZiTE Accumulated depreciation (2,598,691) (5,326,540) (2,962,670) - - (10,887,901)
Rt ERE Accumulated impairment provision - (263) - - - (263)
REFE Net book amount 4,855,576 2,334,050 576,046 - 211,773 1,977,445

i—1 ¥ hEEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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14 ME- -BRERSE (B) 14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

TEEREEHFaBmRNBRUT ! Depreciation expenses have been charged to the
consolidated income statement as follows:

2020 2019
ARBTT AR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HE AR Cost of goods sold 805,512 847,921
HERMHERERS Selling and marketing expenses 228,538 283,119
TEREX Administrative expenses 134,634 140,759
1,168,684 1,271,799
REBZEF2EAUNRPE- The Group’s buildings are all located in the PRC.
20204 2019512831 B i # i 1 There are no pledge of property, plant and equipment as at
ERYIE BB & o 31 December 2020 and 2019.
kEXAEEAETEFHEZEAEWRA Rental income amounting to approximately RMB59.8 million
# A R #659,800,0007T (2019F 1 AR (2019: RMB46.6 million) derived from lease of certain
#46,600,0007T) Bt AR & m KM buildings of the Group is included in ‘other income’ in the
FTE MU AL (HF5E8) o consolidated income statement (Note 8).
FR AEECEHECEREENEE During the vyear, the Group has capitalised borrowing costs
B A AR #199,0007% (20194 @ A amounting to RMB199,000 (2019: RMB8,814,000) on
K 18,814,0007) R EXR -BEM qualifying assets. Borrowing costs were capitalised at the
KIBEEHE—REENMNEFEEHEF X weighted average rate of its general borrowings of 3.52%
3.52% (20194 : 3.88%) EHRE K- (2019: 3.88%) per annum.
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15 AE (BiF Lt fEARE)

15 LEASES (INCLUDING LAND USE RIGHTS)

(i) NREEEEREDZEE (i) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet
2020 2019
AREFT ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FERAEEE Right-of-use assets
LY ES Properties 49,210 50,873
T (E A Land use rights 1,710,008 1,781,668
1,759,218 1,832,541
HEaR Lease liabilities
LYES Properties
—BPEA - Current 28,973 22,376
—JERNEA — Non-current 16,343 21,865
45,316 44 241

R2020Z2 B E K K2019
Fr T HERREHDNUT :

Movements in right-of-use assets in 2
rights in 2019 are analysed as follows:

020 and land use

EREEE
Right-of-use assets
2020 2019

ng TiERE a3t nE THERE ot

Land use Land use
Properties rights Total Properties rights Total
AEEFT AEBFT AEBFT AREFT NS AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
*A18 At 1 January 50,873 1,781,668 1,832,541 57,407 1,967,815 2,025,202
HE Addtions 41,351 - 41,351 26,077 - 26,077
HE Disposals (954) (5,288) (6,242) (280) (133,178) (133,458)
NEABFEHENEE Assets classified as held for sale - (2,381) (2,381) - - -
HEEE (o) Impairment provision (Note 6) - (13,000) (13,000) - - -
BB (M) Amortisation charges (Note 6) (42,060) (50,991) (93,051) (32,331) (62,969) (85,300)
#128318 At 31 December 49,210 1,710,008 1,759,218 50,873 1,781,668 1,832,541
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15 HE (BiELMER®) (88) 15 LEASES (INCLUDING LAND USE RIGHTS)

(CONTINUED)
(i) MIBEEREFRZEEE (i) Amounts recognised in the income statement
EREEE
Right-of-use assets
2020 2019
nE THfERE & nE THERR 3t
Land use Land use
Properties rights Total Properties rights Total
AEBFT AEEFT AEETR AEETR AREFT AREFRT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BT (He) Amortisation charges (Note 6)
HEMRK Cost of goods sold 2,103 26,672 28,775 1,057 35,355 37,312
HERTARERY Seling and marketing expenses 33,705 3,725 37,430 24,079 4320 28,399
IBEY Administrative expenses 6,252 20,504 26,846 6,295 13,294 19,589
42,060 50,991 93,051 32,331 52,969 85,300
HERZ GEARRRA) Interest expense (included in finance cost) (Note 10)
(Byzt10) 1,861 2115
BFTERERS (o) Operating lease expenses in respect of buildings
Note 6) 49373 81,667
BRRIGEE Total charges to income statement 144,285 169,082
R2020F 2 ERE ML 4L EE The total cash outflow for leases in 2020 was
= N #88,688,0007T ° RMB88,688,000.
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15 HE (BFLMERRE) (@)

(iii)

(iv)

rEBZHEEERHREREE
ZARRAN

FEEZ I MERELZEHIED
BEM o MLIN AEBEHEZE
MAERBE AN —RAUEE
HR=ERAE+FTL MHAI8E
B EE U0 T S (iv) P A S B AR A A o

HERRENBERERS LB
BB BRI AR - FREEA
REZHEEERHNEFER
S 0 3B E 1 5% A I 0 A ) BR
BoEEEEESNSREEEN
e

JEEA R 4% ISR AE R

FEBNETYMERRFBEEES
IR IEEERE - ZF IR
TRARMERGNSEEE TN
RAC e PR A B KRB SEHY &
RIEEEZERETHAERTE
WA SEAEBMEBEATRE.

i—1 ¥ hEEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

15 LEASES (INCLUDING LAND USE RIGHTS)
(CONTINUED)

(iii)

(iv)

The Group’s leasing activities and how they
are accounted for

The Group’s land use rights are all fully prepaid.
In addition, the Group leases various offices and
warehouses. Rental contracts are typically made for
fixed periods of 3 months to 10 years, but may have
extension options as described in (iv) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a
number of property and equipment leases across the
Group. These terms are used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority of
extension and termination options held are exercisable
only by the Group and not by the respective lessor.
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16 REME

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2020 2019

AREFT AEB®TFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R1A18 At 1 January 313,609 335,929
NE Addition 75 792

HE Disposal - (3,365)

e (fysE6) Depreciation (Note 6) (19,273) (19,747)
®12831H At 31 December 294,411 313,609
R12831 B AL S Cost as at 31 December 494,296 494,221

REHITE Accumulated depreciation (199,885) (180,612)
®R12831H At 31 December 294,411 313,609

BREWMEMURTENY LB IEHE M
NEKRERS > TRREHAS40EM
S0F ML ko

FEBREVMEZIFEESFAKRGE
mARATEMEAR -

The investment properties are located in Shanghai, Jiangsu,
Sichuan and Guangdong Province of the PRC and erected on
land with lease periods of 40 and 50 years.

Depreciation of the Group’s investment properties has been
charged to ‘other expenses’ in the consolidated income
statement.

2020 2019

ARBTT ARBEF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

HEWA Rental income 75,360 82,112
KEEEHESWAZYIZESZ  Direct operating expenses from property

HEKERE that generated rental income (10,371) (13,484)

64,989 68,628
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16 REWE (@)

HEZH

REMEDRBEWNASEEMEEZ
K=EHERBERMES -

BEFEEENRNEERER 2T
BEEEDAR EAEE—RET
RS E LR g 2R
17 B 5 4 B 2 4 1 ) R (L o
B SR S SR 1 2 TR R MR
ZATEES

ERREMFEFHEZRERREBEEN
EE1E 0 A 2RI EE33

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing arrangements

The investment properties are leased to tenants under
operating leases with rentals payable monthly.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual
value at the end of the current leases, the Group typically
enters into new operating leases and therefore will not
immediately realise any reduction in residual value at the end
of these leases. Expectations about the future residual values
are reflected in the fair value of the properties.

For minimum lease payments receivable on leases of
investment properties, refer to Note 33.

KREMEZ 2 FEHNOT - The fair values of the investment properties are set out as
follows:
2020 2019
ARETFT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
NTE Fair value 316,702 375,775

R2020F K2019F12831H 2 A F &
BHEEBEGSRAUEARNTERZH A
% (B3R AR EET ZHRRERE
BEBITEERE o

Hi— ¥ hEERA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 F 3§ ,I 78
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16 BREME (B 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
HEZH (@) Leasing arrangements (Continued)
FREANTAEZRE AZIE (F3E) & Information about fair value measurements using significant
TZAFEFENEREFEINWT : unobservable inputs (Level 3) is set out below:

AR REARE
Unobservable inputs
20205
AB 128318 A FE faE AL IR =

Fair value at
31 December

Description 2020 Rental value  Discount rate
(ANB¥TT) (ARB¥FT)
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)

& EA

43,738 549,665 per annum 10%
Plant A
=B

68,676 49 416,658 per annum 10%
Plant B
B EC

33,135 $54F6,478 per annum 10%
Plant C
=D

46,522 549,232 per annum 10%
Plant D
N

92,605 3,134 10%
Office building BF L °
5 &

32,026 {54~ Per annum 10%
Shops
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16 KEWME (B 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
HEZH (@ Leasing arrangements (Continued)
LR K3 PN &
Unobservable inputs
20194
AR 12B31HZ AT E fE AhIR=E
Fair value at
Description 31 December 2019 Rental value Discount rate
(ANRBF7T) (NR#EF D)
(RMB’000) (RMB’000)
\DI A
B 48,579 49,093 per annum 10%
Plant A
& =B
- 79,904 516,658 per annum 10%
Plant B
=0
B 50,417 £54£8,638 per annum 10%
Plant C
\DI D
B 70,648 512,309 per annum 10%
Plant D
WAE
93,681 FE2,874 10%
Office building S perannum ’
5 32,546 £ F- Per annum 10%
Shops
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17 B EE

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

B
Computer
software
AE®ETT
RMB’000
72019181H At 1 January 2019
D% Cost 98,510
Rty Accumulated amortisation (83,119)
BRMEFRE Net book amount 15,391
HE2019F12H31HLLEE Year ended 31 December 2019
FHRMEFEE Opening net book amount 15,391
wnE Additions 7,433
i (5E6) Amortisation (Note 6) 8,111)
FRIRE F 2 Closing net book amount 14,713
7t2019%124831H At 31 December 2019
B A Cost 105,943
RET#E Accumulated amortisation (91,230)
ERMEFER Net book amount 14,713
#HE2020F12A31HLLFE Year ended 31 December 2020
FEIRE F 2 Opening net book amount 14,713
wNE Additions 4,606
#iy (fi5E6) Amortisation (Note 6) (10,562)
FRIREFEE Closing net book amount 8,756
7£20205124831H At 31 December 2020
A Cost 110,549
Rty Accumulated amortisation (101,792)
ERMEFER Net book amount 8,756
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BREE (8)

BB #E SRS ATTERESI &
MEERTIBHEERS) > B2 3Y
ANE16,429,0007t & A R 14,133,000
7t (20194 : AR #5,596,0007t 5 A R
#2,515,0007T) °

s EARNKE

TEEAEREROBMEBOT

17

18

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The amortisation of computer software has been charged to
‘administrative expenses’ and ‘selling and marketing expenses’
at the amounts of approximately RMB6,429,000 and
RMB4,133,000 (2019: RMB5,596,000 and RMB2,515,000),
respectively.

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

2020 2019

AR¥FT ARMFTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

N—EE A B Z (@) Interests in an associate (a) 371,232 326,990
REEREZERD) Interests in joint ventures (b) 422,370 453,128
793,602 780,118

FERmAEEINBENT !

The amounts recognised in the income statement are as

follows:

2020 2019
AR®BTT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE(L B E A Bl (a) Share of profit of the associate (a) 22,873 29,794
BE AR NEERFE) Dilution gain of the associate (a) 21,369 -

FEEEEERT, Share of net of profits/(losses) of
(B518) FEE(b) joint ventures (b) 1,530 (16,761)
HE12H31HILEEE For the year ended 31 December 45,772 13,033

Hi— ¥ hEERA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 F 3§ ,I 77



=

4= A
17177 g |

R 75 3R R MY X

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18 LR EARNIRE (8) 18

(a)

(b)

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

R—REBE QT2 #m (@) Interests in an associate
R—EBERAT 2 #m 2 EE The movements in interests in an associate are as
o follows:
2020 2019
AREFT ARMEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
M1A1H At 1 January 326,990 303,592
il Share of profit 22,873 29,794
#EHE Dilution gain 21,369 -
B R Dividends received - (6,396)
R12831H At 31 December 371,232 326,990
REELEZER (b) Interests in joint ventures

REeEEhEZEm 2 EE3UWT ! The movements in interests in joint ventures are as

follows:

2020 2019

ARBTT AR®BFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R1B1H At 1 January 453,128 444,245
RE Additions - 39,299
FE{EEF], (B58) 7$%8  Share of net profits/(losses) 1,530 (16,761)
BWRE Dividend received (25,110) (13,665)
KERD Decrease in investments (7,178) -
B’12831H At 31 December 422,370 453,128

178
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ZARNKE (8)

(1)

AEEEE

¥ (TR EHHEMUE
mORFIER) 2 BEEHIIIT

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

The particulars of the joint ventures of the Group as
at 31 December 2020, all of which are unlisted and
accounted for using equity method, are set out as

follows:
HEMRIER
ASEY 2k B A BRERX rEBRERE TEEHY
Country/place and Equity interest
Company name date of incorporation Paid-up capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
2020 2019

FNTXERERAIERE RSN PN 50% 50%  KEBEMEBERRY

EEERAE 2008575 18H 1,000,0007T
(FERAIEREER)

(United Advisor Venture Suzhou, PRC, RMB Investment management
Management Co., Ltd.") 18 July 2008 1,000,000 and advisory services
(“United Advisor Venture
Management”)

EMRRMETIEERRE REEK 19,060,000% 7 42% 42% ié%*ﬁ‘ kb BEKR

(MEMER) 200947 F24H B A%

(Guilin Ziquan Beverage Guilin, PRC, UsD Product|on of various types
Industries Co., Ltd.") 24 July 2009 19,060,000 of beverage including
(“Guilin Ziquan”) fruit, vegetable, tea and

coffee etc.

Greater China F&B HEHE 10,700% 7T 50% 50% — KREEBE
Capital Partners Ltd. 2008F4F 160
(“Greater China F&B") Cayman Islands, usb Investment management

16 April 2008 10,700
HERIR—EBRAE FERNE AR 50% 50% EESBEBER
U=+ ) 201147 H29A 232,000,0007%

(Wuhan Zijiang President Wuhan, PRC, RVMB Production of various types
Enterprises Co., Ltd.") 29 July 2011 232,000,000 of plastic products
(“Wuhan Zijiang”)

SMS Capital Co., Ltd. HEHE 500,000 75 50% 50% REEE
("SMSCC") 201251152801

Cayman Islands, usb Investment management
28 November 2012 500,000

i—1 ¥ hEEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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18 LR ZEZARNIKRE (8)

(b)

180

18

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

REELHEZED (B (b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)
AMRIAR
RERHE R KRB BRER A& B RS R TEEH
Country/place and Equity interest
Company name date of incorporation Paid-up capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
2020 2019
SMS Investment HEHE 500,000% 7T 50% 50%  REBE
Management Co., 2013F152H
Ltd. (“SMS Investment Cayman Islands, usb Investment management
Management”) 2 January 2013 500,000
ERRMAERERE Bl ER M N 47.85% 4785%  REEE
(rEREa ) 2009545138 426,500,0007T
(China F&B Venture Suzhou, PRC, RMB Investment management
Investments®) 13 April 2009 426,500,000
(“China F&B")
HERRHHIE FEEE 19,000,000% 7T 35% 3%  EEREESH
BRAF 2013%7523H
(Ziquan Beverage industries  Yichang, PRC, usb Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 23 July 2013 19,000,000 beverages
SMS Consumer Fund L.P. HENE 14,720,000% 7T 23.44% 23.44% REEE
(“SMSfund”) 2012E12818H
Cayman Islands, usb Investment management
18 December 2012 14,720,000
* EXHBHARBDEEESRN * The English name represents the best effort by

AP 2 EEESH -

iF—1 ¥ hE PG AR/ E Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

management of the Company in translating the Chinese

name.
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INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

A summary of the financial information of the major

B HBERTE jointly controlled entities of the Group is set out below:
EFERRD China F&B
2020 2019
ARY%FT ARMF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEEEAEAR . Summary of balance sheet:
ERBNEE Non-current assets 325,276 348,792
RIEE Current assets 29,067 46,976
MEE Total assets 354,343 395,768
FEREHEaE Non-current liabilities = -
mEIaE Current liabilities (27) 153
=R Total liabilities (27) 153
FEE Net assets 354,370 395,615
KEBRDLZEDLEE The Group’s % share 47.85% 47.85%
REE DML The Group’s share 169,566 189,302
BE2EWEE Summary of comprehensive income:
A Revenue - -
FEBER Loss and other comprehensive losses
Hth2mEEIE for the year (26,244) (64,428)
REE DML The Group's share (12,558) (30,753)

i—1 ¥ hEEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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18 IR ZARNEE (8)

(b) MREELEZHZ (@)

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (CONTINUED)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

182

EELT Wuhan Zijiang
2020 2019
AREFT AR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEEEAREK . Summary of balance sheet:
EREBEE Non-current assets 54,339 66,866
REEE Current assets 265,818 270,070
EEE Total assets 320,157 336,936
ERBEE Non-current liabilities = -
mEaE Current liabilities 33,627 28,692
=N Total liabilities 33,627 28,692
FEE Net assets 286,530 308,244
KEBDLZEDLE The Group’s % share 50% 50%
KEEDL The Group’s share 143,265 154,122
BEE@MWGER Summary of comprehensive income:
WA Revenue 206,562 237,077
FERM R Profit and other comprehensive income
Himemliam for the year 28,506 27,830
KERB DML The Group’s share 14,253 13,915

iF—1 ¥ hE PG AR/ E Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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19 BAFESFAHMESEEE
(MERFEFARMEEI
B)HEMEE

rEBZRATEFAEMEE KR
NEMEEURATEIER LEEU
TRIE:

19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (“FVOCI”)

Financial assets at FVOCI of the Group are stated at fair value
and include the following:

2020 2019
AR®BTx ARMETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BELmEs &8 Listed securities, Hong Kong
BRI Haisheng Juice 2,546 6,027

FRAEAFEFAHMEERENS
MEENESHUOT :

The movements in FVOCI during the year are as follows:

2020 2019

ARETFT AREFTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

181 At 1 January 6,027 218,621

FFAEMEEWREZ Net fair value changes taken to other

N EEENFEE (I5E28) comprehensive income (Note 28) (3,099) (929)
FAHE Disposal during the year (382) (211,665)
»12831H At 31 December 2,546 6,027

EHRFZATERBENGEEAZT
BREmMEE -

Hi— ¥ hEERA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 F 3§
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19 ‘A FEHHAEHMESEmEZ 19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

(MR FEFAHMEER THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
H)HNEHEE (B) INCOME (“FVOCI”) (CONTINUED)
R2020F12B31H > XEBEIFE & The Group holds 33,612,000 shares (2019: 37,800,000
ARATERBERAB (ME8FARTI) shares) in China Haisheng Juice Holdings Co., Ltd.
33,612,0008% (20194 : 37,800,000 (“‘Haisheng Juice”), representing 2.61% (2019: 2.93%) of the
i) Bm o EBARTREN2.61% shareholding of Haisheng Juice as at 31 December 2020.

(2019FF :12.93%) - ZEREN AT The fair value of the investment is the market quoted price
ERABARTHMBERE- RN EAR of Haisheng Juice. The investment in Haisheng Juice is
TR E AT E denominated in HKD.

20 IEIEFRIFIR 20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
FIEFMEMEEREIEFMSRAEESD The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred
T income tax liabilities is as follows:

2020 2019
AREFT AE®ETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BIEFTISIEE Deferred income tax assets
— B r121@ B AYk(el 2 — Deferred income tax assets to be
IRIEFTSIRE E recovered within 12 months 211,632 198,605
—#i12@ A &I (El 2 — Deferred income tax assets to be
BIEPRISIREE recovered after more than
12 months 159,885 145,583
371,517 344,188
RIEFTISREE Deferred income tax liabilities
— B2 NEE 2 — Deferred income tax liabilities to be
IEIEFTSIRBE settled within 12 months 10,490 6,593
—BRBBI2EB®BEE Y - Deferred income tax liabilities to be
FIEPRISIEE settled after more than 12 months 287,506 222,195
297,996 228,788
FIEFTISIEE 358 Deferred income tax assets, net 73,521 115,400
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20 RIEFRIGIR (8B)

IIEFTSMARB 2 8T ¢

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

The movements in the deferred income tax accounts are as

follows:

2020 2019

ARETFT ARFTT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R1B1H At 1 January 115,400 145,590
REME2E W0 Charged to other comprehensive income

(MFE11) (Note 11) - 6,672)

Riz&18% RN (FsE11)  Charged to the consolidated income

statement (Note 11) (113,879) (82,018)

BRERMNRIE Transferred to tax payable 72,000 58,500

PM12831H At 31 December 73,521 115,400

FRAREFMSMEEREENED
(R &t & B — 77 W 18 & 45 Bk 2 1K 84)
LI

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities

during the year, without taking into consideration the

offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as

follows:
RIEFRISIMEE Deferred income tax assets
BATE
MR N
B8 NEBER 2ENER 5
HERE RIEBIE FiBE  ATETH bt Mzt
Impairment
provision of
accounts  Depreciation Downward
receivables  of property, adjustment
and plant and Accrued in fair value Tax loss
inventories  equipment expenses of FVOCI benefit Total
AREFTR ARETT ARETR AREBTn ARETR ARET:
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
1201951518 At 1 January 2019 4,393 11,292 197,133 6,672 109,194 328,684
REMEERENR Charged to other
comprehensive income - - - (6,672) - (6,672)
ReEaBR&A/ (1R Credited/(charged) to the
consolidated income statement 1,748 8,761 (6,430) - 18,097 22,176
12019128318 At 31 December 2019 6,141 20,053 190,703 - 127,291 344,188
REBBRRIN/ (1K) Credited/(charged) to the
consolidated income statement 1,625 (380) 3,127 - 22,957 27,329
12020125318 At 31 December 2020 7,766 19,673 193,830 - 150,248 371,517

i—1 ¥ hEEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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20 JEEFRISHE (B)

186

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

RIEFREIEBE Deferred income tax liabilities
MR (-GS
i Sy N B Mt
Accelerated Capitalization
Withholding Business  depreciation  of borrowing
tax  combination of equipment costs Total
AREFT ARBFT ARETFR AEBF ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
1R2019E181H At 1 January 2019 19,664 120,907 22,855 19,668 183,094
RiFaBRE Charged/(credited) to the
0k Gt A) consolidated income statement 98,500 (4,184) 12,286 (2,408) 104,194
BEZECRE Transferred to tax payable (58,500) - - - (58,500)
*2019F12531H At 31 December 2019 59,664 116,723 35,141 17,260 228,788
RixdERk Charged/(credited) to the
0k GtA) consolidated income statement 123,000 (4,184) 28,698 (6,306) 141,208
BEEEMGRE Transferred to tax payable (72,000) - - - (72,000
12020128310 At 31 December 2020 110,664 112,539 63,839 10,954 297,996

RIEFFSMEEZETRAEZBRE
REZRH N EREMMRIEF @
MEEZRIBEBBEETUER K&
B K F2020FE12831 8 7 BB UK
HEBERRVIAZREBRBOA
K1741,451,0007T (20194 : AR
#722,146,0007T) FEERIELEFTER
BEENARTE167,227,0007T (2019
F 1 AR #¥160,884,0007T) ° 522021
FREAFASFRERNRBEED I
HAHENRM134,560,0000 AR
180,038,0007t ~ A K 195,839,000
TS ARM120,241,000c R AR
110,773,0007T °

R2020F 12831 H » W k5t & T M
BrERESZNZARERRFE
NMNEDBELEFMEREEARE
153,081,0007T (20194 : AR
271,408,007T) - AEEEIEEEAIE
BRARHRERZERM 522020
F12FE31H ZEXRELQRFEHA
ARE31ETT (2019F © ARKES4(E

7o) e

iF—1 ¥ hE PG AR/ E Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.
The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
approximately RMB167,227,000 (2019: RMB160,884,000)
in respect of tax losses amounting to approximately
RMB741,451,000 (2019: RMB722,146,000) as at 31
December 2020 that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. Tax losses amounting to approximately
RMB134,560,000, RMB180,038,000, RMB195,839,000,
RMB120,241,000 and RMB110,773,000 will expire in each of
the five years starting from 2021.

As at 31 December 2020, deferred income tax liabilities of
RMB153,031,000 (2019: RMB271,408,000) have not been
recognized for the withholding tax that would otherwise be
payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries.
The management of the Group currently has no intention
to remit those earnings in the foreseeable future. Such
unremitted earnings totalled RMB3.1 billion (2019: RMB5.4
billion) as at 31 December 2020.

e Annual Report 2020 &
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BRERNBTNEMIA

21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

BATEHA  BRATEHA
FEWTIE  Httemdbs B M
Receivables FVOCI FVPL Total
RAREEERR Assets as per consolidated
FRmNEE balance sheet
1R2020412H31H As at 31 December 2020
BATES AR M2 ERE FVOC (Note 19)
(HizE19) - 2,546 2,546
BB ZERREE Trade and bills receivables
(Ffzt23) (Note 23) 580,509 - 580,509
BEREMERIE Deposits and other receivables
(FBEBEAR (excluding prepayments) 374,345 - 374,345
BATES AR FVPL (Note 25)
(Pff5¥25) - - 1,621,634 1,621,634
EHTEHED (f3526)  Long-term time deposits
(Note 26) 4,720,000 - 4,720,000
ReRRITHE (H5E26) Cash and bank balances
(Note 26) 1,348,431 - 1,348,431
4Bt Total 7,023,285 2,546 1,621,634 8,647,465
12019512H31H As at 31 December 2019
#ATES AR M2 EE FVOC (Note 19)
(FizE19) - 6,027 6,027
B SRR ES Trade and bills receivables
(GEZR) (Note 23) 569,064 - 569,064
ReEREMERIE Deposits and other receivables
(FEERLH (excluding prepayments) 436,317 - 436,317
RECHEN (f5#26)  Long-term time deposits
(Note 26) 2,530,000 - 2,530,000
F&RIR1THE (H5526)  Cash and bank balances
(Note 26) 3,953,500 - 3,953,500
185t Total 7,488,881 6,027 7,494,908

i—1 ¥ hEEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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21 HEAERNESMWERTA () 21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

188

(CONTINUED)

H {thiz# 85 A
FENEMER
Other financial
liabilities
measured at
amortised cost

REBEERRRMATHNER

72020 12831H

Liabilities as per consolidated
balance sheet

As at 31 December 2020

FET B S8R (M5E29) Trade payables (Note 29) 1,879,727
HEaE (fEE15) Lease liabilities (Note 15) 45,316
HhENRIE KR ET &R Other payables and accruals

FEEFEZmEan) (excluding non-financial liabilities) 2,226,326
B8 (fI5¥31) Borrowings (Note 31) 487,072
Hih R HAFE I8 (FP5E30) Other long-term payables (Note 30) 237,478
4Bt Total 4,875,919
122019412831 H As at 31 December 2019
FEfT B SRR (M5E29) Trade payables (Note 29) 1,723,416
HE&E (W5E15) Lease liabilities (Note 15) 44,241
Hth R IBE R E & Other payables and accruals

(FEfEFEEmas) (excluding non-financial liabilities) 2,074,813
55 (MIsE31) Borrowings (Note 31) 1,162,867
HM RHAFEGFRIE (HI5E30) Other long-term payables (Note 30) 232,357
“ast Total 5,237,694

iF—1 ¥ hE PG AR/ E Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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22 78 22 INVENTORIES

2020 2019

AR®BFT AR®FT

RMB’000 RMB’000

JRAF L Raw materials 388,044 353,585

R E Work in progress 122,157 108,878

B fa Finished goods 1,183,902 1,059,391

55 Consumables 249,389 217,108

1,943,492 1,738,962
ERAMAIZ W AHE N AR H MG The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and
SZ2EERANAANRE147348 8 included in cost of sales and other expenses amounted to
7t (20194 | ARM14,136E & T) © approximately RMB14,734 million (2019: RMB14,136 million).
REE2020F128318 LLF E 7l The Group recognised inventory provision of approximately
HEEEHJERFEMS  ~&E RMB1,217,000 (2019: recognised RMB3,939,000) (Note
MRAEFEREHENOR ARTE,217,0007T 6) for the year ended 31 December 2020 in respect of the
(20194 : R AR #3,939,0007T) write-down of inventories to their net realisable values. These
(Miz¥6) cZEMBEEFABTRERZ amounts have been included in ‘cost of sales’ in the income

TiH & B Ay Ao statement.

Hi— ¥ hEERA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 F 3§ ,I 89
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23 EWREZERFKREE 23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
ARBTT AR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEWE Z RN Trade receivables
—RBEE= — from third parties 574,249 570,075
— R BRI — from related parties 13,110 10,505
587,359 580,580
R EEE Less: provision for impairment (14,804) (13,304)
FEUNE SRR BE Trade receivables, net 572,555 567,276
FEW ZE % Bills receivables
—REF=7H — from third parties 7,954 1,788
FEW B 5 BR R B 224k Trade and bills receivables 580,509 569,064
KEBBERTEPOOREIOXRZE The credit terms granted to customers by the Group are
FEA (20194 : BOKEQOK) o FEUR & usually 60 to 90 days (2019: 60 to 90 days). The ageing
SRFBVERER DA T - analysis of trade receivables is as follows:
2020 2019
AREEFT AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEWE Z RN 48 %8 Trade receivables, gross
—90K LA — Within 90 days 541,809 541,169
—91&E180%k - 91 to 180 days 42,021 36,124
—181E365K% — 181 to 365 days 2,290 2,189
——FE — Over one year 1,239 1,098
587,359 580,580

1 90 H— ¥R EERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 &%
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23 EWEZRFKRERE (8)

AEERWEZRRZIRE BT
EgsHE :

23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

2020 2019
ARBFT AR®BFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

FEW B ZERERR > 42%8 Trade receivables, gross
- AR - RMB 583,025 575,972
—%E7T - Ush 1,303 1,213
—B7T - HKD 3,031 3,395
587,359 580,580

REEB BREZRRKRZHENER
HEZEAFERBSE-

RESHB AEERAEZRSE
EREA LABREZERRREEZ
FHE AERITEFETAEE®
TER I

AEBRERERBYBREEREIR
BRIEs % ERMERWE SR
REMEENEMBRRARBERE
StERHEEBIE WS 1(h)RHA
Mt EBEHNFE

ERBUESRNAERAERESR
JR\ Bz ~ S BEE L B e M) R EL B 2 B L B
PEPHEEES.1 ©

Hi— ¥ hEERA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 F 3§ /I 9/1

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables
approximated their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.

The maximum exposure of the Group to credit risk at
the reporting date is the carrying value of trade and bills
receivables as mentioned above. The Group does not hold
any collateral as security.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and contract
assets. Note 3.1(b) provides for details about the calculation
of the allowance.

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and
the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk can be found in Note 3.1.
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24 FEGFIE-EBEREMEL 24 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

TRIE RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
AREFT AR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HihEWFIE Other receivables
— FEUR BA B 5 7B — Amounts due from related parties
(M45E34(b)) (Note 34(b)) 98,721 76,778
—Hihiz & R EWRRIE — Other deposits and receivables 256,793 359,539
355,514 436,317
B JERNERER Less: non-current portion (15,833) (15,816)
BOHAER Current portion 339,681 420,501
FET B Prepayments
—FEIZER — Prepaid value added tax 180,815 192,326
—FEFHERZRIE — Advance payments to suppliers 102,613 98,156
283,428 290,482
623,109 710,983
BAIBHTENRIE s R EH M E K Substantially all of the prepayments, deposits and other
MEHRARESE BFENREE receivables are dominated in RMB. Their carrying amounts
BHEHREEHZ ATFERS - approximated their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.
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25 HATEETAELDE (MEAFE 25 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

Bt AEHZ) NEMEE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (“FVPL”)
BATFEFAEGZNEMEESRIT Financial assets at FVPL represented the structured deposits
NEBEER - RRTFESABGN at banks. Changes in fair values of FVPL are recorded in
NFEEHFABRROTEMFE - “other gains — net” in the income statement.
PER]©

EERATE

#E2020F #E2020F FAREMN
12A318H 12A31A1 EREESHEN

ERMEESRN ARETT) EREEYE BREmME ATHE Bt GREENEE BHIHA
Investment Fair Value Percentage
Number of Cost as of as of in terms of
Categories of the Financial 31 December 31 December  Total Financial Weights to Expected date
Financial Assets (RMB’000) Assets 2020 2020 assets at FVPL Total Assets of expiration
EHRITER (RE) 12 1,000,000 1,018,500 62.81% 461% 202148200 ZE
202148831H
Term Bank Products (principal 29/04/2021-31/08/2021
protected)
BRMEER 4 600,000 600,331 37.02% 2.72% 2021125240 %
2021F12831H
Structured Deposit 24/12/2021-31/12/2021
REEE 1 2,803 2,808 0.17% 0.01% BERFAIEE]
Investment Fund Redeemable at any time
a5t 17 1,602,803 1,621,634 100.00% 7.34%
Total

Hi— ¥ hEERA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 F 3§ ,I 98
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26 REICHEHR -HE&LIRTT 26 LONG-TERM TIME DEPOSITS AND CASH

4 ER AND BANK BALANCES
2020 2019
AREFT AE®ETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RHEHER Long-term time deposits 4,720,000 2,530,000
Re RIRITHER Cash and bank balances 1,348,431 3,953,500
RIT A FEIRELEST Total of cash at bank and on hand 6,068,431 6,483,500
MIREREXRENME  RWRITAFHE A reconciliation of cash at bank and on hand to cash and
BEeHBEEBEY2HERNOT ¢ cash equivalent for the purpose of cash flow statements is as
follows:
2020 2019
AREFT AE®ETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RITRFEIRE Cash at bank and on hand 6,068,431 6,483,500
B RAEHAEBE=EAER Less: Long-term and short-term
R EHEERRGER time deposits with original
maturity over three months (5,581,631) (6,425,720)
ZREIRITER Restricted bank deposits (500) (1,000)
BEKIEREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 486,300 1,056,780
R2020F 128310 » ZEBERIRIT As at 31 December 2020, the effective weighted average
HNEMRESEMEFHFEREZR4.08E rate on deposits of the Group placed with banks was 4.08%
(20194 : 4.018) - (2019: 4.01%) per annum.
R2020F 128310 > L RHIIRITER As at 31 December 2020, the restricted bank deposits of
AR #500,0007t (20194 ¢ AR RMB500,000 (2019: RMB1,000,000) represented deposits at
1,000,0007T) IE1EA AR EBREBEX H bank pledged as security for gas charge of the Group.

IR P ERRRITEM
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REEHEF HEKIR{T 26 LONG-TERM TIME DEPOSITS AND CASH
iEeER (18) AND BANK BALANCES (CONTINUED)
R2020F12H31H IBITAFERSE As at 31 December 2020, total of cash at bank and on hand
RET LT B EHE were denominated in the following currencies:
2020 2019
AREFT AR¥TF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
— AR - RVMB 6,064,218 6,467,966
—%7T -usD 2,224 10,166
—B7T - HKD 1,962 3,655
—EAth - Others 27 1,713
6,068,431 6,483,500
ARERTIEAREERTSEBSH RMB is currently not a freely convertible currency in the
R ZEB - BARBERNABINER international market. The conversion of RMB into foreign
AR BE H A [ 35 4h 78 52 A B 14 A 78 currency and remittance of RMB out of the PRC are subject
i 2 SNEEE IR B R AR B P 3R IR o to the rules and regulations of exchange controls promulgated
by the PRC authorities.
A% s Bz B 7 s (B BR 27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

ACCOUNT

EE
Authorised
EER¥RE i BaiE
Number of Share capital
ordinary shares Share capital equivalent to
FTAT ARETT
HKD'000 RMB’000
20201 B1HE At 1 January 2020 till
2020F12831H 31 December 2020 50,000,000,000 500,000 440,240
BEIRAR
Issued and fully paid
R HE & Bafe  ROEER EH
Share Share
Number of Share capital premium
shares capital  equivalent to account Total
FEr  ARETr  ARETR  ARET:
HKD'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
120201 B1HE At 1 January 2020 il
2020F12831H 31 December 2020 4,319,334,000 43,193 39,764 4,829,899 4,869,663

i—1 ¥ hEEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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28 Hfithf#E

196

28 OTHER RESERVES

BARE ATERE

EERE

(=}
Contribution Fair value Statutory
surplus reserves reserves Total
AREFR ARETRT ARETR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
#201951818 2 &8k Balance at 1 January 2019 1,144,299 (45,247) 1,407,799 2,506,851
BATEFARMZENE Fair value losses on FVOCI (Note 19)

ZATERE (H319) - (929) - (929)
HERATEFAELMZEN G ZFIE Gain on disposal of FVOCI - 92,058 - 92,058
HECRBEERRBESAREZ Transfer of net fair value losses

NEFEHBURHERATESAEM  previously taken to reserves, and

AN ZFBEERERA) gains on disposal of FVOCI, to

retained earnings upon disposal of

the financial assets - (70,700) - (70,700)
BRELERE Appropriation to statutory reserves - - 240,244 240,244
12019128310 Z 58 Balance at 31 December 2019 1,144,299 (4818 1648043 2,767,524
12020F1 818 2 &5 Balance at 1 January 2020 1,144,299 (24,818) 1,648,043 2,767,524
BATEFAEMZEREN Fair value losses on FVOCI (Note 19)

NFERE (H3519) - (3,099) - (3,099)
BHERATFEFAHMZEREN Transfer of loss on disposal of equity

BARENGEESEERERF investments at fair value through

other comprehensive income to

retained earnings - 3,035 - 3,035
BRELERE Appropriation to statutory reserves - - 386,110 386,110
120205128310 2 &8¢ Balance at 31 December 2020 1,144,299 (24,882) 2,034,153 3,153,570

iF—1 ¥ hE PG AR/ E Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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28 Hthf#E (48)

(@

(b)

A RER

KRB BABFREBRIERAT
R EHmZAEARARRRFTAA
RIE LT EET ZEEFYR
Z A B KRB FF R DK B
FER e

RERERESEZREER ZF
BMARBRP] DR T AAT B Em
AN

EEEB

oh B A 12 BOA AR B KT R 5
AR ZHEDZRA AEBR
DIKBINES B BAE M B IWAKFA
FRIEY S PR (EREUESE
ERRFEER) PRE—EMN
AERB-FIEEAERBIOIME
EEMMIEE -

ERIIEBELEEMRERE
MR ENEAR  EE
TEFERRERENDIKE > A
KA R B Z10% R EEE
BRARE BEEAERBAME
EADRATZEMERS0% 4
beoltih WERBDIEEBE
EEHIBERE TR BRI R E
M AR TE A R IEAL R R AE
EREBABT - FRARIGEL
&1 2 5 A I A9 R BB B A
B EHBEEFEENERET
B DA ERRIR B BRI B AETE
it e

EEBBABRTREANBEA
ANBE - BERATINEERLE
HIEMABEA -

i—1 ¥ hEEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

28 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(a

(b)

Contribution surplus

Contribution surplus of the Company mainly represent
the net balance of contributions from and distributions
to the equity holder of the Company prior to the
listing of shares of the Company pursuant to the
reorganisation for the purpose of the Listing.

According to the law and regulation of the Cayman
Islands, such contribution surplus is distributable to the
equity holders of the Company.

Statutory reserves

The PRC laws and regulations require companies
registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory
reserves, which are appropriated from the net profit
as reported in their respective statutory financial
statements after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years and before profit distributions to equity
holder. All statutory reserves are created for specific
purposes.

PRC subsidiaries incorporated as wholly-foreign
owned enterprises and domestic companies are
required to appropriate 10% of statutory net profits to
statutory surplus reserves, upon distribution of their
post-tax profits of the current year, until the statutory
surplus reserve is not less than 50% of its registered
capital. In addition, at the discretion of the respective
boards of directors, these companies may allocate
a portion of their post-tax profits to the staff welfare
and bonus reserve and discretionary surplus reserve.
PRC subsidiaries incorporated as sino-foreign equity
joint venture companies may allocate a portion of their
statutory post-tax profits to the statutory reserves at the
discretion of the respective boards of directors.

The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to
make up losses of the companies, to expand the
companies’ production operations, or to increase the
capital of the companies.
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29 FE{TEZIR® 29 TRADE PAYABLES
2020 2019
ARBTT AR®FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FET B SRR Trade payables
—$= — to third parties 1,455,650 1,303,927
—FRA S — to related parties 424,077 419,489
1,879,727 1,723,416
HEBRFAEB ZEHABEEEA30 The credit terms granted by suppliers to the Group are usually
KEQOK BB ZER ZERE DA 30 to 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade payables is as
T follows:
2020 2019
AREFT AR®BFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FET B Z IR Trade payables
—30KUA — Within 30 days 1,511,910 1,427,797
—31&E90XK — 31-90 days 282,239 233,981
—91E180% - 91-180 days 25,499 10,699
—181E365K% — 181 to 365 days 18,102 13,864
——&F L - Over 1 year 41,977 37,075
1,879,727 1,723,416
FMTERNEZEREUARBEE. All the trade payables are denominated in RMB. Their carrying
REZEEBERARGEEHZAFE amounts approximated their fair values as at the balance
GER=E sheet dates.
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30 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

2020 2019
AR¥FT ARF T
RMB’000 RMB’000

Te8E MBS RS Accruals for promotion and
FEtE advertising expenses 1,389,736 1,234,853
B T & R AEF) Salary and welfare payables 376,231 392,328
BRI EE Deposits from customers 516,715 428,703
REER B RN TUIE Payables for purchase of equipment 154,660 156,776
HMENRIBERESTE R Other payables and accruals 521,423 565,699
2,958,765 2,778,359
B FEBNERER Less: non-current portion (237,478) (232,357)
BNERER 7 Current portion 2,721,287 2,546,002

RBAREMD Hth B RIBE RSt B A
DARBSE REZREEZER

MEBZAFERSE-

i—1 ¥ hEEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

their fair values as at the balance sheet dates.
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Substantially all of the other payables and accruals are
dominated in RMB. Their carrying amounts approximated
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31 &8 31 BORROWINGS

2020 2019

ARBTT AR®EF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

RHRIRTTEE > WK Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured 487,072 1,162,867

KREEZEBEANR—FREER- The Group’s borrowings were repayable within one year.

BEZRAEAENRGEEB 2 A FE The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximated
e LR T EHEEE their fair values as at the balance sheet dates, and were

200

denominated in the following currencies:

2020 2019

AREFT AR¥F T

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR RMB 487,072 1,153,100
ESa uUsb - 9,767
487,072 1,162,867
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B8 (&) 31 BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
NREBHZNEEHABRAZET The weighted average effective interest rates at the respective
wr balance sheet dates were set out as follows:
2020 2019
ARETFT ARFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
IRITEE B Bank borrowings, unsecured
— AR - RMB 3.52% 3.88%
—%E7T - USD - 2.57%
AEBBB T RENZIBTEEEE The Group has the following undrawn bank borrowing
=g facilities:
2020 2019
ARETFT ARMFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R EFIE At floating rate:
——FE RN EIH — Expiring within one year 1,913,800 3,007,208
——F L EFH - Expiring beyond one year 3,913,486 1,006,906
5,827,286 4,014,114

Hi— ¥ hEERA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 F 3§
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32

202

EEEEZHE 32 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
2020 2019
ARBTT AR®EF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
PRPRIS I AT F] Profit before income tax 2,326,459 1,971,360
T ZIBEEH ZHEE Adjustments for:
—UREFmEARZ — Gains on investments accounted
BEFIE (HI5E18) for using equity method (Note 18) (45,772) (13,083)
—ME-BER — Depreciation of property,
wEITE (H5E14) plant and equipment (Note 14) 1,168,684 1,271,799
—EREEEITE — Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(M$5E15) (Note 15) 93,051 85,300
— ¥ EMEITE (Y5E16) - Depreciation of investment
properties (Note 16) 19,273 19,747
— L EEHSNE (H5E17) — Amortisation of intangible
assets (Note 17) 10,562 8,111
—HEME -MEKZERN - Gains on disposal of property,
F1g HIsE7) plant and equipment (Note 7) (8,612) (4,137)
—HEFEREEEZFRE — Gains on disposal of right-of-use
(MF5E7) assets (Note 7) (48,681) (5,505)
—RATFEFABZMNEE - Gains on disposal of FVPL (Note 7)
18 (MI5E7) (38,789) -
—FEMBZESIRFEEL — Provision of inventories to net
BE (st22) realisable value (Note 22) 1,217 3,939
—(ERREE — Provision for right-of-use assets 13,000 -
— K E ZERFUREEE — Provision for impairment
(M35E23) of trade receivables (Note 23) 1,500 2,020
— AT EEAER - Change in value of financial assets at
NEMEEZEE FVPL (Note 7)
28 (sE7) (18,831) -
—FI BB (MEE10) — Interest expenses (Note 10) 56,441 57,334
—EREE (FEE10) — Foreign exchange losses
(Note 10) 771 132
3,530,273 3,397,067
EEESEY . Changes in working capital:
—FEWE Z R R — Increase in trade and
& bills receivables (12,945) (41,023)
—FENRIE-ZEK - Increase in prepayments, deposits
H fih FE W RIS IE N and other receivables (87,997) (24,365)
—H A IERDARFE WL AR IE — Increase in other non-current
&0 receivables (17) (3,904)
—1FEEM — Increase in inventories (205,748) (283,882)
— BT B ZERFRIE M - Increase in trade payables 156,311 169,197
—HMEARIER - Increase/(decrease) in
FEETERIGM, O&) other payables and accruals 177,867 (38,394)
— BB EEN — Increase in contract liabilities 322,665 405,018
—HAhIERNEAFE I FIE — Increase/(decrease) in other
#an, CRisb) non-current payables 5,121 (5,298)
EEESX VRS Cash generated from operations 3,885,530 3,574,416

iF—1 ¥ hE PG AR/ E Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(CONTINUED)
REERERT HEVE - BEKR In the statements of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of
E-REMERGAREEZMER property, plant and equipment, investment properties, right-
HEIE

of-use assets comprise:

2020 2019
AR®BTT ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMEEE (BY5E14 HI5E155  Net book amount (Note 14,Note 15,

Mi5E16) and Note 16) 75,875 243,689
HEYE BB RRE Gains on disposal of property, plant and

KREMERTERAEEEZ equipment, investment properties,

FIg (H&E7) right-of-use assets (Note 7) 57,293 9,642
HEa/RD Decrease in lease liabilities (961) (281)
TETIE ~ 12 R HAh Decrease in prepayments, deposits and

FE U R IE R other receivables 176,089 62,219
HAEARIE R LD Decrease in other payables - (23,366)
HEME -BEEZE Proceeds from disposal of property,

TR EREREESE plant and equipment, land use rights

ZFT8FIB and right-of-use assets 308,296 291,903

i—1 ¥ hEEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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32 BEEEZHE (B) 32 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)
KEFHINEBFENS 2T HEED This section sets out an analysis of the movements in net
Ao debt for each of the periods presented.
HEaE BE st
Lease
liabilities Borrowings Total
ARETT ARBFT AREBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
1£2018%F12831H As at 31 December 2018 - 1,987,726 1,987,726

RSB BREZER Recognised on adoption of

FH16IE MRS HKFRS 16 53,478 - 53,478
201951818 As at 1 January 2019 53,478 1,987,726 2,041,204
RERE - Cash flows:

MEGBRERA Inflow from financing activities - 17,999,981 17,999,981
HEFFREMH Outflow from financing activities (34,974) (18,823,680) (18,858,654)

REREEE Recognition of right-of-use assets 26,077 - 26,077
BUERRAERREE Derecognition of right-of-use assets (340) - (340)
B R Currency translations - (1,160) (1,160)
2019%12831H As at 31 December 2019 44,241 1,162,867 1,207,108
RERE * Cash flows:

REEBHRTR Inflow from financing activities - 12,313,727 12,313,727
REFHRE A Outflow from financing activities (39,315) (12,989,345) (13,028,660)

REAEEE Recognition of right-of-use assets 41,351 - 41,351
BUEEREREEE Derecognition of right-of-use assets (961) - (961)
EisRin Currency translations - (177) (177)
*2020%12831H As at 31 December 2020 45,316 487,072 532,388

204 H— ¥R EERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 &%
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33 &KiE 33 COMMITMENTS
(a) BAKIE (a) Capital commitments
KEBMERAEUWT : The Group’s capital commitments are as follows:
2020 2019
AR¥F AREETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
MR E K& 1E Property, plant and equipment
—BEIAEREE — Contracted but not provided for 392,418 329,120
(b) REHERIE (b) Operating lease commitments
FEFEABATN © The Group is the lessee:

FEERBER=ZBREE+ERE
mZ AR EREEEZ A
MrEREE-mEFHERET
B HA IR ~ T+ 8RR TR R iE AO 1 o 18
MESEEMEMEER-

FEECHRFHERDEAE
EEEFASEERREEEM
B E—TENBRME5

MEZEERERENT

The Group leases various offices and warehouses
under non-cancellable operating leases expiring within
3 months to 10 years. The leases have varying terms,
escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the
terms of the leases are renegotiated.

The Group has recognised right-of-use assets for these
leases, except for short-term and low-value leases, see
Note 15 for further information.

The operating lease commitments for properties are as
follows:

2020 2019
AR#FT AE®BFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
LYES Properties
——FEREHBZEE — Lease expiring within one year 5,538 6,752

i—1 ¥ hEEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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33 KIE (B) 33 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) REHEFRE B (b) Operating lease commitments (Continued)
EEFEABHAN © The Group is the lessor:
AEFERBEATHENKCERE The Group leases out investment properties, plant
HE THAREYE BERK and equipment under non-cancellable operating lease
HBoZEHRNBEIARANFRRE agreements. The leases have various terms and renewal
HE TARATHENKCEHER rights. The future aggregate minimum rental receipts
ETAERRKRERNREES under these non-cancellable operating leases are as
MEERENE follows:

2020 2019

ARBTT AR®EF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

BB —F Not later than 1 year 117,953 95,716
BEm—F Later than 1 year and

(ERN ek not later than 5 years 94,271 26,582

HBBRE Later than 5 years 33,044 35,381

245,268 157,679

206 H— ¥R EERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 &%
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FEEZRBRERRBABF—EER
MBERAR (Mg—©0z)
BERZGAARAB LT ZAT &
NEREEZRR/F—EEXZMBRAAR
AEBZEGERERBERTDRAAF

R B 75 o

(a)

BRI EITHRS ¢

SRS ETHRZUWT

RV NE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Group are regarded as related parties.

(@) Transactions with related parties:

The ultimate holding company of the Group is #— 12§ 5
A BR/AE (Uni-President Enterprises Corporation®) (‘UPE”), a
company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation.
The directors of the Company are of the view that the
subsidiaries of UPE, the joint ventures and associates of the

The following transactions are carried out with related

parties:
2020 2019
5T ARBTFrT AR¥TFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
EM R R RIS Sales of raw materials and
finished goods: (i)
—H—1EZHMBAT - Subsidiaries of UPE 104,824 101,242
—KmERZEEMERE - Joint ventures and associates of
& AT the Group 10,178 7,397
115,002 108,639
R B AR SR EREE Purchase of raw materials and
finished goods: (i)
— 1% - UPE 15,863 15,654
—H—1EZHMBAT - Subsidiaries of UPE 3,625,647 3,629,101
—KERZEEMER - Joint ventures and associates of
& AT the Group 514,868 561,482
4,156,378 4,206,237
MRS . Logistics service expense: 0]
—#—1EZEBAT - Subsidiaries of UPE - 4,428

i—1 ¥ hEEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34 FABARZ (B) 34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)
(a) HERABSETHRS . (@ (a) Transactions with related parties: (Continued)
2020 2019
B 5T AREFT AR¥F T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B ARFFUA Consultation service income: 0]
—#—1bFE - UPE 47 _
—#—1EZHBAE - Subsidiaries of UPE 56,839 52,917
—REFEZEEPER - Joint ventures and associates of
A —YNE| the Group 3,137 7,596
60,023 60,513
FHEUWA - Rental income: (ii)
—#—1EZBAT - Subsidiaries of UPE 65,379 60,644
—REEEEPER - Joint ventures and associates of
i —Y/NE| the Group 1,647 1,647
67,026 62,291
* ENLBHEHARABEIEES * The English name represents the best effort by the
NP LTBEIES H - management of the Company in translating the Chinese
name.
Bk - Notes:
(i) LAt iHE MR BB R AR R AR @ 0] The above sales and purchases of raw materials and
B TRE RIREEBRY finished goods, receipt of logistics service and provision
THiRIEERE ek 2 IR FETT © of consultation service are carried out in accordance

208

(if)

with the terms of the underlying agreements.

FAeisHEYEZ WA LR (i)  Rental income represents income from lease of
BEINE FE] L HE 2R properties and is charged in accordance with the terms
YSTEY o of agreements made between the parties.

H— ¥R EERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 &%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)
SRR B /5 45 BR - (b) Balances with related parties:
R2020%F12831H  AEEHEH The Group has the following significant balances with its
Rl S B UL T ERAR ! related parties as at 31 December 2020:
2020 2019
AR®BTx ARBETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
& W e gt 75 B BB Balances due from related parties:
FEUN B 5 8RR Trade receivables
(FfsE23) : (Note 23):
—F— 1 ZWEBAE - Subsidiaries of UPE 13,110 10,505
FE{T R IE K H At Prepayments and other receivables
FEW R IE (Note 24):
(Fz¥24) :
—H— 1 ZWEAT - Subsidiaries of UPE 95,418 78,737
—REFEZEEPER - Joint ventures and associates of
=N the Group 3,303 3,041
98,721 76,778
111,831 87,283
FE (< FE gt 75 B R Balances due to related parties:
FE{T B 5 R Trade payables
(Mz¥29) : (Note 29):
—#r—b - UPE 2,073 2,576
—F—1EZWEAT - Subsidiaries of UPE 383,549 389,629
—REBZEEMCER - Joint ventures and associates of
= l/NE the Group 38,455 27,284
424,077 419,489

Hi— ¥ hEERA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 F 3§
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34 BAMAERH (&)

34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(CONTINUED)

(b) EARAEES4EER  (B) (b) Balances with related parties: (Continued)

2020 2019
ARBTT AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000

HMEIHRIER Other payables and accruals

FEEtE R (MI5E30) (Note 30):

——1EZHEAT - Subsidiaries of UPE 27,734 34,613
451,811 454,102

HEBAERSEER RER
ARBEXRERE -

PR SR A R Bk 75 A5 BR BV RR EI B
HHERNEEHZATEMRE-

The balance with related parties are unsecured, interest
free and repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of the balances due from and
due to related parties approximated their fair value as at
balance sheet dates.

(c) FEEEBEASHM : (c) Key management compensation:
2020 2019
ARBTT ARMEFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e LA R EMEF]  Salaries, bonus and other welfares 19,601 19,353

2/1 O H— ¥R EERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 &%
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35 ANEIEEEBERE#HESE 35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
KABEEBEX (a) Balance sheet of the Company
2020 2019
ARBTFTT ARFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
EREEE Non-current assets
R—FRHB AT ZIKE Investment in a subsidiary 7,976,325 7,976,325
R—REE AT Z#%m  Interest in an associated company 1,454 1,281
BATFE AEMSE Financial assets at fair value through
WRNErEE other comprehensive income 2,546 6,027
ME-MEREE Property, plant and equipment 6 9
7,980,331 7,983,642
MENEE Current assets
FETRIE K Prepayments and other receivables
HAhEWRIE 378 403
FE WS IS B8 A Bl kIR Amounts due from subsidiaries 29,088 68,285
RERIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 2,644 1,454
32,110 70,142
BHEMRE Total assets 8,012,441 8,053,784

Hi— ¥ hEERA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 F 3§
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35 ZATEEEBEBEREH#ESE 35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
g (48) MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(@) HTAFEEABR @) (a) Balance sheet of the Company (Continued)
2020 2019
AR®BTx ARBEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
R EQUITY
[N Share capital 39,764 39,764
1D RER Share premium account 4,829,899 4,829,899
Huh B Other reserves 1,356,194 1,356,258
REERBF] Retained earnings 1,785,841 1,806,924
4EKERR Total equity 8,011,698 8,032,845
af& LIABILITIES
mEAafE Current liabilities

H e RIB & Other payables and accruals

FESTE 743 1,173
BE Borrowings - 19,766

743 20,939
wasE Total liabilities 743 20,939
HmkaERetE Total equity and liabilities 8,012,441 8,053,784
KABIEEBEREN202143 The balance sheet of the Company was approved by
B1oREEEFHE TAHAMUT the Board of Directors on 19 March 2021 and were
BEEAXREE- signed on its behalf by the following Directors.
BE% P
LO Chih-Hsien LIU Xinhua
HITEE HITEE
Executive Director Executive Director

2/1 2 H— ¥R EERARAT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 &%
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35 ANEIEEEBERE#HESE 35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

B (48) MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)
(b) EABEEES (b) Reserve movements of the Company

AR ATEFHE BERT ait

Contribution Fair value Retained
surplus reserves earnings Total
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

#2019181H2  Balance at 1 January 2019

ey 1,381,078 (23,891) 1,761,277 3,118,464
FEEHR Profit for the year - - 1,092,365 1,092,365
BAFEFA Fair value losses on FVOCI

Htt 2\

ZATHEBE - (929) - (929)
B J2018F 2 RE  Dividends relating to 2018, paid - - (1,046,718) (1,046,718)

#2019%12831H 2 Balance at 31 December 2019

& 1,381,078 (24,820) 1,806,924 3,163,182
EEGH Profit for the year - - 1,350,953 1,350,953
BATEEA Fair value losses on FVOCI

Hith2mis

2AFEBE - (3,099) - (3,099)

W|HHERATE  Transfer of loss on disposal of equity
SAHMZEKE  investments at fair value through

ERREZ other comprehensive income to
BREEFREARN retained earnings - 3,035 (3,035) -
EXJ2019F 2 RE  Dividends relating to 2019, paid - - (1,369,001) (1,369,001

20201283102 Balance at 31 December 2020
&e 1,381,078 (24,884) 1,785,841 3,142,035

Hi— ¥ hEERA R AT Uni-President China Holdings Ltd. ¢ Annual Report 2020 F 3§ 2/1 8
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36 EFEAIMER

(a)

214

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS
EERESTBRABZME (@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
ZEEMARSITHABZFNE The remuneration of every director and the chief
FIA0E executive is set out below:
RINER
HElz
EEiY ik #it WBEL EEEE HftEE  EIMX EEh
Employer’s
contribution
toa
retirement
Name of Discretionary Housing Other benefit
Director Fees Salary bonuses allowance allowance scheme Total
ARETT ARETR ARB®TR ARETT ARETRT AR®TR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2020 2020
HiTEZS Executive directors
BELEE M Lo Chih-Hsien
(#ER) 52 424 4,361 - 10 - 4,847
ZIFELE M LuXinhua (BIFE) 46 1,344 2,498 240 - 51 4,179
JFHITEZ  Non-executive directors
BEIRAE Mr SuTsung-Ming
(B =88 46 - - - - - 46
BEEESRE  Mr. CHEN Kuo-Hui
(ENE) 46 - - - - - 46
BAIEHT  Independent
=5 non-executive directors
BRECE%4E M Chen Sun-Te
(EfE) 235 - - - 23 - 258
BICELE M FanRen-Da,
Anthony (B{Z3#%) 235 - - - 23 - 258
BEELE M LoPeter (BE2E) 235 - - - 23 - 258
BEERLE M Chen Johnny
(HEE) 235 - - - 13 - 248
1,130 1,768 6,859 240 92 51 10,140

iF—1 ¥ hE PG AR/ E Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

RA 75 AR M 5E

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

#® (Continued)
RKER
HEZ
BEER e e NETEL REER O HMEE EXEX st
Employer's
contribution
toa
retirement
Name of Discretionary Housing Other benefit
Director Fees Salary bonuses  allowance  allowance scheme Total
AEETR ARETT ARBTR AREFR ARETR ARETR ARETET
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
2019%F 2019
HITES Executive directors
BELLE M Lo Chih-Hsien
(BE%) 56 453 4,167 - 1 - 4,687
HELE M Lu Xinhua (BI373) 49 1,344 2,258 240 - 49 3,940
FHTEE  Non-executive directors
BE®AE  Mr SuTsung-Ming
=) 47 - - - - - 47
BENELE  Mr CHEN Kuo-Hui
(EE) 49 - - - - - 49
BIUIEHIT  Independent
EES non-executive directors
BRES@EE M Chen Sun-Te
(REfE) 251 - - - 25 - 276
BCELE M Fan Ren-Da, Anthony
(Cexme=) 251 - - - 25 - 276
BEERE M LoPeter (BE2) 251 - - - 25 - 276
BEERELE M Chen Johnny
(HEER) 251 - - - 14 - 265
1,205 1,797 6,425 240 100 49 9,816
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36 EFEMRER (B)

210

(a)

EXkEETHAEZHME
(&)

REE20204F 52019128 31
BEFE BMEAABDEERE
FEBRREBETAMEN R &
RETMEATAEEZ NS
EAMBAEBRNNMBRF 2R
BhSEZ BB A (E o

ARB MR AERZ EFH] L
ARBEFENETHEEERAEDR
(TwmAsERIBERE) > BRNA
FEGRE A F EREAERE
MAEMZERRG LG
#o

36 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
no arrangement was in place under which a director
of the Company waived or has agreed to waive any
emoluments and no emoluments were paid by the
Company to any of the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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37 WEAR

37 SUBSIDIARIES

TXHHAATF2020F12831HZ

The following sets out the details of the principal subsidiaries

i—1 ¥ hEEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.
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FTEWBLAREE of the Company as at 31 December 2020.
AMBEIER,
AR 2R B BETREERE Frtsie e FTEEY TENE
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2020 2019
BEBE Directly owned
F-BHERBRAT HEHE 923,180,000% 75 100% 100%  REZR/HEHEE
200665290
Uni-President Asia Holdings Ltd. Cayman Islands, USD923,180,000 Investment holding/
29 June 2006 Cayman Islands
Indirectly owned
RS Indirectly owned
H— % (RE) REBRAF FE 5 1,103,770,000% 7¢ 100% 100%  WELR/TE
199835108
(Uni-President Enterprises (China) Shanghai, PRC. USD1,108,770,000 Investment holding/PRC
Investments Ltd.") 10 March 1998
MER—CERRBRAT HESE A 37,500,000% 75 100% 100%  HERHESHKRER
199241 F13H /HE
(Uni-President Enterprises (Xinjiang) ~ Urumaj, PRC. USD37,500,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 13 January 1992 beverages and food/PRC
REFE—CERRERAT FE A 65,000,000% 7 100% 100%  EERFEENHK
199347148 B/ HE
(Chengdu President Enterprises Chengdu, PRC. USDB5,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 14 April 1993 beverages and food/PRC
BlUF—rEERBRAF HE R 96,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  AERBESEK
1993557148 B&/HE
(Kunshan President Enterprises Kunshan, PRC. USD96,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.") 14 May 1993 beverages and food/PRC
HEGR— X8R BRAT R 2 59,600,000% 7t 100% 100%  HERBEHEEK
19935 7A7H BR/HE
(Wuhan President Enterprises Food ~ Wuhan, PRC. USD59,600,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 7 July 1993 beverages and food/PRC
BNG—CERRAT Bl E M 75,000,000% 75 100% 100%  £ERBEEHEK
199441250 B/ HE
(Guangzhou President Guangzhou, PRC. USD75,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Corp.”) 5 December 1994 beverages and food/PRC
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37 MBAFE (1) 37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

FAMAIER,
SR R R A BRITRBERE FRaRg HE TEEETE
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2020 2019
BER—CERRAT FEER 39,900,000%7¢ 100% 100%  AERHEERRK
199556A 158 B&/HE
(Shenyang President Shenyang, PRC. USD39,900,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.") 15 June 1995 beverages and food/PRC
BESE—CERRAT FEEE 60,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  HERHEERK
1998427 23H BR/H
(Hefei President Hefei, PRC. USD60,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 23 February 1998 beverages and food/PRC
BB EH—EERAT hEREE 29,200,000% 75 100% 100% LERHERNK
1998425 26H ‘R FE
(Harbin President Enterprises Harbin, PRC. USD29,200,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.%) 26 February 1998 beverages and food/PRC
LRF—ERBRAT HELER 52,900,000%7¢ 100% 100%  EERBERK/TE
20014F2820H
(Beijing President Enterprises Beijing, PRC. USD52,900,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Drinks Co., Ltd.%) 20 February 2001 beverages/PRC
HER—CERRAF FEEE 44,000,000%7¢ 100% 100%  AERHEERRK
2001457188 B&/HE
(Nanchang President Nanchang, PRC. USD44,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.") 18 May 2001 beverages and food/PRC
BNGE—CEBRAT FEEMN 20,000,000%7¢ 100% 100%  HERHEEEK
2001£78198 BR/HFE
(Fuzhou President Fuzhou, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 19 July 2001 beverages and food/PRC
BINFE—EEBRAS R M 37,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  FERBEEHREK
2002465258 ‘R FE
(Zhengzhou President Zhengzhou, PRC. USD37,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 25 June 2002 beverages and food/PRC
f— (LB BBERAA FE LR 8,600,000% 7T 100% 100% BMKBRES/TH
2005F10817H
(President (Shanghai) Shanghai, PRC. USD8,600,000 Trading of beverages and
Trading Co., Ltd.”) 17 October 2005 and food products/PRC
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37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

AMAEIER,
RE%ATE R R A BRARBRRE FRFAg 1 TEEE TEE
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2020 2019
RCBERGBRAT =] 1,000,000%7 & 100% 100% ANBEREER/ &4
20065 12528H
(Tong Ren Corp. Limited.”) Taiwan NTD1,000,000 Human resource
28 December 2006 management/Taiwan
ERA—CERRBERAT HEER 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  FERBEEHEK
2007511488 B/ HE
(Kunming President Enterprises Kunming, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Food Co., Ltd.*) 8 November 2007 beverages and food/PRC
S¥EFBRAT B8 1,711,920 7 100% 100%  REER/EH
2008%645H
(Champ Green Capital Hong Kong UsD1,711,920 Investment holding/Hong
Co., Limited.) 5 June 2008 Kong
E#—TBRKERAT FEES 4,150,000 7 100% 100%  EERBESR/TE
2009425201
(Bama President Mineral Water Bama, PRC. USD4,150,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Co., Ltd.") 20 February 2009 beverages/PRC
F—EEEERBRAT N 5,065,435,6007E 7T 100% 100%  REZRKRES
2009448300
(Uni-President Hong Kong Hong Kong HKD5,065,435,600 Investment holding and
Holdings Co., Ltd.) 30 April 2009 trading
SEREEEAH (LB HE L8 150,000% 7T 100% 100%  BEEH
BRAH 2009555128
(Champ Green (Shanghali) Shanghai, PRC. USD150,000 Management Consulting
Consulting Co., Ltd.") 12 May 2009
RVG—EEBRAT hEED 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  EERFEENHK
201059418 B/ HE
(Changsha President Changsha, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 1 September 2010 beverages and food/PRC
PR —TH R B B R AE#1,000,0007¢ 100% 100%  BERRRES,HE
BRAF 2010485 24H
(Chengdu Unifies The Skillful Chengdu, PRC. RMB1,000,000 Catering services/PRC
Noodle Restaurant Dining 24 August 2010

Culture Limited Company®)
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37 MBAFE (1) 37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
FAMAIER,
RERHE R R A BRITRBERE FRaRg HE FTEEY SN
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2020 2019
HIR—CERRAT FEEL 25,000,000% 7% 100% 100%  HEREEHHK
201046108280 B&/HE
(Zhanjiang President Zhanjiang, PRC. USD25,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.") 28 October 2010 beverages and food/PRC
HER—CERRAT FEmEE 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  HERHEERK
2010£11816H BR/HFE
(Nanning President Nanning, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 16 November 2010 beverages and food/PRC
REH—LEBRAT HERES 20,000,000%7¢ 100% 100%  FEREEHR,FE
2010512820
(Changchun President Changchun, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.) 02 December 2010 beverages/PRC
MRif—rERRAT [ e e 20,000,000% 7T 100% 100% SR RAEREPE
2010F12815H
(Akesu President Akesu, PRC. USD20,000,000 Wholesale of forage and
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 15 December 2010 fertilizer/PRC
EMNFE—CERRAT M 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  AERHEERRK
2011615288 B&/HE
(Taizhou President Taizhou, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.") 28 January 2011 beverages and food/PRC
EER—C¥RRAT FEEE 33,600,000%7¢ 100% 100%  EEEEMRAEERL
2011525168 R¥RTE/HE
(Chongqing President Chongaing, PRC. USD33,600,000 Wholesale and retail of pre-
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 16 February 2011 packaged food and dairy
products/PRC
BIRAE—EEBRAT FEIER 20,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  HERHEHRRK
2011627248 "B&/HE
(Balyin President Baiyin, PRC. USD20,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 24 February 2011 beverages and food/PRC
LER—BERAEEERAR HE EE AE#60,000,0007 100% 100%  HEER/TEH
200385 1H
(Uni-President Shanghai Pearly Shanghai, PRC. RMB60,000,000 Leasing business/PRC
Century Co., Ltd. ) 1 August 2003
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37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

AMAEIER,
AR R R A BRARBRRE FRFAg 1 TEERTEN
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2020 2019
iR EEESS HE 5 AR 20,000,007 100% 100%  RELR/TE
BRAF 2003%7H18H
(Uni-President Shanghai Shanghai, PRC. RMB20,000,000 Investment holding/PRC
Management Consulting 18 July 2003
Co., Ltd. %)
BEAE—CEBRAD hEEE 22,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  FEREEGHTE
20114:388H
(Hainan President Chengmai, PRC. USD22,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 8 March 2011 beverages/PRC
BRER—EERAR FEAKE 35,000,000% ¢ 100% 100%  FERBEHRHK
20105118150 26/ HE
(Shijiazhuang President Shijiazhuang, PRC. USD35,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 15 November 2010 beverages and food/PRC
BEEA—CERRAT HEEE 30,000,000%7T 100% 100%  HERBEEHHK
20115478188 BR/HE
(Jinan President Jinan, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 18 April 2011 beverages and food/PRC
EREGR—CERRAT HREER 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  FERBEEHEK
201157868 B/ HE
(Guiyang President Guiyang, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.*) 6 July 2011 beverages and food/PRC
RAS—EERRKBRAR REER 4,800,000% 7T 100% 100%  FEBRRK/FE
20114 7H6H
(Wuxue President Enterprises Wuxue, PRC. USD4,800,000 Manufacturing mineral
Mineral Water Co.Ltd.") 6 July 2011 water/PRC
tERERRESERAR HELE 950,000E 7T 100% 100% FEEEREAEERL
2011468280 & /HE
(President (Shanghai) Private Shanghai, PRC. USD950,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
Label Marketing & 28 June 2011 food and dairy products/
Trading Co., Ltd.”) PRC
MNGE—EERRAT R 85,000,000% 75 100% 100%  FERBEEHHK
2011564218 B/ HE
(Hangzhou President Hangzhou, PRC. USD85,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 21 June 2011 beverages and food/PRC
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37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

FAMAIER,
SR R R A BRITRBERE FRaRg HE TEEETE
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2020 2019
BNFE—CEBRAA FEIRMN 33,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  EERFEESH/TE
201149520
(Xuzhou President Xuzhou, PRC. USD33,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 2 September 2011 beverages/PRC
F—mE (BL) BRAR FEEL 10,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  BEEEERHE/PE
201243528H
(President (Kunshan) Kunshan, PRC. USD10,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
Trading Co., Ltd.”) 28 March 2012 food products/PRC
AR ERRAT HE AR 43,100,000%7¢ 100% 100%  FEREEHR,FE
20124359H
(Henan President Henan, PRC. USD43,100,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.) 9 March 2012 beverages/PRC
AR —rERRAR FEIRRA 50,000,000% 7t 100% 100% FERBERNR
20124 7R6H "6/ HE
(Shaanxi President Shaanxi, PRC. USD50,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 6 July 2012 beverages and food/PRC
IHR—CERRAT FEIER 30,000,000%7T 100% 100%  HEREEHHK
20124611858 B&/HE
(Jiangsu President Nanjing, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.") 5 November 2012 beverages and food/PRC
RALGK—E (EH) BRK FEIEH AR #180,000,0007 100% 100%  FEERK/FE
BRAF 2013%F3A 150
(Changbaishan Mountain Jilin,PRC. RMB180,000,000 Manufacturing mineral
President Enterprises (Jilin) 15 March 2013 water/PRC
Mineral Water Co., Ltd. *)
m—1% (BL) ExHE%E FERL A E160,000,0007T 100% 100% BiE,/HE
BIRAE 2013F459H
(President Enterprises (Kunshan) Real  Kunshan,PRC. RMB60,000,000 Real estate/PRC
Estate Development 9 April 2013

Co., Ltd.")
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37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

AMAEIER,
AR R R A BRARBRRE FRFAg 1 TEERTEN
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2020 2019
BEH—CEERAT FRER)I| 16,000,000 7T 100% 100%  EERBESE/TEH
2013548220
(Ningxia President Yinchuan, PRC. USD16,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 22 April 2013 beverages/PRC
AEER—CEBRAT RIS 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  FERBEEHEK
201355498 B&/HE
(Uni-President Enterprises Hohhot, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Inner Mongolia) Co., Ltd.") 9 May 2013 beverages and food/PRC
LER—CEERAT FEER 30,000,000 7T 100% 100%  FEREEGHTE
2013%985H
(Shanxi President Jinzhong, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Enterprises Co., Ltd.”) 5 September 2013 beverages/PRC
LEFE—EBRRAE HELE 40,000,000 7T 100% 100% BRERRME /TE
2001105140
(Uni-President Enterprises Shanghai, PRC. USD40,000,000 Wholesale of pre-packaged
(Shanghai) Co.,Ltd *) 14 QOctober 2001 food products/PRC
TEER—tEIMNRRE B g 30,000,000% 7T 100% 100%  FEREEHNPE
BRAF 201311818
(Uni-President Enterprise (Hutubi) Hutubi, PRC. USD30,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Tomato Products Technology 1 November 2013 beverages/PRC
Co., Ltd.") Co.,Ltd.")
LEg—tEHbam hE s 80,000,000% 7 100% 100%  4ERBEEGEK
BIRAH 2014558158 B/ HE
(Uni-President Enterprises (Shanghai) ~ Shanghai, PRC. USD80,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Drink&Food Co.,Ltd.") 15 May 2014 beverages and food/PRC
—EERAT FEXE 12,000,000 7T 100% 100% FERBESN/TE
2014485150
(Uni-President Enterprises Tianjin, PRC. USD12,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Tiandin) Co.,Ltd") 15 August 2014 beverages/PRC

i—1 ¥ hEEARE PRA S Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.

e Annual Report 2020 £ #§

223



4= A
17177 g |

f=====-‘l"---F

R 75 3R R MY X

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37 BT (48)

224

37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

HEMRIER
SR R R A BRITRBERE FRaRg HE TEEETE
Country/place and Issued and Principal activities/
Company name date of incorporation paid-up capital Equity interest held place of operation
2020 2019
MER—EERAE FEHE 6,000,000%7¢ 100% 100%  EERFEESH/TE
2015%3H10H
(Uni-President Enterprises Hunan, PRC. USDB6,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
(Hunan) Co.,Ltd") 10 March 2015 beverages/PRC
EEHRAER T FEES AE#100,000,0007¢ 100% 100%  EEREESH/PE
ERAT 20094659H
(Yantai Tongli Beverage Yantai, PRC. RMB100,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of
Industries Co., Ltd*) 09 June 2009 beverages/PRC
H—t¥ R R FEIELL 1,200,000 7T 100% 100%  FEREEHKETE
BRATF 1995&12827H

(President Enterprises (Kunshan)
Food Products Technology

Co., Ltd.")

P& LB o B oA BE

Kunshan, PRC.
27 December 1995

k& 7 BY B

BRrEERERETER -NFESH

EEMRIZ —KMBATHERR
ZEREERAT -FAARPTEMILZ
MEBARHRIIEEERE

USD1,200,000

Manufacturing and sale of
seasoning/PRC

All subsidiaries located in the Mainland China, Taiwan and

Hong Kong are limited liability entities. One subsidiary
incorporated in the Cayman Islands is an exempted company
with limited liability. All subsidiaries established in the PRC are
wholly foreign owned enterprises.

* BNALBILARNBERERIFHRX * The English name represents the best effort by management of
HIEEIERS Y- the Company in translating the Chinese name.
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